
DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN No.: U74110MP2010PTC023673 

 

  
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal – 462016                               

Ph.: 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998, E-mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com 
 

 
 
Date: August 31, 2024 
 
To 
BSE Limited 
Listing Department 
P.J Tower, Dalal Street 
Mumbai 400 001 
 
 Scrip Code – 973405 
  
Sub: Annual Report for the FY 2023-24 and Notice of the 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM). 
 
Dear Sir/Madam,  
 
Pursuant to Regulation 50 and 53 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, please find herewith enclosed, copy of the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 including 
Notice of the 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 24, 2024, 
at 10.00 a.m.  
 
Further to inform you that today the Company has sent the copy of the Annual Report for the Financial Year 
2023-24 including notice of the 14th Annual General Meeting through electronic mode to the members.  
 
Further, copy of the Annual Report including notice of the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company for 
the Financial Year 2023-24 shall also be available on the website of the Company i.e. www.dbiapl.com  
 
We hereby request you to take the said information on your record. 
 
 
Thanks & Regards  
 
For DBL Infra Assets Private Limited. 
 
 
 
Dilip Suryavanshi 
Director 
DIN: 00039944 
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BRIEF PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

1. Dilip Suryavanshi:- Non-Executive Director                        

He holds a master’s degree in Civil Engineering from the 
University of Jabalpur; He has over 41 years of 
experience in the business of construction. He has been a   
Director of the Company since incorporation. He was the  
President of the Madhya Pradesh Builders Association.  
 

2. Satish Chandra Pandey: -Non Executive Independent Director  
 

He holds bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from 
Government College of Engineering and Technology, 
Raipur. He is a retired government servant and was the  

Vice President of Indian Road Congress. He has 
previously worked as Engineer-in-Chief and Secretary 
with the Public Works Department, Government of 
Madhya Pradesh. During his 38 years of experience and 
career in  

the Public Works Department, his credit of supervising 
major roads, bridges and building works, including 
Indore bypass, a project of World Bank.  

 
 

3. Ashwini Verma :- Non Executive Independent Director  

He holds a bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering from 
Rajiv Gandhi Proudyogiki Vishwavidyalaya, Bhopal. He 
has over 32 years of experience in architectural and site 
engineering services. He is a partner of M/s. AV & 
Associates. He has previously worked in various capacities 
in M/s. Gawali & Associates, Architects and Engineers, 
M/s. Waseem & Associates, M/s. Pradeep K. Saxena & 
Associates and Harekrishna Colonisers Private Limited. 

 

4. Pooja Maheshwari :- Non Executive Independent Women Director  

She holds Master’s degree in Commerce from Barkatullah 
University, Bhopal. She also holds the degree of Masters of 
Business Administrations from Barkatullah University, 
Bhopal.  She has 8 years of experience in the field of 
consultancy in financing and recovery in the Banking 
Sector. 

 

 



                
 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

  

Registrar & Share transfer Agent 

Unlisted Equity shares & Listed Debentures  

Link lntime India Private Limited  
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400083 
Tel No. - +91 22 49186000 
Email id : amit.dabhade@linkintime.co.in 
Website : www.linkintime.co.in 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Directors 

Mr.  Dilip Suryavanshi 
 

Non-Executive Director 
 

DIN : 00039944 

Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey 
 

Non-Executive -Independent Director  
 

DIN : 07072768   

Mr. Ashwini Verma  
 

Non-Executive- Independent Director  
 

DIN : 06939756                    

Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari Non-Executive- Independent  Women Director 
 

DIN: 09783425 

Registered office address and other corporate details : 

 

Statutory Auditor  

 
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673  

Plot No.5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, 
Kolar Road, Bhopal (M.P)- 462016 

Tel No.+91 755 4029999 

Email id:   dblinfraassets@gmail.com 
Website :  www.dbiapl.com 

Mukund M. Chitale & Co  
Chartered Accountants 
  
2nd Floor, Kapur House, 
Paranjape B Scheme 
Road No.1, Vile Parle (E), 
Mumbai400057 
T:97 22 2663 3SOO 
Website : www.mmchitale.com 

Debenture Trustee details Key Managerial Personnel  Secretarial Auditor 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 

The Ruby, 2nd Floor (SW) 
29, Senapati Bapat Marg,  
Dadar West, Mumbai -400028  
 
Email id 
rahul.vaishya@axistrustee.in 
Tel No. +91 022-62300451 
Website :www.axistrustee.com 

CA Mayank Jiniwal 
Chief Financial Officer 
 

CS Pragya Raghuwanshi  
Company Secretary and Compliance officer 

Piyush Bindal and Associates  

Company Secretaries  
S-12, 2nd floor, Gurukripa Plaza, 
Zone -II, M.P. Nagar, Bhopal -
462011.  
Tel :+91-755-4218694 
Email Id 
cspiyushbindal@gmail.com 
 



                
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC0f673) 

 
 

NOTICE 
 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Members of DBL Infra Assets Private Limited (CIN: 
U74110MP2010PTC023673) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Plot No.5, Inside Govind 
Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal - 462016 (M.P.) on Tuesday, September 24, 2024 at 10.00 am to 
transact the following Businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone & Consolidated financial statements including the balance sheet and 
statement for change in the equity, profit and loss and cash flow of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2024, together with the reports of the board of directors and auditors thereon; 
 

2. To re-appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN: 00039944) as a director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offer himself 
for the re-appointment.  
 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 
 Item No.3 
 

To consider and approve the limit of Rs. 4915 crores under section 185, 186 and other applicable provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 for providing loans/guarantee/securities to the Subsidiary Companies/Associate 
Companies/Private Companies/JVS for the financial year 2024-25. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185, 186 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and subject to all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force) and the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
consent of the  members  be and is hereby accorded by the Board of Directors of the Company, to give unsecured loans, 
advances and to provide guarantee or security to any of Subsidiary Companies and/or Associate Companies (whether 
public or private company) and/ or Joint Venture and/ or Trust and/ or Body Corporate(s) for providing Loans (whether 
funded or non-funded) by any Bank, Financial Institution, NBFC, Company or other body corporate(s) for providing 
financial support as per the requirement of the lenders/ Government authorities and business necessity not exceeding to 
Rs. 4915 crores (Rupees Four Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifteen Crores Only) in one or more tranches and the said loan/ 
guarantee/security given by the Company shall be utilized for the principal business activities of the recipient 
company(ies). 

 

The details of the limits are as under:  

 

 

 

 

 



                
 

 

 

 

S. No  Name of Companies  Status 
Purpose of 
giving loan  

Rate of 
Interest  

Limit  
2024-25 

1 
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Private 
Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 

To meet the 
routine/   
principal 
business 
activities of 
the 
Company  

Interest will 
be charged as 
per the 
provision of 
section 186 of 
the 
Companies 
Act, 2013, if 
applicable, as 
amended from 
time to time 

90 

2 
Narenpur Purnea Highways Private 
Limited  

Associate Company 
150 

3 Repallewada Highways  Limited  Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
4 Dhrol Bhadra Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 75 

5 
Bhopal Redevelopment Realty Private 
Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 
100 

6 Bangalore Malur Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 80 
7 Malur Bangarpet Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 90 

8 DBL Poondiyankuppam Highways 
Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 150 

9 DBL  Viluppuram Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
10 Sannur Bikarnakette Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
11 DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 370 
12 DBL Infra Tech Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 500 

13 
Bangarupalem Gudipala Highways 
Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 
80 

14 
Raipur-Visakhapatnam-CG-2 Highways 
Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 
150 

15 Karimnagar Warangal Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 200 

16 
Maradgi S Andola-Baswantpur Highways 
Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 
200 

17 Mehagama Hansdiha Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 120 
18 Urga Pathalgaon Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 250 

19 
Bengaluru-Vijayawada Expressway 
Package-1 Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 
150 

20 
Bengaluru-Vijayawada Expressway 
Package-4 Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 
150 

21 
Bengaluru-Vijayawada Expressway 
Package-7 Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary Company 
125 

22 DBL Pachhwara Coal Mine Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 50 
23 Deevin Seismic Systems Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 20 
24 Jalpa Devi Engineering Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 75 
25 DBL Transmission Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 20 
26 DBL-VPR Mining Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 20 
27 DBL Infradevelopers Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 50 
28 DBL Infra Venture Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 200 
29 Zuari Observatory Towers Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 200 
30 Dharmapuri – salem thoppur ghat limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
31 Dilip Buildcon Limited Holding Company 500 

32 
Other Companies (unidentified 
companies/not yet incorporated /through 
acquisition companies or otherwise) 

- 350 

Total 4915 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673) 

 
 
 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts 
deeds, matters, and things, in its absolute discretion, as may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable and to 
settle any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto in order to give effect to the foregoing resolution or 
otherwise considered by the Board of Directors in the interest of the Company.”    
               
 
 
          By Order of the Board of Directors of  
                                                                                                                                        DBL Infra Assets Private Limited 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                                         Pragya Raghuwanshi 

                                                                                                                                      Company Secretary & Compliance Officer  
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673                        A52982 
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan 
Singh Gate Chuna Bhatti, 
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-462016 
 
Place: Bhopal 
Date: 08.08.2024 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673) 

Notes: 

a. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY, TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THAT A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A 
PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50 AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE 
NOT MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. IN CASE A 
PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS, THEN, SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR 
ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Company's registered 
office at Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal (M.P) 462016, not less than 48 
hours before the commencement of the AGM. 
 

b. The information required to be provided under the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings, regarding the Directors 
whose re-appointment is proposed, the relevant Information in respect of the business under item No.2 has been annexed 
separately in Annexure A. 
 

c. In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN: 00039944) Director, retire by rotation at the Meeting and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company commends his re-appointment. 
 

d. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send the 
Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at 
the Meeting.  
 

e. Members/proxies are requested to bring their attendance slip duly completed along with their copy of Annual Report to 
the Meeting. 
 

f. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to 
the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf 
at the Meeting 
 

g. In case of Joint holders attending the Meeting only such joint holder which is higher in the order of names will be entitled 
to vote.  
 

h. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions and explanatory statement are open for inspection at the 
Corporate Office of the Company during working hours except on holidays. 
 

i. The Director’s Report, Auditor’s Report and Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and the Profit and Loss Account 
& cash flow statement for the period ended on that date are enclosed.  
 

j. Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of Companies 
Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

k. The details Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) is as under:- 
 

  Name of RTA: Link lntime India Private Limited 
Address:   C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400083 

                  Tel No.   +91 22 49186000 
E-mail:            amit.dabhade@linkintime.co.in 
Website   www.linkintime.co.in 

 

l. Members who have not registered / updated their e-mail addresses with RTA, if shares are held in physical mode or 
with their DPs, if shares are held in electronic mode, are requested to do so for receiving all future communications from 
the Company including Annual Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc., electronically. 
 

m. Pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not having any unclaimed or unpaid dividends 
liable to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund. 
 

n. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates to 
their Depository Participants (DPs) with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical mode are requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the Company / RTA. 
 

o. Members are requested to notify any change in their address to the Company immediately.  
 

 
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016 

Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com 



                
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673) 

 
 

p. Member desirous of seeking any information on the accounts or operations of the Company is requested to forward 
his/her query in writing to the Company at least 48 hours prior to the Meeting, so that the required information can be 
made available at the Meeting.  
 

q. The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of special business 
as set out above is annexed hereto. 
 

r. A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 14th  Annual General Meeting is given at the end of this Notice 
as per the requirement of the of the Secretarial Standards-2 on “General Meetings”. 
 

                     By Order of the Board of Directors of  
                                                                                                                                      DBL Infra Assets Private Limited 

 
 
            Sd/- 

         Pragya Raghuwanshi 
                                                                                                                              Company Secretary & Compliance Officer  
                         A52982 
 
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673 
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan 
Singh Gate Chuna Bhatti, 
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-462016 

 
Place: Bhopal 
Date: 08.08.2024 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road , Bhopal – 462016 

Ph.No. 0755-4029999, Fax: 0755-4029998 E-Mail: dblinfraassets@gmail.com 



                
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673) 

 

Annexure of to the notice of Annual General Meeting 
(Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

Item No.3  
 

The Board has considered that in the ordinary course of business, the Company is required to give loans and 
provide guarantee and securities on behalf of the Subsidiary Companies and/or Associate Companies 
(whether public or private company) and/ or Joint Venture and/ or Trust and/ or Body Corporate(s) while 
providing financial support/Loans as per the requirement of the lenders/Government authorities and 
business necessity from time to time. The Board has considered that the Companies (Amendment Act), 2017, 
the Central Government has substituted the section 185 and according to that, now the Company is eligible 
to give loans and provide guarantee or security on behalf of the other Companies to the Bank and Financial 
Institutions, etc. where any or all the directors are interested, subject to the requirement for approval of the 
members by way of special resolution and that the amount of loans, guarantee and securities should be 
utilised by such Companies for their principal business activities. Hence, in order to conduct the smooth 
operations of the business and align with the various legislations, policies, guidelines laid down by various 
statutory authorities/lenders and other operational business requirements of the Subsidiary Companies 
and/or Associate Companies (whether public or private company) and/ or Joint Venture and/ or Trust and/ 
or Body Corporate(s) for providing Loans (whether funded or non-funded) by any Bank, Financial 
Institution, NBFC, Company or other body corporate(s), on the basis of recommendation of Audit Committee, 
the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed to obtain approval of the shareholders by way of special 
resolution as contained in the notice of the Annual General Meeting for an amount of Rs. 4915 crores (Rupees 
Four Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifteen Crores Only) in one or more tranches at any time and the said 
loan/ guarantee/any security given by the Company shall be utilized for the principal business activities of 
the recipient Company(ies). 
 

 The details of limits are as under: 

S. No  Name of Companies  Status 
Purpose 
of giving 
loan  

Rate of Interest  
Limit  
2024-25 

1 Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 

 
 
 
 
 
To meet 
the 
routine/   
principal 
business 
activities 
of the 
Company  

Interest will be 
charged as per 
the provision of 
section 186 of 
the Companies 
Act, 2013, if 
applicable, as 
amended from 
time to time 

90 
2 Narenpur Purnea Highways Private Limited  Associate Company 150 
3 Repallewada Highways  Limited  Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
4 Dhrol Bhadra Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 75 
5 Bhopal Redevelopment Realty Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
6 Bangalore Malur Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 80 
7 Malur Bangarpet Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 90 
8 DBL Poondiyankuppam Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 150 
9 DBL  Viluppuram Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
10 Sannur Bikarnakette Highways  Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
11 DBL-Siarmal Coal Mines Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 370 
12 DBL Infra Tech Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 500 
13 Bangarupalem Gudipala Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 80 
14 Raipur-Visakhapatnam-CG-2 Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 150 
15 Karimnagar Warangal Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 200 
16 Maradgi S Andola-Baswantpur Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 200 
17 Mehagama Hansdiha Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 120 
18 Urga Pathalgaon Highways Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 250 
19 Bengaluru-Vijayawada Expressway Package-1 Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 150 
20 Bengaluru-Vijayawada Expressway Package-4 Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 150 
21 Bengaluru-Vijayawada Expressway Package-7 Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 125 
22 DBL Pachhwara Coal Mine Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 50 
23 Deevin Seismic Systems Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 20 
24 Jalpa Devi Engineering Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 75 
25 DBL Transmission Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 20 
26 DBL-VPR Mining Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 20 
27 DBL Infradevelopers Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 50 
28 DBL Infra Venture Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 200 
29 Zuari Observatory Towers Limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 200 
30 Dharmapuri – salem thoppur ghat limited Fellow Subsidiary Company 100 
31 Dilip Buildcon Limited Holding Company 500 

32 
Other Companies (unidentified companies/not yet 
incorporated /through acquisition companies or 
otherwise) 

- 350 

Total 4915 



                
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(CIN- U74110MP2010PTC023673) 

 

The Board recommends as a Special Resolution set forth in Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the 
Members. 
 

       None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of other official(s) of the Company 
are financially interested in the aforesaid resolution, however they may be deemed to be interested financially or 
otherwise to the extent of their directorship or the shareholding by them in such Companies, if any. 
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      (ANNEXURE A TO NOTICE DATED AUGUST 08, 2024) 

Details of Directors Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment/variation of the terms of remuneration at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting 

(Pursuant to Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting) 
 

Name of Director Dilip Suryavanshi 

DIN  00039944 
 

Date of Birth and age 12.10 .1956, (66 years) 
 

Date of Appointment on the Board  31.05.2010 
 

Qualifications Graduate (B.E.–Civil) 
 

Experience and Expertise He holds a master’s degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Jabalpur; He has 
over 41 years of experience in the business of construction. He has been a Director of 
the Company since incorporation. He was the President of the Madhya Pradesh Builders 
Association. 
 

Directorships held in other public 
companies and private companies 
(excluding foreign companies.  

Directorship in Listed Companies: 
1. Dilip Buildcon Limited 

 
Directorship in other Unlisted Companies: 
 
1. Kymore Iron Ore Pvt Ltd 
2. Suryavanshi Minerals Private Limited 
3. DNN Media Communication Private Limited 
4. Acquilla Properties Private Limited 
5. DBL Infradevelopers Private Limited 

 
Memberships/Chairmanships of 
committees across all companies 

He is the Chairman & member of the following committee in following 
committees of the Companies: 

S. No Name of the 
Company 

Nature of Committee Chairman/Mem
ber 

1 Dilip 
Buildcon 
Limited  

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee 

Member 

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee Member 

Risk Management Committee Chairman 

Business Development and 
Administration Committee  

Chairman 

Lending and Investment Committee  Chairman  

Enquiry Committee for leak of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive information  

Chairman 

2 DBL Infra 
Assets 
Private 
Limited  

Audit Committee 
Member 

Nomination and remuneration committee  
Member 

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 
Chairman 

Risk Management Committee 
Chairman 

 
 

Number of Meetings attended 
during the year 

7 of 7 
 
 

No. of Equity Shares held in the 
Company 

10  
 
 

 



                
 
 

Disclosures of relationship between 
Directors inter-se 

Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi is not related to any other Director of the Company 

Terms and Conditions of appointment 
or re-appointment along with details 
of remuneration sought to be paid and 
remuneration last drawn by such 
person 

Details regarding terms and condition of appointment are given in item No. 3 as set 
out in the notice of AGM. 

 
         

                       By Order of the Board of Directors of  
                                                                                                                                       DBL Infra Assets Private Limited 

 
 
                      Sd/- 

                   Pragya Raghuwanshi 
            Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
                       A52982 
                
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673 
Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan 
Singh Gate Chuna Bhatti, 
Kolar Road Bhopal, MP-462016 
Place: Bhopal 
Date: 08.08.2024 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                
 
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673 

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh 
Tel No.: +91 755 -4029999 

Website: www.dbiapl.com, Email Id: dblinfraassets@gmail.com 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

(PLEASE FILL ATTENDENCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL) 
 

Registered Folio No. / DP ID No./Client ID No.  

Name and Address of the Member(s) 

 

Joint Holder 1 

 

Joint Holder 2 

 

No. of shares held   

 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company held at Plot No. 5, Inside Govind 
Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal (M.P) 462016 on Tuesday, September 24, 2024 at 10.00 a.m., Bhopal, 
Madhya Pradesh. 

 
 

  …………………………………............                                                                ........................................... 
Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters      Member’s/Proxy’s Signature 

 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------- 
 
Note: 
 

 Please read the instructions mentioned in the notes of Notice of 14th Annual General Meeting dated August 08, 2024. 
 Only Member/Proxy can attend the Meeting. No minors would be allowed at the Meeting  
 Member / Proxy wishing to attend the Meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and handover at the 

entrance, duly filled in and signed.  
 Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting. 

  



                
 

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673 

Regd. Office: Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh 
Tel No.: +91 755 -4029999 

Website: www.dbiapl.com, Email Id: dblinfraassets@gmail.com 
 

14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
FORM MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN U74110MP2010PTC023673 

Name of the company DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED  

Registered office Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 
016, Madhya Pradesh 

 
Name of the Member(s    : 
Registered Address         : 
E-mail ID           : 
DP ID: ………………………………………………………... Folio No./ Client ID:…………………………………………… 

 I/We, being the member (s) of …………............................. shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint 
 

1. Name   : ............................................ 
Address  : 
Email Id  : 
Signature  : ............................................., or failing him/her 

2. Name: ............................................. 
Address: 
Email Id : 
Signature:............................................., or failing him/her 

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held at Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya 
Pradesh on Tuesday, September 24, 2024 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 
are indicated below: 
 
Sr. No. RESOLUTIONS 

Ordinary Business: 

1 Ordinary Resolution:  

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 and 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date along with the Cash Flow Statement and notes forming 
part of accounts together with the Reports of Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon.  
 

2 Ordinary Resolution:  

To Re-appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN: 00039944), who retires by rotation, as Director, who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

3 Special Resolution: 

To consider and approve the limit of Rs. 4915 crores under section 185, 186 and other applicable provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 for providing loans/guarantee/securities to the Subsidiaries Companies/Associates 
Companies/Private Companies/JVs for the financial year 2024-25. 

 
 



                
 

Signed this …………day of ……………..2024 
Signature of members …………………….. 
Signature of Proxy holders (s)…………………. 
Reference Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID………………….. 
No. of shares …………… 
Note:  

1. The Proxy form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
 

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a 
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.  
 

4. For Resolutions, Notes, please refer to the Notice of 14th Annual General Meeting.  
  

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp Rs. 
1/- 
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Tel No.: +91 755 -4029999 

Website: www.dbiapl.com, Email Id: dblinfraassets@gmail.com 
14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Form MGT-12 
Polling Paper 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN U74110MP2010PTC023673 

Name of the Company DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED  

Registered Office Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, 
Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh 

POLLING PAPER 

Name of the Shareholder (s) (in block letters)  

Name of the Joint holder (s), if any  

Postal address   

Class of shares   Equity  

Number of shares held   

 Registered Folio No/Client Id   

DP ID  

 

I/We hereby exercise my/ our vote in respect of the Ordinary/ Special Resolution enumerated below, by conveying 
my/our assent or dissent to the Resolutions by placing a tick (√) mark at the appropriate box: 
Ite
m 
No 

Item Details No. of 
shares 
held by me 

I assent to the 
Resolution 

I dissent from 
the 
Resolution 

Ordinary Business 

1. Ordinary Resolution:  
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 and Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended on that date along with the Cash Flow Statement and 
notes forming part of accounts together with the Reports of Director’s 
and the Auditors thereon.  

   

2 Ordinary Resolution:  
To Re-appoint Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (DIN: 00039944), who retires by 
rotation, as Director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment.  

   

3 Special Resolution: 
To consider and approve the limit of Rs. 4915 crores under section 185, 
186 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for 
providing loans/guarantee/securities to the Subsidiaries 
Companies/Associates Companies/Private Companies/JVs for the 
financial year 2024-25. 

   

Date:          
(Signature of Shareholder) 
Place: 
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DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

BOARD’S REPORT 
 

 
To, 
The Members, 
DBL Infra Assets Private Limited 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 14th Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company and the IndAS Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 
 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 
The performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 is as under: 

(Rs.in Lakhs) 
 

Particulars 
Year ended 
31st March, 
2024  

Year ended 
31st March, 
2023 

Year ended 
31st March, 
2024  

Year ended 
31st March, 
2023 

 Standalone Consolidated 

Total Income 8,323.14  1163.06 8,323.15  5707.51 
Total expenses 15,784.24  10811.53 15,784.24  15833.36 

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items 
and tax 

(7,461.09)  (9648.47) (7,461.09)  (10125.86) 

Exceptional items 2,594.89  3587.88 8,511.94  11517.72 
Profit / (loss) before tax (4,866.20)  (6060.58) 1,050.85  1391.86 
Tax expense:     

Current tax 285.67  - 285.67 (0.04) 
Income tax relating to previous year - (0.04)   
Deferred tax 0.12 (1.08) 0.12  88.85 

Profit/(Loss) for the year from 
continuing operations 

(5,151.99)  (6059.46) 765.07  1303.05 

 
Other Comprehensive Income                    
A.    
(i)Remeasurement gain on revaluation of 
Investment 
(ii)Income tax relating to above (charge)  
(iii) Remeasurement gain on post 
employment benefit 
(iv) Income tax relating to above (charge) 
 

 
 

2,038.77  
  

(513.12) 
  

1.18  
  

(0.30)  
 

 

3301.25 
 

(830.86) 
 
- 

                                 

 
 

2,038.77  
  

(513.12) 
  

1.18  
  

(0.30) 

 

3301.25 
 

(830.86) 
 
- 
 
- 

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
period (Comprising Profit (Loss) and 
other Comprehensive Income for the 
period) 
 

(3,625.46)  (3,589.09) (1,424.46)  (1956.79) 

 

Earning per equity shares 
(1)    Basic 
(2)    Diluted 

 

 
 (257.60) 
 (257.60) 

 

 
(302.97) 
(302.97) 

  

 
 (147.55) 
 (147.55) 

 

 

(221.36) 
(221.36) 

 
 
 
 
 



                
 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING THE YEAR 
 

DBL Infra Assets Private Limited (DIAPL) is involved in the business of infrastructure facility. The object of the 
Company is to carry out the comprehensive infrastructure work, including construction, maintenance, and 
management of facilities like roads, bridges, and utilities. It also trades in building materials and equipment essential 
for infrastructure projects, and undertakes development projects on a build-operate-transfer basis, as well as power 
generation and distribution activities 

During the financial year 2023-24, total income stand at Rs. 8,323.14 Lakhs. However, the Company has incurred Net 
Loss after tax amounting to Rs. 3,625.46 Lakhs. Your directors are hopeful for the bright future of the company in the 
years to come. 

 
 
DIVIDEND 

 
In view of losses incurred during the year, your directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024 

 

 
SHARE CAPITAL AND NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES  
 
a) Change in the capital structure of the Company.  

 
During the period under review, there has been no change in the Capital structure of the Company. Authorized Capital 
of the Company is Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Five Crores only) ranking paripassu with the existing equity shares.   
 
As on March 31, 2024, none of the directors of the Company hold any instrument convertible into equity shares of the 
Company. 

  
b) Status of Shares in D-mat Form 

 
As on March 31, 2024, the Company has 2000000 paid up equity shares.  The details of the dematerialised and physical 
shares are as under: 
 

Sr. No Capital Details No. of shares % of Total issued Capital 

1 Held in dematerialised form in NSDL 2000000 100 

2 Physical 0.00 0.00 

 Total 2000000 100.00 

 
 

c) Debentures 
 

The Company has made Voluntary Redemption on May 28, 2024  of the following non-convertible debentures (in line 
with the Debentures Trust Deed dated August 23, 2021 entered into between DBL Infra Assets Private Limited and 
Axis Trustee Service Limited) (“NCDs”) which were issued and allotted on a private placement basis and listed with 
BSE Limited. The Company has done face value Redemption of Rs. 30,30,04,240 /- in aggregate.  

(in Rs.) 
S. 

No 
Total 
Quant
ity 

Existing 
Face Value 
of NCD 

Face value 
partial 
Redemption 
Amount 

Date of face 
value 
Redemption 
(Partial) 

Record Date Balance face 
value post 
redemption 

Amount of 
outstanding 
Debenture 

1  7027 9,61,576 43,120 28.05.2024 24.05.2024 9,18,456 6,45,39,90,312 

 
 

RESERVES 
 

During the year , the Company has neither created nor transferred any amount to Debenture Redemption Reserve as 
per Section 71(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

DEPOSITS 
 

The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act,- 
 



                
 

(a) Accepted during the year: NIL 
(b) remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year: NIL 
(c) Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and if       

so, number of such cases and the total amount involved: NIL 
 
 

GENERAL DISCLOSURES 
 

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any transactions which covered under the following 
provisions and no disclosure or reporting is required: 
 

(i) As per rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has not issued equity 
shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; 
 

(ii) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act and rules made there under. 
 

(iii) As per rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has not issued shares 
(including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme; 
 

(iv) As per rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has not issued equity 
shares under the scheme of employee stock option; 
 

(v) As per rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, there are no voting rights exercised 
directly or indirectly by the employees in respect of shares held by them. The Company does not have any scheme of 
provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees; 
 

(vi) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board; 
 

(vii)   There is no Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated by and against the Company under the Insolvency and         
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC); 
 

(viii) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the Company's 
going concern status and operations in future.  
 

(ix) There is no one time settlement of loans taken from banks and financial Institutions; 
 

(x) There is no amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend and shares which are required to be transferred in IEPF (Investor 
Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, SECURITY AND INVESTMENT  
 
Being an Infrastructure Company, the Company is exempted under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect 
to any loan made, any guarantee given or any security provided or any investment made by a Company.  
 
However, the details of loan, guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 forms 
part of Financial Statements.  

 
HOLDING COMPANY 

 
Your Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Dilip Buildcon Limited. 

 
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY 
 
(a) Statement of the Subsidiaries & Associates 
 
As on March 31, 2024, the Company has 1 (One) Associate Company i.e. Narenpur Purnea Highways Limited (NPHL). 
 
NPHL was incorporated on October 07, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office situated at Plot 
no. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate, Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal 462 016, Madhya Pradesh. NPHPL is involved 
in the business to undertake the project of "Construction and upgradation of NH - 131A from Km 34.600 (design 
Ch: 6.000) near Narenpur to Km 79.970 (design Ch: 53.000) near Purnea to 4 lane standard and from Km 79.970 



                
 
(design Ch: 53.000) to Km 82.000 (design Ch: 55.000) near Purnea to 2 lanes with paved Shoulders standard in 
the State of Bihar on Hybrid Annuity Mode.” NPHL is an Associate of the Company. Further, NPHL has been converted 
from private to public company and has received the conversion certificate of incorporation from Registrar of 
companies, Gwalior on July 12, 2023.  

 
During the period under review, NPHL has achieved revenue from operations of Rs.  46,566.84 Lakhs and has incurred 
Net Loss after Tax of Rs.7,683.83 Lakhs. 
 
Your company has transferred its entire shareholding in NPHL to its holding company i.e. Dilip Buildcon Limited and 
accordingly NPHL is no more associated with the company as on date of Board Report. 
 
In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared a Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and associate, is forming part of the Annual Report. As per the provisions of Section 129 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a separate statement containing the 
salient features of the financial statements of the Subsidiary is prepared in Form AOC-1 and the same is annexed to this 
Annual Report. 
 
(b) During the year under review, shares subscribed/acquired/transferred are as under: 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of the Company Type of 
shares 

Opening 
Balance 
of shares 
held by 
DIAPL 

No. of Shares 
allotted/ 
acquired during 
the year by DIAPL 

No. of shares 
transfer by 
DIAPL 

Closing 
balance of 
shares held by 
DIAPL 

1.  *Narenpur Purnea 
Highways  Limited 

Equity 92941 28570 - 121511 

2.  Dodaballapur Hoskote 
Highways  Limited 

Equity 132583 3893 136476 - 

3.  Repallewada Highways  
Limited 

Equity 199205 185814 385019 - 

4.  Dhrol Bhadra Highways 
Ltd  

Equity  62348 7190 69538 - 

* The company has transferred its entire shareholding in Narenpur Purnea Highways Limited (NPHL) to its Holding 
Company. As such the company is no more associate as on date of Board Report. 

 
SHARES OF THE ASSOCIATES COMPANIES TRANSFERRED TO SHREM INVIT 

 
The Company along with its holding Company "Dilip Buildcon Limited "("DBL") have executed a non-binding Term 
Sheet, with 'Shrem lnvlT "(an infrastructure investment trust, registered under Indian Trust Act 1882 with Securities 
and Exchange Board of India), on 21 January 2022, for transferring their investment in equity share capital and 
promoter's unsecured loan in respect of 10 subsidiary companies (Hybrid Annuity Model ("HAM") projects) at expected 
consideration of ₹2,34,900.00 lakhs. Equity transfer to Shrem lnvlT shall be completed in a progressive manner after 
the completion of the projects, subject to receipt of approvals from the respective project lenders and National Highways 
Authority of India. The consideration will be received in form of units of the Invit/cash. The details of shares transferred 
by the Company till 31st March, 2024 are as follows: 
 

 
S. 

No. 
Name of the Company No. of Paid up 

Shares  
No. of Shares 
transferred 

to Shrem 
InVIT along 

with its 
nominees  

No. of 
Shares 
held by 

the 
DIAPL 

 

Status of the Company 
as on March 31, 2024 

1 Pathrapalli Kathghora 
Highways Private Limited 

 

206268 101071 
 

0 No more associated 
with the Company 

2 DBL Nidagatta Mysore 
Highways Private Limited  
 

852601 417772 0 No more associated 
with the Company 

3 DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways 
Private 
 

159611 33517 0 No more associated 
with the Company 



                
 

 
SHARES OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES COMPANIES TRANSFERRED TO DILIP BUILDCON LIMITED (HOLDING 
COMPANY) 
 
As a part of deal of holding company with  Alpha Alternatives  Holdings Private Limited (AA) and its Associates, during 
the year ended March 31,2024, your company  has transferred the complete stake held in Dhrol Bhadra Highways 
Private Limited, Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Private Ltd and Repallewada Highways Private Limited to its holding 
Company i.e. Dilip Buildcon Limited (DBL). The Company has earned Nil profit / Loss on these transactions. 
 
Details of the same are as under:-  
 

S. 
No. 

Name of the Company No. of 
Shares 

transferre
d to DBL   

No. of Shares 
held by the 
Company at 

the end of the 
year 

 

Status of the Company as on 
March 31, 2024 

1 
Repallewada Highways Limited 
 

385019 0 No more associated with the 
Company 

2 
Dhrol Bhadra Highways  Limited  
 

69538 0 No more associated with the 
Company 

3 Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways 
Private Limited  
 

136476 0 No more associated with the 
Company  

4 *Narenpur Purnea Highways Private 
Limited 

121511 0 Associate 

 

* The Company (DBL) has transferred 121511 Equity shares of Narenpur Purnea Highways Limited (NPHL) to DBL on 
June 19, 2024. As a result, the NPHL is no more associated with the Company as on date of this report. 
 
 
CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 
 
As per Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide compliance 
certificate by chief executive officer and chief financial officer. Since the provision relating to appointment of CEO are 
not applicable on your company. The company has obtained compliance certificate from Director and CFO and the same 
is annexed to this Report as Annexure-3. 
 
TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
 
During the period under review, there is no amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend which is required to transfer in IEPF 
(Investor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 
The Company has made Voluntary Redemption on May 28, 2024  of the following non-convertible debentures (in line 
with the Debentures Trust Deed dated August 23, 2021 entered into between DBL Infra Assets Private Limited and Axis 
Trustee Service Limited) (“NCDs”) which were issued and allotted on a private placement basis and listed with BSE 
Limited. The Company has done face value Redemption of Rs. 30,30,04,240 /- in aggregate.  

(in Rs.) 
S. 

No 
Total 
Quant
ity 

Existing 
Face Value 
of NCD 

Face value 
partial 
Redemption 
Amount 

Date of face 
value 
Redemption 
(Partial) 

Record Date Balance face 
value post 
redemption 

Amount of 
outstanding 
Debenture 

1  7027 9,61,576 43,120 28.05.2024 24.05.2024 9,18,456 6,45,39,90,312 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                
 
 

 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal Financial Controls ("IFC") within 
the meaning of the explanation to Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(viii) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has sound Internal Financial Control 
commensurate with the nature and size of its business operations and operating effectively and no material weakness 
exists. The Company has a process in place to continuously monitor the same and identify gaps, if any, and implement 
new and/or improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have a material effect on the Company's 
operations. This process includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Control 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Act. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted various policies like Related Party Transactions Policy, Vigil 
Mechanism Policy, Policy to determine Material Subsidiaries and such other procedures for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business for safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 
system and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company has robust management information system, 
which is an integral part of the control mechanism. 
 
 
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future. 
                                                                  
RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business 
objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through 
mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Company has adopted the risk management policy which includes 
identification of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the 
Company in order to avoid events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the 
Company's businesses, and define a structured approach to manage uncertainty and to make use of these in 
their decision-making pertaining to all business divisions and corporate functions. Therefore, a mechanism to 
inform the Board about risk assessment and minimization procedures and periodical review to ensure that 
executive management controls risk by means of a properly designed framework is in place. 

 
AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
Statutory Auditors & their report 

M/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on 30th September, 2022 for 
a term of 5 years from 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the 17th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2027. 

M/s. Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai have audited the books of accounts of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and have issued the Auditor's Report there on. There are no qualifications or 
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said report. Further, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors 
to the Audit Committee or the Board during the period under review. 

The Auditor's Report, read together with the notes on financial statements are self-explanatory and hence do not call 
for any further comments under section 134 of the Act. 

Cost Auditors & its report 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules and provisions, if any, 
the requirement of Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company.  
 



                
 
 
 
 
Secretarial Audit & Auditor’s Report 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Board of Directors 
has appointed M/s Piyush Bindal and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Bhopal as Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2023-2024. On the basis of the said appointment, M/s 
Piyush Bindal and Associates Practicing Company Secretaries, Bhopal  has issued the Secretarial Audit Report for the 
financial year 2023-2024 in form MR-3 which  is annexed to the Board's Report as Annexure-1 which is self-explanatory 
and do not call for any further explanation of the Board. 

 
Internal Auditors  

As per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable rules and provisions, the Internal 
Audit Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 issued by M/s Churuwala & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai 
(FRN: - 108101W) was submitted to the Board.  
 
Further, as per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable rules and provisions, if 
any. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 9, 2024 has appointed M/s Churuwala & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai (FRN: - 108101W), as an Internal Auditor to conduct internal audit of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2024-25. 
 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 
 
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo etc. does not apply to the Company. 
 
The particulars as required to furnish for the year 2023-24 are mentioned below: 
 

 
S. No. Particulars Comments  
(A) Conservation of energy In view of business activities, the 

Company is not a manufacturing 
Company and using very less power 
for its business activities hence; it is 
not beneficial for the interest of the 
company to take substantial steps for 
the conservation of energy 

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 
(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of 

energy; 
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment 

(B) Technology absorption  
(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption The Company uses latest technology 

and equipment in its business. 
Further the Company is not engaged 
in any manufacturing activity. 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 
product development or import substitution; 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three 
years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)- 
(a) the details of technology imported 
(b) the year of import 
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed 
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken 
place, and the reasons thereof; and 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development During the year the Company has not 
spent any amount towards research 
and developmental activity. 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo Inflow Out Flow  
The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during 
the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in 
terms of actual outflows 

0.00 0.00 

 
  



                
 

 
BOARD OF THE COMPANY  
  
a) Constitution of the Board  
 
The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013.  As on 31st March, 2024 the Company’s Board comprises of 4 (Four) Directors, comprising 
of One Non-Executive Director and 3 (Three) Non- Executive Independent Directors, including one Women Independent 
Director.  
 
The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills experience, 
expertise, diversity, and Independence. The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, an objective and independent 
view to the Company’s management while discharging its fiduciary duties, thereby ensuring that the management 
adheres to the high standards of ethics, transparency, and disclosure. The Directors on the Board of the Company as on 
the date of the Report are as follows: 
 
1. Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi  - Non- Executive Director 
2. Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey  - Non- Executive Independent Director 
3. Mr. Ashwini Verma  - Non- Executive Independent Director 
4. Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari - Non- Executive Independent Women Director 
 
b) Changes in the composition of board of directors 
 
During the Financial Year under review, no changes were made in the composition of Board of Directors of the Company: 
 
c) Changes in the key managerial personnel of the company: 
 
During the year under review, no changes were made in the positions of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
 
d) In addition to the above following changes took place after the year under review: 
 
No change took place after the end of year under review 
 
e) Directors seeking re-appointment 
 
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi (00039944) Director of the Company will 
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer himself for reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

The Board recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 

In case of appointment/re-appointment of Directors, the details of respective Directors as stipulated under Regulation 
36(3) of the Listing Regulations are included in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. 
 
f) Independent Women Director 
 
Pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, your Company is a ‘high value debt listed entity’ and is required to 
appoint Women Independent Director.  

 
Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari (DIN: 09783425) was appointed as Independent Woman Director on the Board as required 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  
 
g) Independent Directors and their Declaration 
 
The Company has appointed 3 (three) Independent Directors which are in accordance with the requirement of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.  
 
The terms and conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors are placed on the website at the web link:  
https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 

All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. As per the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations 25 (8) states that every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as 
a Director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year, or whenever there is any change in the 
circumstances which may affect his status as an independent director, submit a declaration that he meets the criteria of 
independence as provided in clause (b) of sub regulation (1) of regulation 16 and that he is not aware of any 
circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact his ability to 
discharge his duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence and the board of 



                
 
directors of the company shall take on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the independent director 
under sub-regulation (8) after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same.  

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience (Including the 
proficiency of the independent director as ascertained from the online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by 
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs notified under sub-section (1) of section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
are the persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Rules made thereunder and are independent of the management. 

Further, as per the Companies (Creation and Maintenance of Databank of Independent Directors) Rules, 2019 and 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the declaration 
received from the Independent Directors of the Company related to online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test are 
mentioned below: 

Sr. No Name of Independent Directors 

Applied online for 
inclusion of name in 

data bank 

Cleared the 
online 

Proficiency test 
Exemption 

category 

1 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey 07.02.2020 N.A Yes 

2 Mr. Ashwini Verma 05.02.2020 09.01.2021 - 

3 Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari 17.10.2022 - No 
 
      
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD  
 
The Company prepares the schedule of the Board Meeting in advance to assist the Directors in scheduling their 
programme. The agenda of the meeting is circulated to the members of the Board well in advance along with necessary 
papers, reports, recommendations and supporting documents so that each Board member can actively participate on 
agenda items during the meeting. 

The Board met 7 (Seven) times during the Financial Year 2023-24 viz 16 May 2023, 10 July 2023, August 02, 2023, 
August 22, 2023, November 06, 2023, February 09, 2024 and March 09, 2024.  
 
The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. 
 
The details of attendance of the Directors of the Company are as under: 
 
Sr. No. Name of the Directors Category Attendance 

Held Eligible 
to  

Attend 

Attended 

1 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Non- Executive Director 7 7 7 

2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

7 7 7 

3 Mr. Ashwini Verma Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

7 7 7 

4 Mrs. Pooja Maheshwari Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

7 7 6 

 
 

INFORMATION AVAILABLE FOR THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 
 

The Board has complete access to any information within the Company. The Company has provided inter alia following 
information: 

 Financial results of the Company, its Subsidiaries; 
 Minutes of meetings of the Board, Committees, resolutions passed by circulations and minutes of the meetings of the 

Board of Subsidiary Companies; 
 Periodic compliance reports which includes non-compliance, if any; 
 Disclosures received from Directors; 
 Related party transactions; 
 Regular business updates; 
 Report on action taken on last Board Meeting decisions; 
 Various Policies of the Board; 
 Code of Conduct for the members of the Board; 
 Discussion with the Auditors and the audit committee members. 



                
 
 
PROGRAMME FOR FAMILIARIZATION OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Company conducts familiarization programme for all the directors at the time of their appointment and also at 
regular intervals to enlighten the directors regarding their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company and the 
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business model of the Company etc. The details regarding the 
familiarization programme conducted during the year are put up on the website of the company and can be accessed at 
the following weblink:  https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 
 
GOVERNANCE CODES 
 
(a)     Code of Business Conduct & Ethics 

The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management (“the Code”) which is 
applicable to the Board of Directors and all Employees of the Company. The Board of Directors and the members of 
Senior Management Team of the Company are required to affirm Compliance of this Code. The Company has received 
the annual affirmation declaration from the Board of Directors and Senior Management. The Code requires Directors 
and Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional, courteous and 
respectful manner. The Code is displayed on the Company's website at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 
 
b)    Conflict of Interests 

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Committee positions he occupies in 
other Companies including Chairmanships and notify changes during the year. The Members of the Board while 
discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision-making process.  The Members of Board restrict 
themselves from any discussions and voting in transactions in which they have concern or interest. 

c)     Insider Trading Code 

The Company has adopted a Code of conduct for prevention of Insider Trading (“the Code”) in accordance with the SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, amended time to time (The PIT Regulations). This Code is displayed 
on the Company's website at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 

The Company has also formulated 'The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information (UPSI)' in compliance with the PIT Regulations. This Code is displayed on the Company's website 
at the weblink https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 

Further pursuant to the amendments in SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2018, the Company has also formulated Policy for 
Procedure of Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and constituted an Enquiry Committee 
to take appropriate action on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and inform the Board 
promptly of such leaks, inquiries and results of such inquiries. The Policy is displayed on the Company's website at the 
weblink : https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 

The Enquiry Committee shall consist of minimum 3 (three) Members of the Board of Directors of the Company.   

During the period under review, the Company has not received any complaints related to leak of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive information. No meeting was held during the financial year 2023-24.  

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 

The Board of Directors has constituted various mandatory and other Committees to deal with specific areas and 
activities which concern the Company and requires a closer review. The Committees are formed with approval of the 
Board and function as per the applicable provisions. These Committees play an important role in the overall 
management of day-to-day affairs and governance of the Company. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals 
and take necessary steps to perform its duties entrusted by the Board. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are 
placed before the Board for noting. During the year under review, the Board has the following Committees: 

A) Audit Committee  
 
The Audit Committee was constituted by our Board in accordance with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. The composition, quorum, terms of reference, functions, powers, roles and scope are in accordance with the 
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. All the members of the committee are financially literate, Mr. Satish 
Chandra Pandey, Mr. Ashwini Verma and Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi possesses financial expertise. 
 
The Audit Committee met 7 (Seven) times during the Financial Year 2023-24 viz 16 May 2023, 10 July 2023, August 02, 
2023, August 22, 2023, November 06, 2023, February 09, 2024 and March 09, 2024.  
 



                
 

  The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2023-24 are mentioned 
below: 

Sr.  No. Name of Directors  Designation  Number of meetings attended  

1 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Chairman -Independent Director  7 of 7 

2 Mr. Ashwini Verma Member -Independent Director  7 of 7 

3 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Member Director 7 of 7 

Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee Inter-alia, includes the following: 

(i) The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 
(ii) Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process; 
(iii) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
(iv) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
(v) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 
(vi) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
(vii) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 
(viii) Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct sufficient and credible; 
(ix) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
(x) Reviewing with the management the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to 
the board for approval with particular reference to: 

 
a.   Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the board's report in 
terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 
b.   Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
c.   Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
d.   Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
e.   Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
f.    Disclosure of any related party transactions; 
g.   Qualifications in the draft audit report; 
 
(xi) Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval; 
 
(xii) Reviewing with the management the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilization of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 
matter; 
(xiii) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
 
(xiv) Reviewing with the management performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal 
control systems; 
 
(xv) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functions, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal 
audit; 
 
(xvi) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
 
(xvii) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 
 
(xviii) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
 
(xix) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 
 
(xx) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 
 



                
 
(xxi)Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc. of the 
candidate; 

(xxii)Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
 
The Audit Committee, shall mandatorily review the following information: 
 
1.  Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
2.  Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee) submitted by management; 
3.  Management letters of internal control & weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
4.  Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 
5.  The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the 
Audit Committee.” 
 
 Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for directors and employees  
 
The Company has formulated the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy. The policy aims for conducting the affairs 
in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical 
behaviour. All permanent employees of the Company are covered under the Vigil Mechanism Policy. 

 
A mechanism has been established for employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of 
employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
exceptional cases. Further, no whistle blower complaint has been received during the financial year 2023-24. The 
Policy is available on the website of the Company at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 

 
B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
  
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with the provision of 
Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The composition, quorum, terms of reference, functions, powers, roles 
and scope are in accordance with Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Policy is available on the website 
of the Company at the weblink: https://dbiapl.com/Policies.aspx 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met once during the Financial Year 2023-24 on August 16, 2023  
 
The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2023-24 are mentioned 
below: 

Sr.  No. Name of Directors Designation Number of meetings 
attended 

1 Mr. Ashwini Verma Chairman – Independent Director 1 of 1 

2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 1 of 1 

3 Mr.  Dilip Suryavanshi Member - Director 1 of 1 

Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee 

The terms and reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are mentioned below:  
 

i. Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommending to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, executive directors key managerial 
personnel and other employees; 

ii.    Formulating of criteria for evaluation of the independent directors and the Board; 

iii.   Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

iv. Identifying persons who qualify to become directors or who may be appointed in one level below the key managerial 
personnel in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their appointment and removal, and 
carrying out evaluations of every director’s performance; 



                
 

v.    Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters; 

vi. Determining the company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including pension rights 
and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such directors; 

vii. Determining compensation levels payable to the key managerial personnel and other staff (as deemed necessary) which 
shall be market-related, usually consisting of a fixed and variable component; 

viii. Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current Indian market 
in accordance with applicable laws; 

ix. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily prescribed under 
any law to be attended to by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.” 

C) Stakeholder's Relationship Committee 
 

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with Regulation 19 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee met once during the Financial Year 2023-24 on August 16, 2023. 

The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2023-24 are mentioned 
below: 

Sr.  No. Name of Directors  Designation  Number of meetings attended  

1 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi  Chairman –Director 1 of 1 

2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 1 of 1 

3 Mr.  Ashwini Verma Member - Independent Director 1 of 1 

Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of the Company includes the following: 

a) Consider and resolve grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints related to the transfer 
of shares, non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt of declared dividends; and 

b) Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Status of Investor Complaints for Debt for the Financial Year 2023-24 

During the year no complaint was received, attended and resolved by the Company. Details of the same are mentioned 
below: 

Particulars Pending as on 
date of allotment 
of NCD (April 01, 
2023) 

During the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2024 

Pending as on 
March 31, 2024 

Received Redressed 

Shareholder 
Complaints 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

D) Risk Management Committee 
 
The Risk Management Committee has been constituted by the Board in accordance with Regulation 21 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.  Based on the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Director in their functional areas, your 
Company has done the Competency mapping of the directors of the Company and their efficient services /guidance used 
for the improvement in the organization.  
 
The Committee met twice during the Financial Year 2023-24 on August 16, 2023 and February 09, 2024. 

 The members of the Committee, Meetings and Attendance during the financial year 2023-24 are mentioned 
below: 

 



                
 

       Sr.  No. Name of Directors Designation Number of meetings 
attended 

1 Mr. Dilip Suryavanshi Chairman –Director 2 of 2 

2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 2 of 2 

3 Mr.  Ashwini Verma Member - Independent Director 2 of 2 

Mrs. Pragya Raghuwanshi, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee 

Terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are mentioned below: 
 
1. Laying down risk assessment plan, minimisation procedures and informing the Board of the same; 
2. Framing, implementing, reviewing and monitoring the risk management plan for the Company; and 
3. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board and/or are statutorily prescribed under the     

Listing Regulations. 
 
The Committee has formulated a Risk Assessment and Management Policy to create and protect shareholders' value by 
minimizing threats or losses and identifying and maximizing opportunities. Risk Management Policy of the Company 
outlines different kinds of risks and risk mitigating measures to be adopted by the Board. The Company has adequate 
internal control systems and procedures to combat the risk. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)  

 
As per the provisions of section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not fulfil the criteria stipulated 
under section 135 (1) of Companies Act, 2013.  Hence the provisions with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility are 
not applicable to the Company.  
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
The Corporate Governance Report pursuant to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as applicable for the year under 
review, forms part of this Annual Report. 
 

ENQUIRY COMMITTEE FOR LEAK OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION 
 
Pursuant to the amendments in SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2018, the Company has also formulated Policy for Procedure of 
Inquiry in case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and constituted an Enquiry Committee to take 
appropriate action on becoming aware of leak of unpublished price sensitive information and inform the Board 
promptly of such leaks, inquiries and results of such inquiries. 
 
The composition of Enquiry Committee for leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive information comprises of 3 (three) 
Members. Details of the same are mentioned below:  

S. No. Name Designation 

1 Mr. Ashwini Verma Chairman – Independent Director 
2 Mr. Satish Chandra Pandey Member - Independent Director 
3 Mr.  Dilip Suryavanshi Member - Director 

 

The Company has not received any Complaint related to leak of unpublished price sensitive information of the 
Company hence no meeting was held during the financial year 2023-24.  

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  
 
The Board has laid down the manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board and individual 
directors has to be made. It includes circulation of questionnaires to all Directors prepared pursuant to the provisions 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, for evaluation of the Board, Board composition and its structure, its culture, Board 
effectiveness, Board functioning, information availability, etc. These questionnaires also cover specific criteria and the 
grounds on which all directors in their individual capacity will be evaluated. 
 
All Directors responded through a structured questionnaire giving feedback about the performance of the Board, its 
Committees, Individual Directors. 
 



                
 
Criteria for evaluation of Board as a whole 

i. Board Composition & Quality; 
ii. Board Meetings; 
iii. Committees; 
iv. Core Governance & Compliance; and 
v. Risk Management. 

Criteria for evaluation of Committees 

i. Structure of committees; 
ii. Appropriateness of delegation of responsibilities by the Board to its committees; 
iii. Composition of the committees; 
iv. The meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open communication and meaningful participation; 
v. The amount of information received is appropriate for discussion and decision making purposes; 
vi. The reporting by each of the Committees to the Board is sufficient; 
vii. Committees takes effective and proactive measures to perform its functions; and 
viii. The frequency of the Committee meetings is adequate. 

Criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors 

i. Knowledge & Expertise; 
ii. Participation in Board Meetings; 
iii. Interpersonal Skills; 
iv. Professional Conduct & Independence; 
v. Diligence; 
vi. Roles & Responsibilities; and 
vii. Disclosure & Reporting. 

 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-
SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188: 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not entered into a contract or arrangement with related party referred 
to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence AOC -2 is not applicable to the Company.  

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
 
Disclosures of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to Subsidiaries/Associates/others by name and amount at the 
year end and the maximum amount of loans outstanding during the year has been disclosed in Financial Statements 
annexed with this Report. The said disclosures are also given in the Financial Statements of Subsidiary/ Associate 
Companies. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
Disclosure required as per provisions of sec 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5[2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to the Board Report as Annexure -
2. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3), the Annual Return of the Company in the prescribed 
Form MGT-7 is available on the website of the Company at www.dbiapl.com 
 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS 
 
The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial 
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and operating 
effectively. 
 
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to the requirement under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect 
to the Directors' Responsibility Statement the Directors confirm that: 
 



                
 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 

 

(b)  The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year; 

 
(c)  The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

 
(d) There is no fraud which are reportable by the Auditors to the Central Government, and which needs to be disclosed in 

the Board report during the year under review.  
 

(e) That the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

 

(f) The directors had prepared the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 on a going concern basis; 
and 

 

(g) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
Our holding Company i.e. Dilip Buildcon Limited has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual 
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been 
set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees) of the Company are also covered under the said policy. 
 

 
DEBENTURE TRUSTEE OF THE COMPANY 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 53(e) of (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, name of the 
debenture trustees with full contact details to be disclosed.   The details of the same are mentioned below:  
 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 

The Ruby, 2nd Floor (SW) 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai -400028  
Email id :  rahul.vaishya@axistrustee.in 
Tel No. :     +91 022-62300451 
Website :   www.axistrustee.com 

 

CREDIT RATINGS  
 
The Company has been assigned a credit rating of CARE BBB+; Stable by CARE Ratings on senior, listed, secured 
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (NCDs). During the year under review, there is no change in the Credit Rating.  
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FORM NO. MR-3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended] 
 
 
To, 
The Members, 
DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as High Fly Airlines Private Limited) 
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673 
Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate,  
Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh - 462016  
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has during 
the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 (Audit Period) complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Company 
for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder including any re-enactment thereof; 
ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;  
v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015;  
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2021; 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and 
j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable 

to the Company during the Audit Period) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                
 

 
vi) Compliances / processes / systems under other specific applicable Laws (as applicable to the Industry) to the 

Company are being verified on the basis of periodic Certificates under internal Compliance system submitted 
to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; (Complied with) 
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. (Complied with) 
 

We further report that during the year under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the 
Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards mentioned above.  
 
We further report that during the Audit period under review: 
 
 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors including Independent Woman Director. The processes relating to 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent generally seven days in advanceother than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. For the agenda notes which were sent at a notice of less than seven days, the requisite 
consent of the Board was taken. 

 All the decisions in the Board Meeting were carried out with majority and recorded in the minutes of the meetings 
of the Board of Directors, as the case may be. 

 
 
We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company there seems 
to be adequate systems and processed in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the period following specific events/actions took place in pursuance of the above-
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. having a major bearing on the Company affairs 
 
 
 
 
Place: Bhopal                             For Piyush Bindal & Associates 
Date: 22.07.2024                                                      “Company Secretaries” 

 
 
 
 

  Piyush Bindal 
        (Proprietor) 

  FCS – 6749 
  CP. No. 7442 

Peer Review Cert. No.: 922/2020 
Firm’s Registration No. S2012MP186400 

UDIN: F006749F000800487 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                
 

 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms integral part of 
this Report. 
 

Annexure-A to Secretarial Audit Report 
To, 
The Members, 
DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as High Fly Airlines Private Limited) 
CIN: U74110MP2010PTC023673 
Plot No. 5, Inside Govind Narayan Singh Gate,  
Chuna Bhatti, Kolar Road, Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh - 462016 
 
Our Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the 
systems are adequate and operate effectively. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by 
the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and 
appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

Disclaimer 
 

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 
Company. 
 

7. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices followed provided 
a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
 
Place: Bhopal       For Piyush Bindal & Associates 
Date: 22.07.2024                                                 “Company Secretaries” 
 

 
  Piyush Bindal 

        (Proprietor) 
  FCS – 6749 

  CP. No. 7442 
Peer Review Cert. No.: 922/2020 

Firm’s Registration No. S2012MP186400 
UDIN: F006749F000800487 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                
 

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION 
Particulars of employees 

 
Statement as per provisions of sec 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

a)  Disclosure of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the financial year ended March 31, 
2024: 

Employee 
Name 

Departmen
t 

Designation 
Educational 

Qualification 

Age 
(year

s) 

Exp
erie
nce 

Date of 
Joining (in 

the 
Company) 

Remuner
ation 

paid (Rs.) 

Previous 
employer 

%of 
Equity 
shares 
held in 
the 
Compa
ny 

Relation 
with 
Director 
or 
manager 
if any 

KRISHNA 
GODANI 

FINANCE & 
ACCOUNTS MANAGER 

Bachelor's degree-
Commerce/CA 

29 
4 04-27-2022 

                                       
10,24,900  

Bansal 
Group, 
Bhopal N/A N/A 

TARUN 
SARATHE 

FINANCE & 
ACCOUNTS DY MANAGER 

Bachelor's degree-
Commerce/CA 

29 

6 12-06-2021 

                                         
8,07,435  

MISHRA 
TIWARI & 
ASSOCIATE
S, BHOPAL N/A N/A 

SUDESHNA 
GADHAVE 

FINANCE & 
ACCOUNTS ASST MANAGER 

Bachelor's degree-
Commerce& Law/CS 

29 
1 04-01-2019 

                                         
6,57,500  MPMKWL N/A N/A 

DEEPAK 
CHAURASIYA 

FINANCE & 
ACCOUNTS 

ASST MANAGER 
(ACCOUNTS) 

Bachelor's degree-
Computer 

29 
9 02-01-2014 

                                         
6,25,000  N/A N/A N/A 

GARIMA 
SINGH 

FINANCE & 
ACCOUNTS SR EXECUTIVE 

Bachelor's degree-
Commerce 32 1.5 04-01-2017 

                                         
2,70,965  AEGIS, BPO N/A N/A 

 
 

b) there are no employees employed throughout the financial year, who was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, 
in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees; 
 
c) there are no employees employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that 
year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month; 
 
d) there are no employees employed employee throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of 
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of 
that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and 
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company. 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
DBL Infra Assets Private Limited 
 
 
         Sd/-      
Dilip Suryavanshi   
Director                     
DIN: 00039944     
 
Place: Bhopal  
Date: 08.08.2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

2

To the Members of DBL lnfra Assets private Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone lnd AS financial statements

Opinion
we have audited the accompanying standarone rnd AS financiar starements of DBL rnfra
Assets Private Limated ("the company"), which comprise the Barance sheet as at March 312024, the statement of profit and Loss (incruding other comprehensive rncome), the statement
of changes in Equity and the statement of cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of materiar accounting poricies and other expranatory information. (hereinafter referred to as"Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements,,).

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expranations given to us,the aforesaid standarone rnd AS financiar sratements givelhe information required by the
companies Act' 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view rnconformity with the rndian Accounring standards prescribed under section 133 ofthe Act, read
with the companies (rndian Accounting standards) Rures,2015, as amended, (,,rnd AS,;) and
other accounting principres generary accepted in rndia, of the stare of affairs of the company
as at March 31,2024. its ross and totar other comprehensive income, changes in equity and itscash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
we conducted our audit of the standarone rnd AS frnanciar statements in accordance with theslandards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. our responsibirities underthose standards are further described in the Auditor's Respon sibirities for the Audit of thestandarone rnd AS financiar statements section of our report. we are independent of thecompany in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the rnstitute of charteredAccountanls of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of thestandalone lnd AS financiar statemenrs under rhe provisions of the Act and the rures madethereunder, and we have furfifled our other ethicar responsibirities in accordance with theserequirements and the code of Ethics. we berieve that the audit evidence we have obtained issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standarone rnd AS financiarstatements.

Key audit matters
Key audit marters are rhose matters that, in our professionar judgment, were of mostsignificance in our audit of lhe standarone rnd AS financiar slatements of the current year.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standarone rnd AS financial
statements as a whore and in forming our opinion rhereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. we have determined the matters described berow to be the key auditmatters to be communicated in our reporl.

w
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Sr.
No.

The Company accounts for equity
investments in associate companies at cost
(subject to impairment assessment).

lnvestment in Subsidiary and Associate
Companies and its impairment and
lnvestment in Units of lnvlT

(Refer to Material Accounting policy under
Note 1 .1 0 and 1 .1 

.l - ,,lnvestments 
in

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures" and ,,lnvestments in Units of
lnvlT respectively)

The Company has equity investments in
associate companies.

Our audit
following:

procedures included the

. Obtained an understanding from
the management, assessed and
tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Company,s
key controls over the impairment
assessment.

. Evaluated the Company,s process
regarding impairment assessment
by involving auditor's valuation
experts, as applicable to assist in
assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation model including the
independent assessment of the
underly ing assumptions relating to
discount rate, terminal value etc.

. Assessed the carrying value of all
individually material inveslments,
where applicable, to determine
whether the valuations performed
by the Company were within an
acceptable range determined by
us.

. Assessed the fair value of
lnvestment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
lncome (FVOCI) to determine
whether valuation performed by
the Company is made at fair value.

. Evaluated the cash flow forecasts
(with underlying economic growth
rate) by comparing them to the
approved budgets and our
understanding of the internal and
external factors.

. Checked the mathematicat
accuracy of the impairment model
and agreed the relevant data on

For investments carried at cost where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying
value of investment is assessed for
impairment and where applicable an
impairment provision is recognised.

The Company accounts for investments in
Units of lnvlT at fair value through Other
Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI).

The accounting for investmenls is a Key
Audit Matter as the determination of
recoverable value for impairment
assessment involves significant
management judgement and eslimates
such as future expected level of operations
and related forecast of cash flows, market
conditions, discount rates, terminal growth
rate elc.

Key Audit Matter Auditor Response

w

1
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sample basis with the latest
budgets, actual past results and
other supporting documenls.

o Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the
Standalone lnd AS Financial
Statements.

Based on the above procedures
performed, we did not identify any
significant exceptions in the
management's assessment in
relation to the carrying value of
equity investments in associates
and to the lair value of
lnvestments measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI

lnformation other than the standarone rnd AS financiar statements and Auditor,s report
thereon
The company's Board of Directors is responsibre for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information incruded in the Annuar Report but does not
include the standarone rnd AS financiar starements and our auditor's report thereon. The
Annual reporr is expected to be made avairabre to us after the date of our auditor,s report.

our opinion on the Standalone lnd AS linancial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the standarone rnd AS financiar statemenrs, our responsibirity isto read the other information identified above when it becomes avairabre and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the standarone rnd ASfinancial statements or our knowredge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

when we read the other information incruded in the above reports, if we concrude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and determine the actions under the appricabre raws and regurations.

Management's responsibility for the standalone lnd AS financial statements
The company's Board of Directors is responsibre for the matters stated In section 134(5) ofthe
Act with respect to the preparation ofthese Standalone lnd AS financial slatements that give a

5
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Irrie and fair view of the financiar position, financiar performance incruding other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting
principles generarry accepted in lndia, incruding the rndian Accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (rndian Accounting standards) Rures,
2015 as amended.

This responsibility arso incrudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for prevenling
and detecting frauds and other irregurarities; serection and apprication of appropriate materiai
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonabre and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectivery for ensuring the accuracy and compreteness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presenlation ofthe Standalone lnd AS financial statements that
give a true and faar view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the standarone rnd AS financiar statements, company's Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the company's abirity to continue as a going concern, discrosing, as
applicable' matters relaled ro going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless Board of Directors either intends to riquidate the company or to cease opelations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are arso responsibre for overseeing the company's ,inanciar reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the standalone lnd AS financial statements
our objectives are to obtain reasonabre assurance about whether the standarone rnd AS
financial statements as a whore are free from materiar misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with standards
on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materiar if, individualy or in the aggregate, they courd
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone lnd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with standards on auditing, we exercise professionar
judgment and maintain professionar skepticism throughout the aud[. we arso:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone lnd AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks' and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion The risk of not detecting a materiar misstatement resurting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may invorve co[usion, forgery, intentionar omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

S,e
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i)

TA
ll) ubtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) otthe Ait,
we are also responsibre for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financiar contrors system in prace and the operating effectiveness of such contrors.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of materiar accounting poricies used and the reasonabreness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv) conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiar uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast signiricant doubt on the abirity of the company to
continue as a going concern. If we concrude that a materiar uncerrainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the rerated discrosures in the standalone lnd AS
financial statements or, if such discrosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s report.
However, fulure events or conditions may cause the company to cease ro continue as a going
concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone lnd AS financial statements
represent the underrying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incruding any significant
deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compried with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them a
relationships and other matters that may reasonabry be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters lhat were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. we describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shourd not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so wourd reasonabry be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor,s Report) Order, 2020 (,,the Order,,) issued by the
central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we grve in
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

h-
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EssrequireO by section 143 (3) ofthe Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and berief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of standarone rnd AS
financial statements.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance sheet. statement of profit and Loss incruding other comprehensive rncome,
the statement of cash Frow and statement of changes in Equity deart with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid standarone rnd AS financiar statements compry with the rnd AS
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rure 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rures,
2014, as amended.

e) on the basis of written representations received from lhe directors as on March 31,2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquarified as on
March 31 , 2024, frcm being appointed as a director in terms of sectio n 164 (2) of the Act.

I wit! respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
lnd AS financial statements of the company and the operating effectiveness of such contrors,
refer to our separate Report in ,,Annexure 

2,,to this report.

g) with respect to the other matters ro be incruded in the Auditor,s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion, the provision of
section 197 is not applicable as the Company is a private limited Company.

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor,s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rures, 2014, as amended in our opinion and rothe best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i' The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone lnd AS
financial statements.

ii The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii' There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the rnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

h^t"
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funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), incruding foreign entities
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the lntermediary shall, whether, direcfly or indirecfly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (,,urtimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (,,Funding parties,'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or othe,*ise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectry, rend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party ("ultimate Beneficiaries',) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonabre and appropriate in the
circumstance, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-crause (i) and (ii) of Rure 1 1(e), as provided under iv (a) and
iv(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March
31' 2024 ' which has a feature of recording audit trair (edit rog) facirity and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further.
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trair feature
being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rures, 2014 is appricabre from Aprir
1, 2023, reporting under Rute t l (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
on preservation of audit trail as per the sratutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

6'hlL-
(S. M. Chitale)
Partner

M. No. 1 1 '1383

uDtN 241 1 1 3838KBGQK9528
Date: May 9, 2024
Place: Mumbaa
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Referred to in paragraph fl(i)l under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements ofour report of even date

Accordrng to the information and expranations sought by us and given by the company andthe books of account and records examined by us in thl normal-coursiit auoit and to thebest of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) a) A) The company does not have any items of Property, prant and Equipment and Right-of-use Assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(;XA) ofthe order is not applicable.
B) The company does not have any lntangible Assei r"o t'"r"" r"p.rting under clause3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not appticable

b) The company does nor have any items of property, prant and Equipment and Righrof-use Assets and hence reporting under crause 3(i)(b) ofthe order are not appricabre.

c) According to the information and expranations given by the company, there are noimmovable. properties and accordingly the reporting ,no"i 
"tar"e 

i1i11c) of the order arenot applicable.

d) The company does nor have any items of property, prant and Equipment, Right of useassets and lntangible Assets and accordingly the reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of theOrder are not applicable.

e) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management, noproceedings have been initiated or is pending against the comianfouring the year forholding any benami property under the Benam i iransactions leioiiliton; Act, 198g (45of 19gg) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) a) The companl does not hold any invenlories and accordingly, reporting under clause3(i,)(a) of the Order is not applicabte.

b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits at any point of time duringthe year from banks or financial institutions and accordingly, reportinj under clause 3(ii)(b)of the Order ts not applicable.

(ili) The company has made investments in and granted unsecured loans to companies or anyother parties during the year, in respect of which:

9rr'-
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t1 0uring the year, the company has provided roans to its hording company, one associate
company and four other companies; the details are as given below. The Company hasnot provided any guarantee or security to any entity. Ttre Oetaits are given below:

(Rs. ln lakhs )

b) According to the information and expranarions given to us and based on the auditprocedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that terms and conditions on whichrhe unsecured roans have been granted are not, prima facie, prejudiciar to the interest ofthe Company.

c) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management, interestfree unsecured roans are given which are repJyabre on demand and thus there is nostipulated repayment schedule of principal and interest.

d) since the repayment schedule for loans granted is not stipulated, no loan is overdue.

e) There are no roans or advance in the nature of roan granted which has faren due duringthe year, which has been renewed or extended oi fresh loans granted to set e theoverdues of existing roans given to the same parties. Accordingry, reporting under crause3(iii) (e) of the Order is not applicable.

A-^l
/t' -

Particu lars Security Loans

Aggregate amount granted /
provided du ring the year

11289.88
- Holding

- S ubsidiaries
- Associates

6292.17
- Joint Ventures
- Others

23221 .06

ance outstand ing as at
balance sheet date in respect
of above cases

Bal

- Holding
8977 .24

4472.7 5

- Subsidiaries

- Joinl Ventures

- Associates

- Others
26,661.36

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANT

Guarantees Advances
in nature
of loans
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All parties Promoters Related
Parties

Particulars

40, 111.35 40,1 1 1 .35- Repayable on demand (A)
- Agreement does not specify any

terms or period of repayment (B)

40,111.35

100%Percentage of loans / advances in
nature of loans to the total loans

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand. The details are
mentioned below:

Rs. ln Lakhs

(iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us by the
management, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, with respect to unsecured loans granted and lnvestments made. The
Company has not given any guarantee or security during the year.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Central
Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Act, for the services provided by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable.

(vi)

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Service Tax, lncome Tax, Provident Fund and any other statutory dues. As
informed to us, there were no dues on account of Employees' State lnsurance, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Cess.

There were no undisputed amounls in respect of Goods and Service Tax, lncome Tax,
Provident Fund and any other statutory dues which were due for more than six months
from the date they become payable as at the year end. As informed to us, there were no
dues on account of Employees'State lnsurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty,
Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Cess.

b) According to the records examined by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, there were no statutory dues as at March 31, 2024 which have not been
deposited on account of disputes.

9i-

Aggregate amount of loans /
advances in nature of loans

Total (A+B) 40,111.35
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

There were no rransactions rerating to previousry unrecorded income that were surrenderedor discrosed as income in the tax assessments under the rncome Tax Act, 1g61 (43 0f 1 g61 
)during the year. Accordingry, repo(ing under crause 3(viii) of the order is not appricabre.

a) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management andrecords examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of lolns or otherborrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information and expranations given to us by the managemenl, thecompany has not been decrared wirfur defaurter-by any bank or financiar institution orother lender.

c) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management andrecords examined by us, the Company has not raised any term loans during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (c) ofthe Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management, thecompany has not raised any funds on short ter; basis during the year. iccordingty,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management, thecompany has not taken any funds from any entit-y or person on account of or to meetthe obligations of its associate company. The company does nor have any subsidiafor joint venture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is noiapplicable..

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting underclause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not appticable.

a) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management, theCompany has not raised any. money by way of i;itial public offer or further public offer(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a)of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and expranations given to us, the company has nor madeany preferential allotment or private placement of shares or converlible debentures (fully,partiarry or optiona'y convertibre) during the year. Accordingry, reporting under crause3(x)(b) of the Order is not appticable.

a) According to the information and expranations given to us by the management and basedupon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of ,."porting the true and fair view of

Q-r
N..

(x i)
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the Standalone lnd AS financial statements, we report that no fraud by the Company and
no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, there are
no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with seclion 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone lnd AS
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a) ln our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the period under audit issued to the
Company during the year, in determining, the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
them as referred to in section 192 of the Act.

b) During the year the Company's income and assets meet the criterion for registration as
Non-Banking Finance company with Reserve Bank of lndia as per Reserve bank of lndia
Act 1934. However, it does not meet the criteria of minimum Net Owned Funds as required
under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1 934. The Company has not carried
out any activities in the nature of Housing Finance Company during the year.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by

W

(xvi) a) During the year the Company's income and assets meets the criterion for registration as
Non-Banking Finance company with Reserve Bank of lndia as per Reserve bank of lndia
Act 1934. However, it does not meet the criteria of minimum Net Owned Funds as required
under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

the Reserve Bank of lndia
not applicable.

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is

d) The Group does not have any crc as part of the group and hence reporting under crause
3 (xvi)(d) is not appticabte.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not incurred cash losses during the financial year rna;n th" immediately precedin!
financial year covered by our audit.

There has been no resignation ofthe Statutory Auditors ofthe Company during the year.

According to the information and expranations given to us and on the basis of the financiar
ratios, ageing and expected dares of rearization offinanciar assets and payment of rinanciar
liabirities, other information accompanying the standarone rnd AS financiar statements, ourknowledge ofthe Board of Directors and management prans and based on our examinationof the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to berieve that any materiar uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that the company is not capabre of meeting its liabirities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fa, due within a period of one year from the barance sheetdate we' however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabirity of thecompany. we further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the auditreport and we neither give any guaranree nor any assurance that a, riabirities faring duewithin a period of one year from rhe barance sheet date, wi, get dischargeo by the corn'pany
as and when they fall due.

According to the information and expranations given to us, the company is not required to
ser aside any amount towards corporate sociar Responsibirity (csR). Accordingry, reporting
under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the yeai.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 1 06655W

AihlL-
(S. M. Chitate)
Partner
M. No. 1 1 1383
UDIN: 241 1 13838KBGQK9S28
Dale: May 9, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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A c c o u N h+JEJ,i" 2 to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the standatone tnd ASfinancial statements of DBL lnfra Assets private Limited

Referred to in paragraPh [(ii)(f)] under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirementsof our report of even date

Report on the rnternar Financiar control3 under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2Oi3 (,,the Act,,)

1' We have audiled the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone lnd AS financial
statements of DBL rnfra Assets private Limited ("the company,,) as of March g1, 2024, in
conjunction with our audit ofthe standarone rnd AS financiar statements ofthe company for theyear ended on lhat date

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

2 The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on lhe internal control with reference to standalone lnd AS financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Repo(ing (rhe"Guidance Note") issued by the rnstitute of chartered Accountants of rndia,, (rcAr). ihese
responsibirities incrude the design, imprementation and maintenance of adequate internar
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct ofits business. incrudrng adherence to company's poricies, the safeguarding of its assets, theprevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compreteness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under theCompanies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

3 our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls withreference to standalone lnd AS financial statements based on our audit. we conducled our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note and the standards on Auditing as specified under section143(10) ofthe Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial conlrols with referenceto standarone rnd AS Financiar sratements and both issued by the rnstitute of charteredAccountants of rndia. Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we compry withethical requirements and pran and perform the audit to obtain reasonabre assurance aboutwhether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone lnd AS financialstatements was estabrished and maintained and if such contrors operated effectivery in amaterial respects.

our audit invorves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of theinternal financial controls system with reference to standalone lnd AS financial statements andtheir operating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone

Itr.
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statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controlswith reference to standalone lnd AS financial statements, asselsing the risk that a materialweakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operatini effectiveness of internalconlrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
-on 

the auditor,s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemenr of the Standalone lnd AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls sy stem with reference toStandalone lnd AS financial statemenls.

Meaning of lnternal Financial controls with reference to standalone lnd As financialstatements

4 A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone lnd AS financial statementsis a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financialreporting and the preparation of slandalone lnd AS linancial stateme;ts for eldernal purposes inaccordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal Rnancial controlwith reference to standalone lnd AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairlyreflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone lndAS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thatreceipts and expenditures of the company are being made onry ln accordance withauthorisations of management and directors of the Company; anO iS1 provide reasonableassurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, ordisposition of the company's assets that 

"orld 
hrr" a material effecl on the standalone lnd ASfinancial statements.

lnherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with reference to standalone lnd ASfinancial statements

5 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone lndAS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management overrideof controls' material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,projections of any evalualion of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone lndAS flnancial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal flnancial controlwith reference to standalone lnd AS financial statements may become inadequate because of

::ilffirl. 
conditions, or that the degree of comptiance wirh the poticies or procedures may
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6 ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expranation given to us,the company has' in a'materiar respects, an adequate internar financiar contrors system wirhreference to standarone rnd AS financiar statements wi*r reference to standarone rnd ASFinanciar statements and such interna[inanciar contrors with reference to standarone rnd ASflnancial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the internalfinanciar contrors with reference to standarone rnd AS financiar statemenrs criteria estabrishedby the company considering the essentiar components of internar contror stated in the GuidanceNote on Audit of rnternar Financiar contrors over Financiar Reporting issued by the rnstitute ofChartered Accountants of lndia.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Farm Regn. No. 106655W

A'h)L-
(S. M. Chitate)
Partner
M. No. 111383

UDIN: 241 1 1383BKBGeK9s28
Date: May 09, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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(Partner)

M.No. 111383
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For the yerr ended
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0)
(t0

Revenue from Operations 16

17

5.124.20
3,194.95

't,064.0E

98.98
(lll) Totallncome (l+ll) E,323.1,1 1,163.06
(tV) Epens€5

Operating Ep€n3€!
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other elp€nses
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9,724.32
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61.23
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M
M)
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o. t2
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B)
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DBL lnfra Assets P.ivate Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Pravate Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2024

1. Material Accounting Policies and lnformation

1.1 Company Overview

The Company has changed its name from'High Fly Airlines Private Limited'to'DBL lnfra Assets Private
Limited' on 26th July 2021.

'1.2 Basis of Preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting
Standards (lnd AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under sections 133 of the Companies
Act, 201 3 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20'15, as
amended.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2024 were approved for
issue in accordance with the resolution ofthe Board of Directors on 9'h May, 2024.

1.3 Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with lnd
AS. Further, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) are also considered, wherever applicable except to the extent where
compliance with other statutory promulgations override the same requiring a different treatment.

1.4 Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome),
Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the
format prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act"). The disclosure
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Prof,t and Loss, as
prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting
Standards.

(i) it is expected to be realized or settled, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
company's normal operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

it is expected to be realized or settled within twelve months from the reporting date; or

an asset is cash or a cash equivalent uniess it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

in case of liability, the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settle
,4.'-(-(S

m

$ cHt
of the liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date

t

DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (the 'Company') is domiciled in lndia with its registered office at
Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, lndia. The Company has been incorporated under the provislons of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is presently in the business of development of infrastructure
facilities.

1,5 Current / Non-Current classification
An asset or liability is classified as 'current' when it satisfies any of the following criteria:



OBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the tinancial statements for the year ended 31 ]tarch 2024

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with Schedule lll to the Act

Operatino Cvcle

Based on the nature of services provided by the Company and the normal tlme between acquisition
of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current
and non-current

1.6 Use of estimates

The preparatlon of the financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make
estimates, .iudgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of material accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in

estimates are reflected in the flnancial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially ad.iusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed intormation
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in the relevant note.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

A. Judgements in applying material accounting policies

The judgements, apart from those lnvolving estimations (see note below) that the Company
has made in the process of applying its material accounting policies and that have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial statements pertain to useful
life of assets. The Company is required to determine whether its intangible assets have
indefinite or finite life which is a subject matter of judgement.

B. Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Determination of the estimated useful lives of items of PPE and the assessment as to
which components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful lives of items of PPE are
based on the life prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013. ln cases, where
the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule ll, they are based on
technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticip S

m
{t
U.

MUMBAI

p CHl

t

technologlcal changes, manufacturers' warranties and maintenance support



OBL lntra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Ltmited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 ltarch 2024

b) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuariat
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is
determined based on the prevailing market yields of lndian Government Securities as at
the Balance Sheet Date for the estimated term of the obligations.

c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised.

d) Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of
the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the figure included in other provisions.

e) Discounting of long-term financial instruments

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
ln case of financial inskuments which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

1.7 Functional and presentation currency

These financial stalements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

1.8 Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will now to the Company and the cost can be measurcd reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised eligible
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any direcfly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company. Advance given towards acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under Non-Current
Assets.
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DBL infra Assets Prlvate LiF.',ited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2024

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / upto the date on which
asset is ready for use /disposed of.

1.9 lntangible Assets and amortization

lntangible assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic beneflts are
capitalised upon acquisition at cost comprising the purchase price and directly attributable costs to
prepare the assets for its intended use.

lntangible Asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the same period.

lntangible assets that have linite lives are amortised over their useful lives by the straight-line method.
lntangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortised but are tested for impairment.

l.l0lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures

lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.1 1 lnvestments in Units of lnvlT

lnvestments in Units of lnvlT are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome as per
lnd AS 109 'Financial lnstruments'. The Company may, on lnitial recognition, make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI) on an
instrument by-instrument basis.

For equity investment classified as at FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instruments, excluding
dividends and interest are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit
or Loss, even on sale of lnvestments. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

'1.12 lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or
cash generating unit (CGU) may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, the company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU'S
net selling price or its value in use. Vvhere the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
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that current market assessments of the time value of money and
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Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
resadual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

pre-tax discount rate
specific to the asset.



lmpairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The impairment loss in respect of
a CGU is allocated flrst to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

1.13 Financial lnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

lnitial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, excepl for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in h/vo broad categories:-
iJ Financial assets at fair value and iil Financial assets at amortised cost. Vvhere assets are measured
at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss [i.e fair
value through profit or lossl, or recognised in other comprehensive income [i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive incomel.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model

whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the flnancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and the

contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Derecognition

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from

the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a

transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset

are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks

and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset'

lmpairment of financial asset

For impairment of financial assets, company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model. Following

financial assets and credit risk exposure are covered within the ECL model:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e'g

loan s, ties, deposits, and bank balance

;
LL?

l

t o
M MBAI

DBL lnfra Assets Private !-imited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

S



DBL lnfra xssets Private Limited
(Formeri!, High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Ma.ch 2024

b. Tlade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 'l'15.

The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables including receivables recognised under service concession arrangements.

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, then the impairment loss is
provided based on lifetime ECL.

Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition

The company initially recognises borrowings, trade payables and related financial liabilities on the
date on which they are originated.

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination whach is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Offsetting of f inancial instruments

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identifled
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("RO

,c
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with alease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for

Derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

1.14 Leases
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term of twelve months or less (short{erm leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. Lease term includes non- cancellable period of lease together with periods covered by such
options if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or reasonably certain not
to exercise the option to terminate.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liability is
subsequently measured at Amortised Cost. Lease liability is remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it wall
exercise an extension or a termination option.

1.15 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that there will be an oumow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Contingent liabilities are not
provided for and are disclosed by way of notes unless the possibility of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the
statement of profit and loss.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to seftle the obligation; and

(ii) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements however are disclosed, where inflow
of economic benefits is probable. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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DBL lnfra Assets Piivate Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1.'16 Revenue recognition

Revenue from Operations

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government.

lnterest lncome

lnterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all debt instruments, measured either at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (ElR).

Dividend lncome

Dividends are recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Other lncome

Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive arises

1.17 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing @sts are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also excludes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is ad.iusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus elements in a rights issue, share split (consolidation of share) that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity
are deemed to have been converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a I
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Dilutive potential eq s are determined independently for each period

Other lncome - Fair value gains on current investments carried at fair value are included in other
income.

1.18 Earnings per equity share
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1.19 Statement of Cash Flow

The cash llows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash
flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period as

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows.

1.20 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employment benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia
are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liabilig is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
rellably.

Post Employment Employee Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees comprise payments to government provident funds, gratuity fund
and Employees State lnsurance.

Defined Contribution PIans

The Company's contribution to defined contributions plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State
lnsurance are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when the contributions to the
respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective Funds.

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity
benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periodsi that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive lncome. The same is not eligible to be
reclassified to profit or loss. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is
computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net
defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a
result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are reco
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DBL lnfra Assets Privatr: f .irrritod
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private i-imitedl
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

\Men the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan ts curtailed, the resulting change in beneflt
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of
Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

'1.21 lncome Taxes

Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. lt is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the specified year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes, i.e. the tax base. Deferred tax is also recognised an respect of carried forward tax losses and
tax credits. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A
deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The
company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax laabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and the
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

1.22 Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is highly probable.

Assets designated as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount at designation
and fair value less costs to sell.

1.23 Fair value measurement

Fatr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction beween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on ption that the transaction to sell the asset or

v.'
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liability takes place either:

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT,
during the year that MAT is permitted to be set off under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (specified yeao. ln
the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement.



. ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

For cash and other liquid assets, the fair value is assumed to approximate to book value, given the
shorlterm nature of these instruments. For those items with a stated maturity exceeding twelve
months, fair value is calculated using a discounted cash flow methodology.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sutficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

rt
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Forme.ly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)
Notes to the financiat statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.



OAL NFRAASSEIS PRIVATE LIUTIEO
(Fo,meny Hbn Fry Aldln.. Pnv.t Ltmtr.d)

ltob. to nn.nchl !l.r.m.nn to. th. y..r..d.d !l r.rch 2024

Not 12 Tr.d. R*dobL.

31 ll.rch 2024 3l M.r.h 2021
Cuirrot
(.) Tr.dc Rcc.iv&L. col|d(l.r!d Cood - S€omd
O) Tr& R.c.n tl. cfirkhrrd good - Lr.E CUod.
(c) Tr{. R.c.k !5. vrl*.n h.y. .ignlldrt hq!.!e h Cr.dt Rtst
(O Tr.d. R.c.lvia. - cr!(t rnp*ld

Less: Aloflanc6 br Ep€ct.d Cr.dit toss

,,003.49

1,003.49 153.15

1,003.49 r53.t5

1003./tg !5!.t5
'hE amounl is r€c.iv.Dle iom r€blsd pati.s

2.1 Th.r! I! no !d. r.c.iv& du. nom.ny (ll!.ror o. 
'ly 

omcs of tlc Conpany, eih€r s6vcraay orirint, wiBl !,ry oth.r p6€on, ortom dry ltms
or privat€ corrp.nilE h $tld any dkaclor la 6 p.rh.f. . dlEctoa ol a m€mb.r.

2.2 Tade Rec€ivabbs aoeino sdedute
ln L.t

Outtt nding for tolloring p.riod! ftDln du. d.t. ofp.ym.nt

Ai al March 31.2024
Undispuied Trads lecot.bles - consid€red good 1003 49 i,003.49

(h)
Undi$ulod T6do Dcoivabbs - lNtli,ih have silltlcsnt hcr6as. h crsdtt

Undispuled Trade recoivabl€s - cr6dit impaircd
Oispul€d Trade Receivabl€s considor6d good

Dlrputad T€d6 ltcalvabi.! - r$l.h hav6 abnncant incrEa!. h cred

Dispuled Trade rcceivau€s - crodil impai€d
1003,49 1003.49

Out t nding torfollowing porlod3lrcm du. d.t ofp.ym.nt

2-3 yerr3

Ar .t M.rch 31,202!
(D Undispd€d Trat,8 receivabl€s - consir66d good 153.15 153.15

(0 Undlspotad Trada rcc.ivabbs - wiin hav6 dg[ifcant ircrease h c.edt

(ii, Undisplled T,Ede rec€ivrbhs - credit impairsd
(iv) )ispured Trade Recaivabl$ consirercd good

(v) Oispul6d Tr.d€ leceivables - trl ch hrvo signifcsnt incrsas€ h credit

(vi) O'sput€d Trade receivables - cr6dit impaired

153.15 ,53.15

;.
M MBAI

$.

I

T

t!

)o

v-l

m

153.15

Tt(,l

g
I {,ii)

I t"r





DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMFED
(Formerly High Fly Alrllne3 Priyrto Llmltod)

Noter lo financial sEtomsnt3 for the year endsd 3l lrarch 2024

Not€ :- 4 Loans

4.1

ln Lakhs

The Company has given interest free loan to its related parties as permissible under seclion 186(11) of the
Companies Act 2013 to companies engaged in infrastructure activities; except in one case where the Company
has charged inlerest on loan given to one ofthe parties grouped under'Other Related Parties'.

The loans are given for expansion and general purpose of the business of the respective companies.
The loan given is repayable by the related parties'on demand'.
Disclosure with respect to loan granted to promoters, Directors, KMPS and the Related parties (as defined under
companies Act,2013) other severally or joantly with any other person that are repayable on demand is given
below:

As on 3l tlarch 2024 in Lakhs

in Lakhs

t
t

4.2
4.3
4.4

Ytr
lJ- m

Parliculars 31 ltarch 2024 31 ilarch 2023

CuIIent
Related Pardo!
Loan to Holding Company
Loans to Associate Companies
Loans to Other Related Parties

8,977.24
4.472.75

26.661.36
12.632.76

3440.30

TotalCurrent 40,1t't.35 16,073.05

Typo of Borower Amount of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and

Advances
Promoter
Directors
KMPs
Related parties 40.11'1.35 100.00%

Total 40,111.35 100.00%

Type of Borrower Amount of loan
out3tanding

Percentage to the
total LoanS and

Advances
Promoter
Directors

KMPs
Related parties 16.073.06 100.00%

Total '15,073.06 '100.000/o

$. cH/

As on 31 ilarch 2023



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LI ITED
(Formerly Hlgh Fly Aidines Private Limited)

Noto3 to financial statements for the yoar andsd 3t jtarch 2024

Note :- 5 Cesh Cash Eouivalents
(Rs. ln Lakhs

.ln Lakhs

(Rs. ln Lakhs

Particula.E 31 March 2024 3l March 2023

48.25
415.21

3.16

80.61
180.79

(a)

(b)
(i)
(ii)

Cash in hand
Balances with Banks :

Current Account
Fixed Deposits

Fixed Oeposits having maturity more than 12 months
shown under Other Financial Assets (Reigr Note 6)

Less
463.46

398.01

264.56

264.s5

Particulars 3l March 2024 31 March 2023

7.03 12.03
(5.00)

Non-Current
Advance Recoverable

Less: Provision for Doubttuldeposit (Refer Note 21)

Withheld Money
Bank Deposits with more than '12 months matu Refer Note

7.03
9.69

398.01

7.03
9.69

Total 114.73 16.72

Particulars 31 March 2024

Non-curront
Unamortised Processing Charges
MAT Credit Entatlement

18.02
o.67

'1 10.90
0.67

Total Non-current 18.69 111.57

Tax Deducted at source and Advance Tax (Net of Provisions)
Balance with Govt. Authorities
Advance lo Vendors
Unamortised Processing Charges
Unbilled Revenue

Current

78.15
0.70

92.88
4,555.68

62.98
87.14

0.17
172.61

Total Current 4,727.41 322.90

Total 4,716.10 131.17

MUMBAI

$

ACc

o

Note :- 6 Other Financial Assets

Note :. 7 Other Current and Non Current Assets

Total 65.45

3'l March 2023



OBL NFRA ASSET'!i PRVATE U]IiTEO
(Form.rty Hlgh Fly Airli.E3 Prlyrte Umited)

Not a to rin.ncirl ttlt ments lor tho y.rr.nd.d tl liiarch 2024

Nolc t: Equitv Sha.o Caoital

Particula.3 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorlaod ahrr. C.pitrl
50,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(P.Y. 50,00 000 Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each)

500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

It.uod, auboc.ibed .nd tullt' paid-up 3ha.e capitrl
20,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each tully paid up
(P.Y. 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, tully paad up)

200.00 200.00

Total 200.00 200.00

tn Lakhs

.) Tarma/rights .ttrchad to equity 3h.re3
i. The Company h6s only on€ clsss of 3haros roton€d to a3 oquity shsr€s having a fac€ value of R3.'l O 6ach. Hold€r ol equity shares is
enlitlod to one vole per share.

ii. Of the sbove, 20,00.000 (P.Y. 20,00,000 ) equity shar€s are held by the Hotding Company.
iii. 10070 €qui9 shares of the Company has b€en pledgcd in favour of the Debenture trusie€ i.e. Axjs Trusl€o Sorvicss Limil€d.

b) Reconcili.tion ol the no. of 3h.re3 tnd thount out t ndlng at tho b.ginning end et th. cnd of the reporting ye.r:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Numbers Amollnt

(Rs.ln Lrkhs )

Numb€rs Amounl
(Rr.ln Lrkhs )

Al the beginning of the year
lssued during the year

Outstanding al the end of the year

200.00 20 00 000 200.00

20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00

Det.il! ot shareholdeB holdi more then 5'l. ihare. in th€

' 20 shar€s are held by individuals as nominees of the Company

Oetails of oter sha in the

Note 9: Othcr Eouitv

i. Retained Earn

ii. Other

3'i March 2024 31 Ma.ch 2023Padiculars
Num bers % of holdinq % of holding

Equity aharoa of Rr. l0..ch Iully pald
Dilip Buildcon Limal6d' 20.00.000 100.0090 20,00,000 100 00%

31 March 2024 31 Ma.ch 2023

No. ot Shares 3haae! No. of Share3
% of total

!hare3

% Change
during the

yeet
Dilip Buildcon Limited 20,00.000 100.00% 20,00,000 100.007o

20,00,000 't00.00% 20,00,000 r00.00%

3l March 2024 31 March 2023
Bal6nce at the beginning of the year (11,659.93)
Loss for the year {5.151.99) (6,0s9.47)
Remeasur€ment gain on post employm€nt benefit (net of tax) 0.88
A.lance at the end of the (16,81't.04) (11,659.93)

Particulars 3l March 2024
Balance at the beginning oflhe y6ar 2.410_39
Remeasuremenl gain on revaluation of lnvesimEnilnet-iEif 1,525.65 2,470.39

yearBelance at the end of lhe 3,996.04 2,170.39

TotalOther 12,815 189.

MUMBAI

ACc
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F-TS

20,00.000

Promoter Name

Particulals

| (5.600.16)l

3l March 2023

# Retairxd Er.ninga: Retained eamings are the proftts or loss thal the Compsny has eam€d or incuned tilldete. less dividends or olher distributions
paid to shareholders.



D3L I]*RA A86ETS PMAIE I.IITED
{Form.rry Hth F AtIn6 Prir.a. Lhbd}

Loa.. to lln ncLl drt rr.lit ior th. y..r .rd.d tl IrEh 202t

]{oL l0: Bolrollnlti

31 M.rch 2024 31 U.rch 2023

{.) s.cund
tlon Conv.rdbh D.b.nt!r.. .t.mortL.d co.t
13% 7027 No.r conv€niuc Dob.ntuE of Rt. 9.61.575 ..ch
(P.Y. 1 3% 7027 Non c..tv.rlr c DctGnlur.s of Rs. 9.61 ,576 each)

67,569.95 67.569.95

Tot l l{on4u.Ent Bo.rorlng.
L.ss:Curcni mduflies of non-curcnr borroxinqs

67.559.95
16.892.50

67.559.95

on<urrent bonowines il,677,15 67,569.95
Curarr

(., Clnlrn meauritc! d tlon Ct,I. d tonanlng.

(b) Unt curd
Fro.n Rdat d P*ties

15.892.50

2.507.06
16.692.50 2 507.06

Tgtal bo.ro*ing3 67.569.95 70,077.01

10,I Oatalb ot taina d rrprt'lrr.ltt and aacualdaa p.oyldad ln a..pact of aacu.d noll conyardua datartutta a'. aa unda]:
On 31{ August, 2021 and 26[h fuobcr 2021. lh. Comp.ny h.d i3su.d 5,827 and 1,200 Non Coowniuc D€t]cntur6 Esp.ctvdy on p.iv.tc d.c.m6ntb.i. el .n i$€ pric. ot R3. 10 lrktu P.r d.bcnturc tor en .gor.gEtc con idcrdion ol Rs. 70,270.00 l.khs. Th. Orb.ntur6 ot the Compaiy arc li6t d on
Bombty Sloct Ex.hange.Thc Comp.ny h.d ur.d th. proe.d. in accord€nce with th6 ott€ds .tal6d in th. Pl.odncnt Docum6nt.

A3 pcr lho .tlcve.t d,xls. mcnlioicd an lhc Dcbcnlurc Trusl Ocad,Cornprny had lh. optioo lo \otunlJily rrdacm lha Mnturrs ald bsGd on lh6 !amc,
dudng thc qu.dd.idcd Dcc.mb.r 31 ,2022 , th. Comp.ny hrd rud.cntcd NCD3 aggrcortirB to RB.27oo.oS l.khr by Gd'rcjng lhG fa vduG ., NCO f.om
Rr.10.00.000 6.dr to R8.9.61 .576 cedr.

Th. r.cuffca orovid.d is as tol*3:
i) Pt dg|! ovcr 100% .qdty .h.r6 oa lhc Compay.
i) Plcdg€ on 49% €qdty oa thc Sp.cif6d Proicd! to b. crr.tcd by th. tr.su€r

iai) PLdgc o€r invcaffiE n in unil! oa thram lnv{T rnd lxduilr CcdgE ha3 b6on dlat.d a! p.r ihc tafi3 of lhc tranlaction c sct otlt undcf r€l6vsnt
dausc of thc Mwa tru$ Dc6d.

iv) Co.por.t! guil ltc./ Perrn Udod.ting l.om Dl.p AdHc.n Umnad. ti cvcr, G€r.ntdd Odi!.tioE.hdt Gducr in a progr..!iv! mann r
purlud b enicvcrnGrn of coD p(ojrrd by prci.d.

v) A d*!6 by r.y oa a d.cd of hypo(h.t ion on lh. (i) d.b( .6rvic. rc..rvc accolni lo b. m-ntinGd by lh. bsu.i (ii) rhc plrsart *rd firtur.
id.r fi.d bt* eunl. in wti$ C llr R.c.ivabL. of lh. l!!U.r shdl bc crodilcd induding d ftnur. d. proc.c(lr to b€ ltclivld by bsu.r upon
rCc of tlc Spctjfild Prcirds dthcr anto th. privd. lnwnmcit Trult ('lnvrf) or to .ny $ird piry, ..rd (iii) Comprry lntra c.oup Lo.m evitcd by
th6 Sp.cifi.d Proi.ds from th6 blucr.

Yi) Thc comp y Ms mrd! FOR wotlh R3. 100 lskh! wilh lDBl Bank, wtlidr i! nol 3ubi.cl lo licn or S.curlty lnt.lr'l or wtidt is oth€rwis€ rcsiiid€d. for
cornpliance of Sch.dulG 2 : Cov.narn! .nd Undorretings of Amendcd DTD cxeutod on 26th Msrdl 2024.

Thc dclailr c, r.dcmolion is as tolloN/sl
i) Fil3! Fac. vdll€ r.d.mplion shell bc on th. dac l.lling 39 monlhs ancr $c D6€mcd Dalc of Allotm.nt .nd lhcrcall.r.ad! subs qucnt rcdemBion

shali b. mad. at in ecordenc. with lhc R.d.mFaon Schedule. Horxev6r. 6 p€r thc rrlcvenl d.u.. m.ntioocd in the Dcblntur€ Trust
k,Cdnpeny ha th€ oplion lo volunlerily r.d.cm th6 Dlb.fllur.s and bas.d on th6 ssm6, the coop.ny h.3 r.<|.ern6d dobentur.s 

'rnou 
ing to

R3 2700.05 lakhs dudng thc fnenci.l y.,l 2022-23_

ii) ThG dcb.nlurca are to b. r.dc.mrd .t pr.mium cd R3. 33,523.90 takhs d thc cnd ot rh€ lorm.
iii) Thc dctals of r6d6mdion or grin jp.l vdn oa dcbcnturcs ar€ as ioltotisl

Sr.t{o. Rod.mption D.t.s Amoud (in ltiR
L.khr) R.d.mpti,on {%l

1 28-l.lov-24 a_146.25 12 500/0
2 2&Feb-25 8.446.25 12-50%
3 28-$ay-25 a 415 25 12.50%

2&AugF25 41/,625 12.50%
5 28{lov,2s 8.446.25 12_50vo
6 2&FeE26 8.it{6.25 't2_50vo
7 2A-May26 8.446.25 '12_50vo

8 28-Aug26 a_46.20 12_50%
Total 67.569.95 100.00%

10.2 ReoavmentSch.dulo:
Fili.ncirl Ye.r 2023-2a

Fin.nci.l Yo. r 2022-23

Th.fc ir m cha.g. rr*rt B p.rxlne to. tdisf..lioi an Glelion to boro*ing3 rtidl i3 yd to ba rlgadclld lilh RqrJrar of C.mpsnkR b.yond th. nEt'nory

ln

ln

B.yond 3 Years
l3% Noo 16.E92.50 33 785 00 16.E92.45 67.569.95
Total 16,692.50 50,677.45 57,569.95

l-3 y..6
1 3% Non Converliu. Menrures 16 692 50
Iot l 16.E92.50 50.577.45 67.559.95

MUMBAIs
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10.3

't0.4 R.d.mplio. R..crw do.in9 thc cun r y.a and p.cvioui F.r do6 to inad.quacy of profits in

t sos??,.sT 6?i6rss



3l M.rch 202lt 31 M.rch 2023
Currt$a

(.) bt l outdandilc duca ot mirc a;rpri.63 .rd lma q$.rp(l{!.
(b) d dJtd.rl('hg dur. o, crrrbrr dEr th.n mirD .nr.qit{r. rld

.ln{ cntaapaira

't32.05

ln

1l.l Thcre eru no outllending du.. peyable to v6ndori tlgirirr.d undcr MSME Ac1, 2006 snd hav€ lupdi.d any goo<E or provid.d rny lcwicr6 to th€ Company,
h6nc€, no int rcat l. epplic.dc.

11,2 Tr.d.P.y.ba...g.lne:

A. .t March 31, 2024 ln
Ouittr.dlng ior follorving Irriods from due dll ol p.ym.m

1-2 y..n 2-3 yaar3 o.. th.n 3
Total

ii) MSME
(i0 Otners 132.05 't32.05
('ii) Oisputed dues -MSME
(iv) Dispuled dues - OheB

Tot l 132.05 132.05

l{ote '12: Othor Financial lirblliti.r
ln

3'l M.rch m24 3'l M.rch 2023
Currtrn
Acqued Ee.olcs
CreditoE lor E)Qansas
Sifling Fa.s Pay.bl6
Relentjon mon.y
vv]lhheld mon.y
EmploF€ rdai.d peyedos

2.02

30.38
0.34

44.78

130.74

o.22

2-26
31.66

0.58
16.38

34.69
3.41

Total 208.4E 90.98

T
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OAL NFRA ASSENS PRTVAIE LIITEO
(Fo l.'ly Hlgh Fly Alrlln.. Ftlv.t Llntt d)

Xot . to ffn.ncl.l .trbrlxnt ,or th. y.& .nd.d !t ta.nh 2O2a
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,;rrl



DBL NFRA ASSETS PRIVAIE Uf,ITEO
lFom.rlv Hioh Flv Airlin . Prlv.t Llmlt dl

Nolos to fin.ncill.t tomonts to. th. ve.r.nrbd 3l a.ch 2024

Not 13: Ooferred Trr

i. Amount recognliod ln proth or lo3s

Particulars For lhe year ended
31 ilarch 2024

For the year onded
3'l March 2023

Cudont incorna tax:
Cunent income tax chaee

Dorcrred t x:
Relating to origination and levBrsal of tornporery daferences (513.30) {831.94)
lncom. t .x axIaEa Dported in tho atatam.nt ot p.ofrl.nd
loaa

(5 r3.30) (831.s4)

(ii)Deferred Tax

Year end6d 31 March 2024i

Particulars Opening Balance
01 April ,2023

Recognised in
Profit and Lo6s
(credit) /charge

Recognised in Other
Compiehensive

(credit) /charge

Closing
B.l.nca

3t March,2024

Det r..d Tax Aaaata
Provision for 6xp6nse alloulEd for lax purpore on p6ym6nt basis 108 0.12 096

Tot l Oeferred Tar Asse& [Al 1.08 0.12 0.96

Ooror..d T.x Li.bllltio.
Difference in carrying valu6 and ta)( b6se of lnvestmenls canied
et Fair Value

Acturial Gain
830.E6 513.'t2

0.30
1,343.97

0.30
lotal Oeferred Tax Liabilitle3 [B] 830.86 513.42 1,344.27

Liabilitio3(Net) [B-Al s29.78 o.12 (513.42) 1.343.3'l

ln

Year ended 31 March 2023:

Particulars Oponing Balance
01 Apnl,2022

Recognired in
Profit and Lo6s
(ciedit) /charge

Recogni36d in Other
Comprehen!lve

lncome
(credit) /chargp

Clo3ing
Balance

3l t'lrrch,2023

Oafarrcd Tax Aia.t
Provisioo for expen$ allo\ir€d fo. tax purposo on payment basis 1.08 1.08

Tolal Deferied Tax As3ets IA] 1.08 1.08

D.r.r.cd Trx LLbllhh.
Diffarence in canying vrlue and tax be!€ ot lnvestment! canbd
at Feir Value 830.86 830 86

Tolal Oeferrcd Tar Liabilities tBl 830.86 830.86
D€terred irx Liabilities (Net) [B-Al 1.08 (830.86) 429.78

Rs.ln Lak

nl

MUMBAI

$. c
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DBL IiIFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LI ITED
lFormerlv Hioh Flv Airlin.3 Prk.r. Limitad)

ln
Particul.rt 31 $atch 2024 31 March 2023

Duties and Taxes 3.30 2.E8

Total 3.30 2.48

Note'15: Provisions
ln

Particulars 3't March 2024 31 irarch 2023

0.56
2.38

0.67
3.00

2_93 3.67

25.667.59
(3,491.24)

15,111.50

22.176.35 15,111.50

22,179.28 15,115.17

0.19
4,489.68

0.69

0.18

043
4,490.55 0.61

Non curront
Provision for Componsated abs€nco6
Provision fo. Grafuity

Provision for lnterest and Redemplion of Debentures
Less: Paymenl of interest dunng lhe year

C!relrl
ProviBion tor Comp€nsated.bi€nc€s
Provison tor subcontEct charges
Provision for Gr6tlity

Totalprovi!ions 26,669.84 15,115.78

-

!-
mG

Note 14: Other Current liabiliti€s

I



OBL I]'FRA  SSETS PRIVAIE I.TIEO
(Fo.mrly Hhh Fry Al ln . Prh.b Lldbir)

Xob to thrr|chl .trbrnfitr ,or l't. y..r .lr.r.d 3t X.rrh 202a

Xot ta : R.Ytnuo ftlm O!.rrdolt.

31 Mrrch 2024 31 Mrrch 2023

(i) lnt rr3t incom.
- lntcllst lncomo
- lntcB3t on lncomc tax cfund
- lntlr.rl incomc on uniE of lnvlT

(ii) OMdcnd tu n invrstncnt in uniis of lnvlT
(iii) R.v!6.1ol proddon for doubtd dcbt

173.96

1,256.r5
1.759.42

5.00
Tot l 3,194.95 98.98

ln

31 irrrch 2024 !l L..Eh 2023

5 124 20 1 064.08
Tot l 5.128.20 1,062t.0E

l{oto 17 : Othor lncomc
ln

Not 18 : Co.t ol Consruction
ln

Fo. t,|c y..r.nd.d
31 m.ich 202{ 31 [..ch 2023

Subcontr.ctor ch.r!63 4.967.69 960.21

Total 4,967.69 960.21

Note'19: Finrnco Cort!

3'l H.rch 2024 3'l lr.rch 2023

B.nk Chal!.i
DitcDunlin0 of lnbrr aM redemplion premium on

Un.morli..d Proclr.in9 Ch.m€3
lntlr! l on diEct tar6

0.02
10 556.09

172.61

0.01

0.16

9.556.44

17',\_70

Tobl 10,728.71 9,724.42

ln

ln

ln

3'l lrrrch 202 3t ihrch 202!

SC.da.
Companaabd ah..ncaa
G..tutty
EmdoFr Contihrlirn to povid.ri and o0t .
.t tubry fundr

39.65

0.45
0.82

132

55.82

0.94
3.43

1.5E

Tot l 12.21 61.f7

Not€ 20 : Emoloves B€nofrt Erpon3.3

Note 21 : Othor Ero€nss!

31 M.rEh 202ll 3l t'l.rch 2023

P.yrn nt to Ardibrt (R*. Notc 24)
Ivl{tcalhncola Ep.nac
lnt rr.t on lnditld T.Er
Prct !l*)nd T.x p.i,
Tour end Travd E@r|!.!
Oraclor aifling lcar
Advlrliaananl crpcnaa.
Pr*!.irrd .nd Coll.ttt .rcy dl.rg€.
L.gd F...
o.po.it Ert6an dl (R.r.r troic 6)

Note 6Provi.ron tor Ooublul

3.00
1.92
0.31

0.33
0.t3
1.55

2.00
'r9.39

8.95
5.00

3.00

3.29

0.03

0.03
0.44

2.30
1_12

30.03

15.69

5.00
Totrl 45.58 61.23

MUMBAI

i

o m
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58.61

20.47
19.51



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LItrITEO
(Fo.m.dy Xlgh Fly Arrllna3 Prtv.ta Ltnlted)

Not* to llnancl.l rt tem.ntt for th. y.ar end6d 3t arch 2024

Note 22: Erceollond lt6m.

For the year fidad
31 arch 2024

For th€ ye.r endod
3l a.ch 2023

Proft on Sale of shares of Assocjate Coopanies
Proft on Sale ot units of lnvlT

2,567.26
27 _63

3.587.88

Total 2,594.89 3,s87.88

ln Lakhs

ln

22.1 : Excoptlon.l ltem:

The Cdnpany "OBL lnfra A$eb Privata Umiled' Co|APL") atong with its holding co.npany "Oilip Buitdcon Umned., CDBr) had
execuled a no.FtirtirE Term Sh€€t, wilh 'Shrem lnvlT' (an infiEslructure inveslneot bus! registercd under lndian Trust Ad 1882
with SeoJdlie! and Excfiange Board of lr|(!a) on January 21, 2022, ior transiening ttEir inrest nent in Equity Sha.e Cadtal snd
P.omolei's UhseclJr€d Loan in resp€ct o, t€n $/baidiaries (Hybrid Annuity Model CHAM") pn*rcfs). Equity fansfer to Shrem lnvlT
shall be comdet€d in e progre6sive manner all6 the cornpletion ol the proiecG, sribis:t to receipt of approvals lio.n 

'le 
respeclive

prErject lendeG and N}iAl. The cansideration for the transfer of shares will be received in torm of Units of the lnvit.

During ttle year ended 31 Mardr 2023, 100% Equity Share Capital of OBL Bellary gyrapura Highways Private Limited, DgL Gofiar
Khairatunda Highways Privale Limated DBL Bangalore Nidagatl,a Highways Pvt Ltd and DBL Byrapura Chalhkere High\raF Pvl Ltd
and 49% Equity Share Capital of OBL R6^6 Sidhi Highways Pvt Ltd was transien€d to Shrem lnvlT againsl whici 48,28,702 lJnits
ai a pice of Rs. '101.31 per unit and 2.75.72.440 Units at a pnce of Rs. 104.70 per unat in aggregate value of Rs. 33,760.25 takhs
$ere received as @nsicleBtion and the Promolols Unsecued Loans was aepaid by the respeclive companies by way of bank
transtet. The Company has eam€d prcllt ol Rs. 3,587.48 hkhs on all these lransactions and disdosed as a Erart ol'exceptional
item' in the statement of Proft and Loss.

Nole 23: Remeasurement oaln on revaluatlon ol lnve3lment

For the year ended
3'1 ilarch 2024

For the yaar ended
3l Ilrch m23

Remeasuremenl gEan on reyaluation of lnvestrnent in units of lnvlT
Note 3.3)

2.038.77 3.301.25

Total 2,038.n 3,301.25

Note 24: PavmenB to Auditors

ln

P.niculars
For th€ year end,ed

31 March 2024
For tl|e ye.. ended

3l rrch 2023

For Stratutory Audit
Fo. Limiled Review

1.50
1.50

1.50
1.50

Total 3.00 3.00

Note 25: Earnino oer Shere {Basic and d uted)

6
\-.{t

u-
n

For the yeaa ended
31 Ma.ch 2024

For the year onded
31 tlarch 2023

(4,866.20)

(285.79)
(6,060.59)

1.12
(s,151.99)

20,00,000

(6,059.47)

20,00,000b) Wejghted average number of equity shaGs used as denominator
Basrc and Diluled of face value of Rs '1 0/- each (257.60) (302.97)

M MBAI

N\. cH/

9

Dudng the year end€d 31 MaEh 2024, 49% Equity share capitalof OBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Private Umited, 49% Equity
share capital of Pathrapalli Kathghora Highweys Private Liftited and 21% Equity share capital of DBL RewB Sidhi Highways Pdvate
Limaled as t6nsfen€d to Sh.em lnvlT against which Rs.'t6,337.51 lakhs u€re received as consideration and promote/s unsecured
Loans was rePaid by the rBpective companies by way of bank transter. The Company has earned proit of Rs.2567.26 lakhs on all
these tEnsactions and ii is di6dosed as a part ot 'exceptional item, in lhe statemenl of profit and Loss.

Dudng the )ear ended Mat(J.t 31,2024, fie Company has translered the co.nplete stake hdd in Dhrol Bhadra High\Nays Private
Limiled, Oodaballapur Hoskole Highways Privale Ltd and Repalle,.rada HighwEys Privale Umiled to ils holding Company Dilip
Buildcon Limited. The Company hes eamed Nil pmlit / Loss on these transactions.

During the year enaled 31 Ma(*t 2024, 48,28,702 units of Shrem InvlT is hansfened to t^/o parties against which Rs.5,408.14 lakhs
$/ele receaved as considetation, The Corhpany has eerned proft of Rs. 27.63 lafths on this transaction and disdosed as a part of
'exceptional ite.n' in the statement of Profil and Loss_

Particulars

a) Loss for th€ year before tar (Rs tn Lakhs)
Add(Less) : Attributable Tax thereto (Rs. ln Lakhs)
Loss afrer Tax (Rs. ln Lakhs)

TS



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Privete Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l |la?ch 2024

Note 26: Related partv transactions disclosure as reouired under lnd AS 24:

Details of related
Name of related parlies Nature of relationship
Dilip Buildcon Limited
Narenpur Punea Highways Ltd.

Dilip Suryavanshi
Pooja Maheshwari
Ashwini Verma
Satish Chandra Pandey
Mayank Jiniwal
Pragya Raghuwanshi
Pachwara Coal Mines Private Limited
Bangarupalem Gudipala Highways Limited
DBL lnfratech Private Limited
DBL Poondiyankuppam Highways Private Limited

Holding Company
Associate Company

Director
lndependent Director
lndependent Oirector
lndependent Direclor

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Subsidiary of Holding Company
Subsidiary of Holding Company
Subsidiary of Holding Company
Subsidiary of Holding Company

Name of related parties 3l-03-202/t or Till Date of Transfer % Share Holding
Nature of Relationship Till Date of Transfer

DBL Nidagatta lllysore Highways Pvt Limited Associate Company (Till 02 Aug 2023) 49.00%
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited Associate Company lTill 11 Mat 2024) 25.08%
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd Assocrate Company Uill 11 Mat 2024) 49.OO%

Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company (Till 30 Oct 2023) 49.O0%
Repallewada Highways Limited Associate Company (Till 11 Mar 2024)
DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited Associate Company (Till31 Jul 2023)
Narenpgr Pumea Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company

Name of related parties 3't-03-2023 31-03-2023
Nature of Relationship % Share Holding

DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt Limited Associate Company 49.000/0
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited Associate Company 30.12%
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company 49.00%
Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company 49.O00/o

Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company 49.000/0
Repallewada Highways Limited Associate Company
DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited Associate Company 21.O0%

{i. CHi

ACc

i S{
\-

m

49.O00/o

21.O0o/o

49.00%

49.00./.



O€T ItIfRA ASSETS PRIVATE T. ITED
lFo.m.rly HlCh Fly Al n6 Prtv.t Umh.d)

l{oL.lo tln.ncl.l .Lr.m.ntt ior th. y.tr.rd.d 31 X.rch ZO2{

Itot 2a: Ralatad oartv trnaacdorB dtrctoault a rfiulrld und.r tnd AS 2a:

D.t ll. ol rd.t dp.rtyt n..ctoB

N.lur. of tr.n3.ction Y..r.nd.d ll IrEh
m2a

Grand Total Yaar cndad !'l X..Eh
2Il23

Holdlng Sutnldl.ry
ol Holdlng
Comp.ny

Holdlng Gr.nd Toi.l

(0

Tnn!.ctlonr during th! y.rr

Srla d hv.ffiant
OBL R.IJE Slddhl Hlohway. Ad Lirftd
DBI- Brigalorl' Nidqrt. Hbhwey! P\rl Linit.d
DBt Bc}.y Byr'.Flrr HlJh$yr Pvt LimiEd
Dodrb.Lpur Hoskol. ltghr,aF Art Ltd

P.thr${ f.atEhor. Hlrhw.y. Arl Lld
DAL Nir.c8ft M}!d. HighhF An Ltd

Dhrol &l*. HEl ryt Bn Ltd

R.p.l6r,.d. H(irw.ys Lhitcd
DBL Byraoft ch&fhcrc Hlghffiys hrt Linit.d
qco.tr xh.iitrndr HighEF p{ Umncd

951.26

2.474.01

1 629.90

11.1E9.09

1.943.41

2.616.E5

2,171.01

1.529.90

11,1E9.09

1.943-41

2.616.86

2.219.71

10,730.57

2,6n.6

1.969.40

1.&7.12

2.219.7'1

10.7W-67

2.677_S

1.969.40

r.807.12
20.E04.53 20,804.53 19.121.26 19.12a.26

(i0 lnvaalrltant durlm tlta vcar
Dodeb.LFlr tlorkot. Hiqhurayr Pvl Ltd
t*fipur Purn . High$nyr An LE
ohrcl thedre HlghwaF P\d Ltd

P.thnp.l Katnghore HighrEyr Art Ltd

Rcp.l6da Highffiy3 Limn.d

122.19

1149.65

117.@

519.E6

122_19

1,149_65

1/17.@

619.86

1.11i1.81

976.94

456.60

620.97

1.1t4_El

976.94

45€.60

620.97
2.038.70 2,036.70 3,38r.32 3,3E1.32

Lorn Glv.n
Oilp Eoildcon Lld

DBL lnlral.ch Pdvrtc Limil€d

OaL PoondiFntuppem Highvays Pvt Ltd

Dodahlepur Ho3tolc Highw".y3 Pvt Ltd

B$grup.l6m Gudipsle Highways td
lL.r.npul Pumla Hig,lldaF Pvt Ltd

18.110.72

3,516_75

2,031.sti 2.031.55

2-182-25

!62.r3
3,274_17

162.13

3,274.17

2 142.25

23,659.0t 11,2E9.EE 2,03't.56 2,142.25 3,/UO.30 5,622.55

ln

e

q
t m

951.20

(iiD

1r.289.88



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LITITEO
(Form.rly Hlgh FlyAlrlln!3 Prlvrt Lhlt d)

iiot . io fln.ncl.l 3t t m.nts tor tha y..r ond.d 31 f.rch 2021t

Not! 26: R.l.t d p.rtv lr.n..ctiorc dlsclocurp as Eoutrad urd6r tnd AS 2/t:

Ye.r endld 31 M.rch 202!t Ycer.nded tt M.rEh
2023

NetuE of tr.ns.ctlon

Subsldl.ry Holdlng
Company

Subsldlrry
ot Holdhg

Gnnd Toral

Holdlng

Grand Totat

R.p.ym€nt ol Lo.n civ.n
Dilip Buildcon Lld

DBL Bangalore Nidagalia HighBays Pvt Limited

OBL aeflary Byrapura Highlriays h.t Limited

Dodabalapur Hignways pvt ld
Palhrapali Kdhgnora High'rays Pvt Lld

DBL Byrapura Challakher€ Highlt.ays Pvt Limited
DBL Nidagafia Mysore Highways Ad Ltd

Ohrol Bhad.a Highways Lid

DBL Gorhar Khatatunda HighwaF h/t Limited

DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited 4 530.00

4.E49.50

1 637.6'1

2,767.17

1,612.90

2 312_64 2.312_U

4 530.00

4,849.50

1,637.61

2,767.17

1,612.90

3,577 -01

6,247.06

21U.19

3,325.93

4.530.00

3,577.01

3 325.93

4.530.00
Toral 15,397.1E 2,112.61 't7,709.62 19,814.49 't9,8'til.49

(v)

Dilip Buildcon Lld 3,736.29 3,736.29 14,160.00
3,735.29 3,736.29 14,160.00 1i1,160.00

(vr) Rlp.ym.nt of Lo.n t l.n
Oirp Euildcon Lld 6.213.U 6_213.34 11 654.06 11,654.06

6,241t.34 6,2r(1.34 11,654.06 11.61t.06

(vii) Rovonu. trom Contract Rac.lpt!
OiIp Bualdcon Lld (incMing GST amounl )

Palhrdpali K€thghora Highways Pvl Lld

Narenpur Pumee Highvays Pvl Ltd

Repal€wads HEirE)s Lld

Oodabalhpur tioskote Highways t)ln Lld
Dhrol Bhadra Highrays Lld
Bang*upalem Gudipah Highv/ays ld

4.00

6.@

6.00

6_@

6.00

589.89

6.00

5A9.69

4.00

6.00

6.00

5.00

6.00

5.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

6.00

1 ,003.54 1,003-56

6.00

6.m
6.00

6.00

6.00

Total 2E.00 51t9.89 6.00 617.E9 30.00 1,003.51t 1.033.58

B)

(D

Bal.nccs du!

DBL Nidagstla Mysore Highways Pvt Limned

DBL Re$/E Siddhi Highways h/t Limiled

Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited

Dodabalbpur Hoskote HighviEF Prt Ltd

Nerenpur Pumea Highu,€ys Pvt Ltd

Pathrapalli K.thghora Highways Pvt Ltd

Repallell/ada HighMiays Limned

4,441.81 4.4ti

11,189.09

951.26

1.796.41

2.351.A1

3,332.16

1,629.90

1,997.00

11,189.09

951.26

1,796.41

2.35!.E1

3,332.16

1,629.S0

1,997.00
4,441.61 4,441.8.1 23,247.A3 23,217.63

Rs.ln La

m

Y,{
u.u

$. cH/

(iv)

6,217.6
2,1U.19

14,160.00



OBI It{fRA ASSETS PfrVAIE UX]rEO
(Fofln.dy Hlgh Fly Alrlln . Hv.t Lhrbd)

)aotr. to tln ncl.l .rri.ln.n!. ,or ti. y..r .nd.d St X.rEh 2o2il

tlota 2a: RdaE orrtv ti.nt.cdo.ia (rt3cto.uE t. Eoutrrd un<Lr tnd AS 2a:

(tu. ln L.hh.)
Y..r .nd.d 3l ll.rch 2024 Yce. ondld 31 f..ch 2023Nrturt ol tr.n!.c on

Holdln9 Sub.ldl.ry
ot Holdlng

Gr.nd Total

Holdlng Sub3ldl.ry
ol Holdlng

(,,) t n..cund Loan Glvan

Dilip Eulldcon Limited

OBL B$g.lorc Nidagalia HighrEys Ad Limn€ld

DBL B.t ry Byr.pura Highviays Pvt Limited

Bangrupelcm Gudipala Highways Ltd

DBL Nidagsna Mysorc Highv/ays Pvt Limit€d

Pechhwra Co.lminn6 pvt ld
Dhrol Ahadra High'raF Limned

Oodebabpu. Hoskotc HohwrF PU Lld

N*cnpur Pum.a Highw.ys P( Ltd

Pslhrapal Karhgho(a llighw.ys Pvt Lrd

Rcpli6md, Highrays Limit€d

DgL lnlr.lc.rt Priveic Umitcd
OBL PoorEiyrtkuppan Hiqhxrays A/l Ud.

1.172.75

8.977.24

3,516.75

1.593.59

14,272.85

3.278.17

4.977 _24

3,516.75

1.593.59

4.172.75

14.272.45

3.27A-17

2.767 _17

1,612.SO

3,504.50

2.4'1.19
902.0o

1.405.m
162.13

3,278.17

2,767 -17

1,512.90

3,5(X.50

2,111_19

902.00

1,405-e
162.13

3.27a.17
1,172_f5 4.9ff.21 26,661.36 ro,tlt.35 12,612.74 3,/U0.30 15 073.06

(iir) Un!.cur.d Lo.n T.*€n
DiIp Euitscon Limtcd 2507.06 2.507.06
Tot l 2,507.06 2,507.06

{iv)

B.ng*upelcm Gudipala HighwaF Ltd

OiIp Euildcon Limncd

s22
9%.27 153.15 153.15

Total 996.27 1,003.49 't 53.15

ACC

ll'.

9
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OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LI]'ITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlin s Privrte Limit€d)

The analFis exclude th€ impacl of mov€ment3 in market variaues on: the cerrying valuos ol graluily, other post rstiromont obligations and
provisions.

,{ote3 to finrncial stat.m.nt3 ,or the year onded 3l M!?ch 2024

Note 27: Fanancial risk manaoement oolicv and obiectives

The key obi€ctive of the Compeny's capiial managemonl is to 6nsun6 thal it mainliains a slabie capitel Btructure with ths focus on tolal equity
to uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure fulure developmenl of itg busaness. Th€ Company is focused on
maintaining a st@ng equity base to ensure independ6nce, securig, as v€ll as fnancial flexibility for potential future b,orowings, if requirod
withoul impacting the dsk profle ot the Company.

The Company's senior manag€ment oversoes the management of th6se risks. h is the Cornpany's policy that no trading in derivatives for
sp€qrlalive pupo3os may b€ undertak€n.

i) lar*et risk

Merk6t dsk is the risk thet the fair value of futuro cash iou6 of a fnancial instrument will f,uctuate because of changos in markel pnces.
Market risk comprises lhre€ types ol risk inl6r6st rate dsk, cunency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity risk.
Financial instruments affecled by market nsk include bo.ros/ings, trade and other payables. security deposit, tlade and othe. eceivabies.
deposils with banks.

The 3ensitivity antlFis in th6 follotying 3ections .elate to the position es et 3t March 2024 and 31 Msrch 2023. The sensitrvity of the relevent
incorne slatement ilem is the etf6ct of the assumed crranges in respective market dsks. The sensitivity enelysis have been p.epared on the
basis that tha amount of not debt and the ratio of fixed to foating interest rates of the debt are constant el 31 March 2024.

ii) Cr6dir risk

Cr€dit risk on trade receivebl$ is limited as lhe customeB of the Company oainly consists ot the Holding Company having a strong credit
$onhiness. The provision matdx lakes into account available externel and intomal credit risk factors such as credit ratings from credit rating
agencres, financialcondition, ageing olaccounts receivable and lhe Company's historical experienc€ for customers.

The ,geing of trade rec€ivabLs at the reporting del6 that \iere not impaired ar€ as follols
ln Lakhs

Financial inatrument! snd carh deposits

Cradit risk from balances with benks and fnanci€l institutions is nanaged by th6 company in accordence with company's policy. lnvestments
of surplus funds ar€ mede only with approv€d counlerpartres aM within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Company monilors rating.
ct6dil spreads and fn€ncial slrongth of ils counl€r panies. Compeny monitoE ratings, credit spr€ad and financial sAangth of its counter
partjos. Basad on ongoing assessment company adjusl il's exposure to various counterparties. Compeny's maximum exposure to qedit risk
for th€ components of bslance sh€€t is the c€rrying amount as disclosod in Not6 5_

lll) Llquidity ri.t

Liquidily nsk is thq nsk that ths Cornpany lhay not be abl€ lo meet its prossnl ancl future cash fow and collateral obligations without incumng
unacceptablo loss€s. Company's otieaijve is to, el all lime mainiain optimum levels of liquidrty to m6€t its cssh and coll6t€ral requirements.
Company closely monitoas its liquadig position end dgploys a obusl cash management system. h maintaans adoquate sources of inancing al
optimised cost.

The lable summarises the meturity profile of compenys financial liebililies based on conkaclual undiscountod payments

As at 3l March 2024
Particulars Carrying amount l year l-3 years Beyond 3 Years Tot lAmount

Bono\Nings

Oth6r f n3ncial liabilities
T6de Peyables

67.569.9s
208.48
132_05

16,892.50
208.48
132.05

33,785.00 16.892.45 67,569.95
204_44

132_05

As at 3'l March 2023
Particulars Carryinq amount 1 year 1-3 years Beyond 3 Years Total Amount

Sonowngs
Loans from Relaled Pani€3
Other f nanciial liabilities

67.56S.S5

2.507.06
90.98

2,507.06
90.98

16 892 S0 50.677.45 67.569.95
2,507.06

90.98

ln

Particulars 3'l March 2024 3l March 2023
Less thsn 160 days
More than 180 days

1.003.49 153.15

{\. cl,i

ACc

Y:

fTl
q
u

ln Lakhs



DBL II{FRAA.SSETS PRIVAIE U ]TED
(Fo.nE, Hlgh F Adln.. Priv.t Llmft.d)

I'lot . to financld .t t iients to. the y... ended 31ar.rcl, 2021

l{ote 28: Falr yrlue ol flninclal araat! and llrblruca

Sgt oqt bolow, l! a comPartaon by clata ol lhe qrrylng amount3 and tala vJue ot t ra Conpany'a fnanclal lnrt,umanta that aa!
Ecognlaad ln thc frnanaid it (enEota.

Sr. Particulals Canying value Fair velue
3l March 2024 31 March 2023 3l March 2024 31 l,l.rch 2023

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financi.l A!!et
Canled at amordaed co3t
lnvestments
Loans given

Trade Receivables"
Cash and cash equavalent_
Other finanoal assets

Flnancial a3r€E mealured at Falr yalue thorugh Othea
Comprehenalve lncome (FVOCI)

FIn.ncial Ll.bllitl6
Carfied at amorti6ed co3t
Eonowings
Trade Payable"
Olher Financial Lrabililies

4,481.81
40,111.35

1.003.49
65.45

114.73

32 535.48

67,569.95
132.05
208.48

23,247.63
16.073.06

153.15
264.56

16.72

36.937.30

70,077.OO

s0.98

4,481.81
40.111.35

32.535.48

67.569.95

208.4a

23,247.63
16,073.06

'16.72

36 937.30

70,077.00

90 99

ln Lakhs

Y,

The Cornpany trBintains polides and p.ocedures tc value financial assets or fnancial lbbilities using the best and rnost relevant data
avaihbb. ln addilion, the Company intefially rcviews valuations, induding andependent prLe valiration for ce(ain instruments.
Furthe., in other instances, Company retains independeot pricing vendors to assist in co.roboating the valua{ons of c€rtain
inslrui€nts,

Th€ fai valu€ of the fnancid aslets and lhblilr€s are induded at the amoonl at whii the iBlrunEnl that u/oold be received to s€ll an
a$el or paid to transfuf liebility in an oidert t'ansadih betveei rnarket partkipanb at the nE€surerEnt date.

Th. folbwlng mat roda and .!.umpti,on. w6f. uaod lo estkmt. the t lr value.:
-The co.rpaiy has not disdos€d the fair velues ol trade payables, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents because their
carrying arnounts are reasoMbae approximaton of lair value.

Fair value ot s€curity deposits have been estirnated using a discounted cash llov, rnodel. The valuation requires nEnagernenl to lltake
cenain assuftptions about interesl rates, maturity period, credit risk, forecated cash llows.

Long"term fre+rate and vanablerate receivabbs/borowings are evaluated by the conpary based on flararneters such as interest
rales, indivirual cteditwofthiness ol llle crrstolrpr and the risk dEdcteristics of the linanced proiect. Bas€d on this cvaluation.
allorvances are laken into account br th€ expecled credit losses ol thes€ receivaues. As of reporting date the carying anrounts of
such receivabl*, net of afiowances are nol mateially dilterenl from their calculated lair velues.

CaryirE valu€ ot loens tro.n banb. other non @rEot bonoflings end oltEr filencjal liaulties b esiimaied by discour irE t/fure cish
flr}3 usiig 6tca drrEr y avaihue br debt on lidLr tefiE, qcdit ris* end rem.ining maturities. The osm non- porforrEnce rilk as
et reporlin9 drle yras assess€d to be instFifcant

Fal. vdua hlararchy
The n lbtring table providea the fair vakJe lIEasurenEnt hierarchy of Conparys a3lets and liaullies groupod inb Level 1 to Level 3
as d€sctibed in 3ignificanl accountirE pdicics - Nole 1 Frrther taUe dcscribes the valu.tbn teciniquB u!ed, key inpob lo vab€ti.ns
and quarlliialive anbnnatirn aboul gignifcant unobserrraue input br fair value rEasurenEots.

e: m

M MBAI

$. ct/

9
o

u

114.73



DBL IiFRA ASSETS PRIVAIE INllEI)
(Forrtl .t Hlgh F Alilln . trYn Lht!.dl

l{ot a to ffnanclal 3t t tn nt3 ior $a yaar rndad 3l X.rch 2O2a

l{oL 2t: F.lr v.lue of fin.ncLl aa.Gta .nd ll.blllu..

QoantlL0ve dlaclolu,la ot tal, valua irattuEmant hlerrEhy ,oa .3art I at 3l ,ra.!h 202/r:

Sr
No.

Parrticu lars Fair value measurement usinq Valuation
technique usedLevel I Level 2 Level 3

(a) Flnancial asiet! measur€d at emortised co3t
(D

(i0
(ii0

Loam given

Oth€r fnancial ass€t

4,481.81

40,r11.35
411.73

Discoonled cash Fdecast cash

di&ounl rate,

(b) Flnancial arset3 measured at Falr value thorugh Other
Comp.Ehenslve lncome (FVOCI)

(D 32 535.48 Valued at t{AV as on .epodjng
date

Financial liability measured at amonis€d cosl
(0 Bono./ings 67.569.95 Discounted cash Forecast cash

discount rate,
(i0 Other f nancial liabilities 208 48

ln Lakhs

ln
Sr.
No.

Particulars Fair value measurcment usinq Valurtion
t6chnlque uaed

lnpuls ured
Level 2 Level 3

(a) Flnanclal assets mea3ured et emo sed cost
(D

(i0

(iiu

lnvestrEnlg
Loans given

Oher financial assel

23,247.63
16,073.06

Oiscounted cash Forecast cash

(b) Financlal arr4ta neasurld at Falrvalue tlrorugh Othea
Compr.henrive lhco|ne (FVOCIl

(,) 36 937.30 Valued al l\!qv ai on repodjrE
date

(c) Fln.ncial liability niea8ur€d at amortisod cost
(0

Bono,rings 70,077.OO
Discounted cash Forecast cash

discount rate
rnaturity

(ii)
Olher inancial liabilities 90.98

Ouantitltivo daiclosurcs oflair vrlue mea3ui€nr€nt hlearrchy for ass€ts as at 31 arch 2023:

Ouring the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 Marcll 2023, the.e $/ere no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurerEnts and no tlansters inlo
and oul of level 3 fair value dEasuremenl.

TS

{
r1

,/
m

MBAI

*. cH/

o

I 

tnnuts usea

| (c)

til



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 l,.a?ch 2024

Note 29: Capital management

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, Company may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within
net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,
excluding discontinued operations.

Rs. in lakhs

Note 30: Segment Reporting
Segments have been identified in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 108 on Operating
Segments considering the risk or return profiles of the business. As required under lnd AS 108, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based on analysis of
various performance indicators. Accordingly, information has been presented for the Companys operating
segments and the company has identified business segment as primary segment- The reporlable segment is
Construction and Engineering Contracls.

Note 31 : Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising
from financing activities as required by lnd AS 7 ,,statement of Cash Flows,, is as under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

.Pr^

rflI
I!

Particulars 31 March 2024 3l March 2023
lLoans and borrowings
Trade payable

Other Financial Liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equty
Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio

67,569.95
132.05
208.48

65.45
67,845.02

(12,615.00)

55,230.02
122.Uo/"

90.98
2U.56

69,903.44
(8,989.56)

60,913.88
114.760/o

70,077 .01

Particu lars Long Term Borrowings Short Term Borrowings
Balance as on 31 March@. 70,270.00 1.12
Add : Cash inflow 14,160.00

2,700.05 1 'l,654.06
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - Cash outflow

nce as on ,|
67,559.9s 2,507.06

Add : Cash inflow 3,736.29
Less : Cash oumow 6,243.35
Add : Non - Cash inflow

67,569.95ance as on 31

Less : Non - Cash outflow

MUMBAI,
o

o

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital , share premium
and all other equity reserves. The primary oblective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the
shaleholder value.

Less : Cash outflow

0.00



L

Avu

E

oa
f-

Eo
=

.9
E
Efr{
aD_
iq

o

t

=?b9
5;
tso
r€a
:692

a9o

Ess

i3e
: !;o3s

;>

Es
5€

eio9
63

:
g,

TE
arI
go

eBorI
og

R;
*;

g5
og
cii
.9, 6
gE
o -!P -;Bg

95
qp
Eo.

eE
,SF

E59a,':5
:j;

o3

E

PH

o =l.l el

o$
uP
ie
E,g

33
-9b
;P-
3Eg.
E E -<)

E g:
E gs

.c l.

s
.! z

s
N
a1

Y
z

s
z ..j

s
c,l

s
t-

-c

-R ; sz z z
I q

-c

.R c.i z z
6

z
(.!

ci

o

o ,9

=,!

(J

'=

E
F

!q,
.!E

Eee
sE3

=.oi;cg

6 90s!; g?!
;6=b8€Er
E >E P
,i E3;

E
.e

!

z

-9

F

Ezs
e gE
c aEI oa6

-aB E:
8tE={o i I
t.l dS
i eE P
rg I E
96 o i
:E,g.E
.O!EE53,EE

E.qE}{r9
g3

*e tEi9
{l).o

o9:
t,e b
E o*
9-Es<gE

o
g

z

o

P't
9o
b?iaF9c5
Aro

oq

EE

a5 I

,9

E

t

o.

E

tr

Eo
oB
ES
sb

EE
o9
o9

8s

,s
E

E

t C

.9

E

o

tr
E

,s

,9

E

o

.g
,E

I
o

-E

.9
e

o.=

,9

E
o

E

.E

,9

E

.

.9

-c

E:

,9

-g

-94H9
i,E

,s
.9

6
,9

z

o.
E

E

3

E

z -

c0

,

rcs

E
e
.
E
E
E

ao9EnE * IT-J O E

=.s 5 &

Hi ; E
>q 9 sd: E rr.*E i !h>, ! EA;L "s 6

Jf E E

=2 ; E

d.5 € €o5 z z

_9

E
9

t



OBL Ii{FRA ASSETS PR'VATE UU]IED
(Fonnerly Hlgh Fly Airllne. Prtv.t. Llmht d)

Notea to flnaacLl atatomonL lor tho yaar ondod 3l Xarch 2024

Note 33: Additlonal dlrcloau.os.r per Schodulo lll of th. Companiea Act 2013

Signature lo noles lo accouts
Fo. UKUND CHTTALE t CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

(D The Company does not fall under the criteria of applicability ol provisions of CSR, as per the clauses of Section 135 of the Companies
Acl, 2013. Thus, no disdosure is given.

(iD The Company has not entered in to any lransactions during the year with th€ Companies struc* oi under seclion 246 of Companies Act,
2013 or sedion 560 ot Companiss Ad, 1956.

(ii0 During th€ financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has granted loans to the related parties .s defined under the Companies
Ad, 2013, withoul specifying any terms of the repayrnent.

(iv) There is no benami property held by the Company and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company lor holding
any benami property under the Benami Transaclions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(v) The Company has complied with the number of layers presc.ibed under daus€ (E7) of s€dion 2 of the Acl read vrith Corhpanies
(Restriclion on number of Layers) Rule6, 2017.

(vi) The Company has not lraded or invested in Cryplo curaency or Mrtual Curency during the fnancial year.

(vii) There are no transaclions whiafi have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been suarendered or disdosed as income
during lhe lear in the lax assessments under the lncome Tax Acl, 1961. Also, there are no previously unrocorded income and related
asseb.

(viii) The Company has not been sanctioned vrorking capiial limits al any point of time during the clrrent yoar and previous )€ar from banks
or fnancial instiMions on the basis of security ol curenl assets.

(ix) Utllb.tlon ot Borowed tundr.nd.h.ro premlum

A) The Company has nol advanced or loaned or invested funds (either bonowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind ot
funds) to any other person(s) or enti9(ies), including foreign entitjes (lntermediaries) with the understanding (vyhether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the lnterm€diary shall-
(i) direc{y or indirec{y lend or invest in other persons or entitjes idenlifed in any hanner whatsoever by or on behatf of the company
(Ulimate Benefi ciaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalt ofthe Ultimate Benefciades:

B) The Company has not received any tund lrom any p€rson(s) or enlit(ies), including foreagn entities (Funding Party) with he
unde6tanding (whether recoded ih writing o. otherwise) that the company shall-
(i) dirccdy or indiredy lend or invest in other persons or endties identifed in any manner whatsoewr by or on behalf oI the Funding
Party (Ultimate B€noficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficia.ies.

Nota 34: Figures relating lo prcvious year have been rcgrouped / rearanged, wherever necessary, to contom to drrent yeals presenlation.

S. . Chh.b
(Parlner)
M.No. 111383

For and on behalt of the Board of Oireclors of
OBL ITIFRA ASIiETS PRIVATE L ]TEO
CIN : U7li1 10MP20 10PTC023673

,w#(nn
V frr--*w

(Diredor)
olN - 000399.a,a

A! nlVenna
r)

- 06939756

iniw.l
(Chief Office0

NN
Prldr R.ghuwm.hl
(Company Secretary)

Place: Bhopal
Date: May 09, 202,t

MUMBAI

$.
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Place: Bhopal
Dale: May 09, 202,(
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MUKUND
iI. CHITALE
& co.

2nd Floor, Kapur House,
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Road No.1, Vile Parle (E),

Mumbai 400057
r: 91 22 2663 3500
www.mmchitale.com

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

Basis for Opinion
we conducted our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements in accordance with the

standards on Auditing, as prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. our lesponsibilities

under those Standards are further described in the Auditois Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of

the Holding company and its associate, in accordance with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to-our audit'of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements in lndia in terms of the

Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and the relevant

provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

iesponsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional .iudgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements of the current year.

Tfiese matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated lnd AS financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters. We have deiermined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Opinion
we have audited the accompanying consolidated lnd AS financial statements of DBL lnfra

Assets Private Limited (hereinafter ieferred to as "the Holding Compa!y'') and it associate,

*ni"n 
"on1pri." 

the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3l"t March 2024, the consolidated

statement ot Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive lncome), the consolidated cash

Flow statement and the consolidated-statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended

and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter

referred to as "consolidated lnd AS financial statements")

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given. to us,

the afoiesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the

Corprni"r Act, 2013 ('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in

conformity with the actounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian

nc"orntirig Standards (lnd A-S) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the

Companie-s (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as- amended of the consolidated state

of affairs of the Holding Compiny and its associate as at March 31,2024, its consolidated loss

and consolidated total other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its

consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date

,|

2.

3

Key Audit MatterSr.
No.

Our audit procedures included the
following:

o Obtained an understanding from
the mana ement assessed an

lnvestment in Associate ComPan
its impairment and lnvestment in Units
of lnvlT

ies and1

Auditor Response
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(Refer to Material Accounting Policy under
Note 1 .1 1 and 1 .12 - "lnvestments in
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures" and "lnvestments in Units of
lnvlT respectively)

The Company has equity investments in
associate companies.

The Company accounts for equity
investments in associate companies at cost
under equity method (subject to impairment
assessment).

For investments carried at cost where an
indlcation of impairment exists, the carrying
value of investment is assessed for
impairment and where applicable an
impairment provision is recognised.

The Company accounts for investments in
Units of lnvlT at fair value through Other
Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI)

The accounting for investments is a Key
Audit Matter as the determination of
recoverable value for impairment
assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimates
such as future expected level of operations
and related forecast of cash flows, market
conditions, discount rates, terminal grov(h
rate etc.

tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Holding
Company's key controls over the
impairment assessment.

. Evaluated the Holding Company's
process regarding impairment
assessment by involving auditor's
valuation experts, as applicable to
assist in assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation
model including the independent
assessment of the underlying
assumptions relating to discount
rate, terminal value etc.

. Assessed the carrying value of all
individually material investments,
where applicable, to determine
whether the valuatlons performed
by the Holding Company were
within an acceptable range
determined by us.

.Assessed the fair value of
lnvestment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
lncome (FVOCI) to determine
whether valuation performed by
the Company is made at fair value.

. Evaluated the cash flow forecasts
(with underlying economic growth
rate) by comparing them to the
approved budgets and our
understanding of the internal and
exlernal factors.

. Checked the mathematical
accuracy of the impairment model
and agreed the relevant data on
sample basis with the latest
budgets, actual past results and
other supporting documents.

. Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the
Consolidated lnd AS Financial
Statements.

Based on the above procedures
performed, we did not identify any
significant exceptions in the
management's assessment in
relation to the carrying value of
equity investments in associate
and to the fair value of
lnvestments measured at fair t,,
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4

value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI

lnformation other than the consolidated lnd AS financial statements and Auditor's report

thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the

consolidated lnd AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other

information is expected to be made available to us after the date of the auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility

is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in dotng so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated lnd AS

financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is

material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged

with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

5. Management's responsibility for the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated lnd AS financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated flnancial position, consolidated
financial performance including consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Holding Company and its associate in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its associate are responsible

for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act

for safeguarding of the assets of the Holding Company and its associate and for preventing and

detecting fraud! and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate. material

accounti-ng policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant-to the preparalion and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of

th; Hbbin6 Company and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the

Holding Company ani it associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matterl related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board

of Directors of thJHolding Company and its associate either intends to liquidate the Holding

company or associate or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and of its associate are responsible

for overseeing the financial reporting process ofthe Holding company and of its associate.

V,
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6. Auditor,s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated lnd AS

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a

high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

Standards on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these Consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on auditing, we exercise professional

judgmentandmaintainprofessionalskepticismthroughouttheaudit'Wealso:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated lnd AS financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions'

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act,

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and

associate has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of material accounting policies used and the reasonableness

oi accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Holding Company and associate.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of the Holding Company and of its associate's

management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence

obtainid, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the ability of the Holding Company and its associate to continue as a going

co=ncern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in

our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Holding Company and its associate to cease to continue as a going

concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe Consolidated lnd AS financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated lnd AS financial

statements represeni the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our

audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requiremenls regarJing independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters thit may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated lnd AS financial

statements of the currenl yeai and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these

matters in our auditor's re[ort unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the

matter or when in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report'because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably

beexpectedtooutweighthepublicinterestbenefitsofsuchcommunication.

Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of one

associate whose lnd AS financial statement and other financial information include share of net

loss after tax of Rs.3,176.07 lakhs for the year ended March 31,2024, and total comprehensive

income of Rs.(3,716.07) lakhs for the year ended March 31,2024, as considered in the

consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

These lnd AS financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose financial

statements and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management. our opinion

on the consolidated lnd AS flnancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts end

disclosures as included in respect of this Holding company and its associate, and our report in

terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid Holding

Company and associate is based solely on the report of other auditor'

our opinion on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, and our report on other Legal and

Reguiatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect

to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

7.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i) As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ('the ordef ) issued by the
' ' 

Centrjl Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (1 1 ) of section 143 of the Act, we give in

the 'Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

(ii) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and Selief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated

lnd AS financial statements.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating-to preparation of the

aioresaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from

our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors'

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including

consolidated other comfrehensive income), the Consolidated statement of changes in equity

and the ConsolidateO Siatement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreemrnt with

the books of account. 11t..
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d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated lnd AS financial statements comply with the lndianAccounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read *iin'nriu-i-of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended.

e) on the bas-is of written representations received from the directors of the Holding company
as on March 31 , 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holdinj co-rprny ,no
the report ofthe Statutory Auditors of its aisociate company, none ofthe directois ofthl Hobingcompany and its associate company, is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from beingappointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With re-spect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidatedlnd AS financial statements of the_ Holding company and its associat" ina-tn" oJ"r"ti"g
effectiveness of such contrors, refer to our s-eparate Report in ,,Annexure 

2,, t" tni, Lp,irt.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance withthe requirements of Section "r97('r6) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion, ir,e-piovision otsection 197_is nor appricabre 
-to 

the Hording company as the company i. 
'" priiri" riit"acompany. Based on the audit report of tie associaie io.p"ny, ine iemuneration faid /provided by the associate company to its directors during the yeir is in accoroance wiin tneprovisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance withRule 11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and tothe best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. There is no pending litigations on the consolidated financiar position of the Hording
company and its associate in its consoridated rnd AS financiar statements.

ii. The Holding company and its associate do not have any rongterm contracts incruding
derivative contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the rnvestor Education
andP^rotection Fund by the Holding company and it associate during the yeai enoeo rir'arcn
31, 2024.

iv (a) The Management of the Hording company and its associate has represented rhat no
funds have been advanced or roaned or invested (either from borrowed tunos oi sr,are
premium or any other sources or kind offunds) by the company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediariesl, witn tne unOersianOingi wnetfrer
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, direcly o; inJir;c1y
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, .""rrity o,, tn"
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management of the Hording company and its associate has represented that no
funds have been received by th_e company from any person(s) or eniitylies;, inctuoing
foreign. entities ("Funding parties"), with ihe understanding, whether recoried in writing or
otherwise, that the company sha[, whether, direcfly or iidirecfly, r"no o, inue.i in otnu,.persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ('ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beharf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries: nW
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For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

6l'ilr-

(c) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstance, nothing has come to our nolice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 1(e), as provided under iv (a) and

iv(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Holding company and its associate have neither declared nor paid any dividend

during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company and its
associate have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the

financial year ended Match 31 ,2024, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same have operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the trail feature being tampered with

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
on preservation of audit trail as per statutory requirements for record retention is not

applicable for the year ended March 31,2024.

(S.M. Chitale)
Partner
M. No. 111383

UDIN: 241 1 1383BKBGQU5243

Place: Mumbai
Dale'. May 9,2024
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Annexure 1 to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated lnd AS
financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited - statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020

Referred to in paragraph [8(i)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our report of even date.

According to the lndependent Audit Reports issued by the auditors of the Holding company and
its associate, there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
Consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

g"h)r-
(S.M. Chitale)
Partner
M. No. 1'1'1383

UDIN: 241 1 1383BKBGQU5243

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 9, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the consolidated lnd AS

financial statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited

Referred to in paragraph l8(ii) (01 under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

of our report of even date.

Report on the lnternal Financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS financial

statements of DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company")

and its associate as of March 31,2024, in conlunction with our audit of the consolidated lnd AS

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date

2. Management's Responsibitity for lnternal Financial controls
The rispective Board of Diiectors of the Holding Company and its ass-ociate company

incorporated in lndia are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated lnd AS financial statements criteria

".trutirn"a 
by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia" (lCAl). These responsibilities include the design,

im jtementation and maintenance of adequaie internal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

"orp"ny:. 
pollcies, tlie safeguariing of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errois, the accuracy and comipletenels of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013'

3 Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibiiity is to eipress an opinion on the Holding Company's and its associate's internal

financiai controli with reference to ionsolidated lnd AS financial statements based on our audit'

we conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial

controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing issued

by lcAl and deemed to be prescri-bed under section 143(10) of the companies Act, 2013, to the

eitent appticaUte to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS

Financial statemenls and both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and both

irrr"o ov tne lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance

poi" ."qiir" that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

,easonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to

consolidated lnd AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls sysilm with reference to Consolidated lnd AS financial statements and

tneir operating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting

in"ilO"O obtai-ning an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated

lnd AS financial statements, ,.r"sslng the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating eiectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

ii" pio.5Orr"" ,ei"AeO O"p"nJ o; the auditor's judgment, including the assessment ofthe risks

ot materiaf misstatement of ihe consolidated lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. $,+zI
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the

other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal

financial controls system with reference to consolidated lnd AS financial statements.

4. Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS financial
statements
A Company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated lnd AS financial statements

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and lhe preparation of consolidated lnd AS financial statements for external purposes

in accoidance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial

control with reference to Consolidated lnd AS financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

consotidated lnd AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe Company are being made only in accordance

with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition

of the Compiny's alsets that could have a material effect on the consolidated lnd AS financial

statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS

Financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls Consolidated lnd AS Financial

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of

any evaluation of the internal financial controls Consolidated lnd AS Financial statements to future

peiiods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control Consolidated lnd AS Financial

itatements mai become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the

Holding company and its associate company, which are companies incorporated in lndia, have

in all iraterial respects, an adequate internal financial controls system Consolidated Ind AS

Financial statements with reference to Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements and such

internal financial controls Consolidated lnd AS Financial statements were operating effectively as

at March 31 , 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated lnd AS

financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its associate company

considering the essential components of iniernal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered

5

Accountants of lndia w

6.
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7 Other Matters
ori-"ior"raio report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and _operating

"tte"tiren"s. 
of the internal financial controG with reference to Consolidated lnd AS financial

statements insofar as it relates to one associate company incorporated in lndia, and to whom

internal control consolidated lnd AS Financial statements is applicable, is based on the

corresponding reports of the Auditor of such company'

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

6t,hl.-
(S.M. Chitale)
Partner
M. No. 111383

UDIN: 241 1 I 3838KBGQU5243

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 09,2024
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Pravate Limited)

Notes to the consolidated lnd AS financial statemenG for the year ended 3l March 2024

'1. Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies and lnformation

1.1 Company Overview

DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited (the 'Company') is domiciled in lndia with its registered office at
Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh, lndia. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The company is presently in the business of development of infrastructure
facilities.

The Company has changed its name from'High Fly Airlines Private Limited'to'DBL lnfra Assets Private
Limited' on 266 July 2021.

1.2 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated financial statements

The Company's consolidated lnd AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under sections 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

The Consolidated lnd AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31( March 2024
were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 9th May,
2024.

1,3 Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basls following the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values in accordance with lnd
AS. Further, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) are also considered, wherever applicable except to the elitent where
compliance with other statutory promulgations override the same requiring a different treatment.

1.4 Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome),
Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in equity are prepared and presented in the
format prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). The disclosure
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of profit and Loss, as
prescribed in the schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting
Standards.

1.5 Current / Non-Current classification

An asset or liability is classified as 'current' when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) it is expected to be realized or setfled, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
company's normal operating cycle;

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iii) it is expected to be realized or setfled within twelve months from the reporting date; or

(iv) an asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least t\l,elve months from the reporting date

ln case of liability, the company does not have an unconditional right to defer setfl
of the liability for at least twelve months from the reporting date.o

I. CH/



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Fomerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statoments for the year ended 31 narch 2024

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-cunent.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria sel out above which are in accordance with Schedule lll to the Act.

Operatino Cycle
Based on the nature of services provided by the Company and lhe normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-
current.

'1.6 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, ludgments and assumptions affect the
application of material accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgements is included in the relevant note.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectlvely.

A. Judgements in applying material accounting policies

The judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below) that the Company
has made in the process of applying its material accounting policies and that have a
significant etfect on the amounts recognised in these financial statements pertain to useful
life of assets. The Company is required to determine whether its intangible assets have
indefinite or finite life which is a subject matter of judgement.

B. Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Determination of the estimated useful lives of items of ppE and the assessment as to
which components of the cost may be capitalized. useful lives of items of ppE are
based on the life prescribed in schedule ll of the companies Act, 2013. ln cases, where
the useful lives are different from that prescribed in schedule ll, they are based on
technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
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asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
technological changes, manufacturers' warranties and maintenance support.

anticipated



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Priyate Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Nlarch 2024

b) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation and vested future benefits and life expectancy. The discount rate is
determined based on the prevailing market yields of lndian Government Securities as at
the Balance Sheet Date for the estimated term of the obligations

c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary ditference can be utilised.

d) Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of
the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may
therefore vary from the figure included in other provisions.

e) Discounting of long-term financial instrument

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
ln case of financial instruments which are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

1.7 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and associates. The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries are
aggregated and consolidated, line by line, from the date control is acquired by any Group entity
to the date it ceases. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the Group as owners and to the non-controlling interests.

The Group presents the non-controlling interests in the Balance Sheet within equity, separately
from the equity of the Group as owners. The excess of the Group's investment in a subsidiary
over its share in the net worth of such subsidiary on the date control is acquired is treated as
goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital reserve in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. On disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss and recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss.
lmpairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is
charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or a group of CGUs to which it
relates, which is not larger than an operating segment, and is monitored for internal
management purposes.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

accou nting
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform material
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are prese
extent possible, in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements



DBL lnfra Asaets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 ]{la.ch 2024

List of Subsidiaries / Associates

1.8 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
indicated.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised eligible
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, afrer deducting trade discounts and rebates, any direcfly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the company. Advance given towards acquisition of Property, plant and
Equipment outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed as capital advances under Non-Current
Assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected ftom its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their esti
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is

Sr.
No.

Name of the Company
Principal
Place of
Business

Proportion of
Ownership

lnterest
(31 March

20241

Proportion of
Ownership

lnterest
(31 March

2023l.
Associates

1 DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt Ltd lndia 49.00%

2 Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited lndia 30.12o/o

3 Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd lnd ia 49.00%

4 Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd lnd ia 49.00v. 49.000/.

5 Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd lndia 49.00%

Repallewada Highways Limited lnd ia

7 DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited
21.lQo/o

MBAI

7.io
ft!
7-

the statement of proflt and loss. Freehold land is not depreciated

b 49.00%

lndia



DBL lnfra AsseG Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3'l March 2024

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / upto the date on which
asset is ready for use /disposed of.

1,10 lntangible Assets and amortization

lntangible assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are
capitalised upon acquisition at cost comprising the purchase price and directly attributable costs to
prepare the assets for its intended use.

lntangible Assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the same period.

lntangible assets that have flnite lives are amortised over their useful lives by the straight-line method.
lntangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortised but are tested for impairment.

'1.'l I lnvestments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries

lnvestments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

l.l2lnvestments in Units of lnvlT's

lnvestments in Units of lnvlT's are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome as per
lnd AS 109 'Financial lnstruments'. The Company may, on lnitial recognition, make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI) on an
instrument by-instrument basis.

For equity investment classified as at FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instruments, excluding
dividends and interest are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit
or Loss, even on sale of lnvestments. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

1.13 lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or
cash generating unit (cGU) may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, the company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cGU's
net selling price or its value in use. \Mere the carrying amount of an asset or cGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

ln assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre{ax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

lmpairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The impairment loss in respect of
a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
versed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

uld have

I
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been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment



Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

lnitial Recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
i] Financial assets at fiair value and iil Financial assets at amortised cost. \Mrere assets are measured
at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss [i.e fair
value through profit or lossl, or recognised in other comprehensive income [i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive incomel.

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

lmpairment of financial asset

For impairment of frnancial assets, Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model. Following
financial assets and credit risk exposure are covered within the ECL model:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.
loans, debt securities, deposits and bank balance

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 'l 15.

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track chang es in cred
r, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting d

l,\.

,o

initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets

OBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

'1.14 Financial lnstruments

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose ob.lective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the
contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Derecognition

The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables ancluding receivables recognised under service concession arrangements.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated tinancial statemenG for the year ended 31 |iarch 2024

exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, then the impairment loss is
provided based on lifetime ECL.

Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition

The company initially recognises borrowings, trade payables and related financial liabilities on the
date on which they are originated.

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. \A/hen an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.15 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A conkact is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. Lease term includes non- cancellable period of lease together with periods covered by such
options if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or reasonably ce
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Notes to the consolidated financial statementa for the year ended 31 March 2024

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencemenl date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, lhe recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liability is
subsequently measured at Amortised Cost. Lease liability is remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

1.16 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Contingent liabilities are not
provided for and are disclosed by way of notes.

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. \Men discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the
statement of profit and loss.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case ot
(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and
(ii) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements, however are disclosed, where inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date

1.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue from Operations

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government.

'l.
E

\,P,

rfl
|-

ll. cl,,

:
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(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made.



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 lfiarch 2024

lnterest lncome

lnterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the etfective
interest rate (ElR).

Dividend lncome

Dividends are recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Other lncome

Other lncome - Fair value gains on current investments carried at fair value are included in other
income.

Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive arises

1.18 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independenfly for each period present.

1,20 Statement of Cash FIow

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. cash
flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adJusted for the effects of transactions of a nonrash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows.

1.21 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employment benefits

All employee benefits payable whol

t

ly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified a
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nized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is



DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Post Employment Employee Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees comprise payments to government provident funds, gratuity fund
and Employees State lnsurance.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company's contribution to defined contributions plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State
lnsurance are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when the contributions to the
respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective Funds

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity
benefit scheme is calculated by estlmating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in
return br their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used fior determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasuremenl of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarlal gains and losses, the
retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive lncome. The same is not eligible to be
reclassified to profit or loss. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is
computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net
defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a
result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of profit and Loss.

Vvhen the benefits of a plan are changed or vyhen a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in beneflt
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of
Prolit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

1.22lncome Taxes

Current Tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. lt is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substant
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DBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial atatements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the enent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT,
during the year that MAT is permitted to be set off under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (specified year). ln
the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credlt entitlement.
The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay income tax higher than MAT during the specified year.

Oeferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for flnancial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes i.e. the tax base. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and
tax credits. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A
deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. The
company offuets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and the
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

1.23 Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is highly probable.

Assets designated as held for sale are held at the lower of carrying amount at designation and fair
value less costs to sell.

'1.24 F aii value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The faii value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

o ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
' ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

For cash and other liquid assets, the fair
short term nature of these instruments.

value is assumed to approximate to book value, given the
For those items with a stated maturity exceeding twelve
scounted cash flow methodology.

v

mont ue is calculated usingadi

f
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OBL lnfra Assets Private Limited
(Formerly High Fly Airlines Private Limited)

Notes to the conGolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l iiarch 2024

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
suflicient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

\t cH/

Pt

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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I'BL INFRA ASSETS PFTVAIE Uf,IED
(FonErry Xbh Fly AlrllnG Fn\..r. Lht d)

Not.. !o con.olld.t.d fin.ml.l it rm.nt tor rh. y..r.nd.d 31 Mrrch 2024
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3.2 fr9!s8c9Ery9!!9!-es9i!9-!9!su!s

Oqtli.ndinO for bll,owinq pedod. llm du6 dal6 ot p.yn nt

A! !l M.rch 11,2024
(D Undispuled Trade r€ceivables - considered !@d 1.003.49 1,0O3.,19

(iD
Und$n.d rr.dc rBcrivabL. -rlidr h!!! rhrtn .ri inc.!ar. ln

(iii) Uodispdod Trad€ rec€ivau€s - c'sdit imDan d
(iv) OispuGd Tr.d€ Reiwbl€3 conlidered good

(v) OBpdod Trad€ r.Givabl.. - wlich hav. lignific,lt inrease in

DEpulod Trade .EeivablB - oldil impaired

t.003.a9 1,OO!_49

Ou&t ndinq lo. tollowinq pcriod3 from d uo dat otgaym.nt

A. .t rftr.h 31. 202!
{0 Undsp'n€d llade Eccivdle3 - consider€d 9ood 153.!5 153.15

{iD
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t53,15 153.15

1,0O3.49 153.15
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(b) Tr.d. R.cdvabl.. con.ld.rcd lood - Unlocur.d'
(c) frd. R.c.iwblc. riid hav. Jgrifcst l.E !..o in Crnlt Ri.t
(d) Tr.d. R.cdv&|.. - cr.dn imedrrd
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DBL iIFiA AASEII PRIVATE LmTEO
(Fo.rlrrly Hlgh Fty Xdft . Prhnt LHadl

l|oL. !o cor.olld.t d in ncld .t t ifill. ,or ti. y..r .id.d 3l Lrch 2O2a

!{ob :- a lnv-tn ntr

31 Ma.ch 202i1 31 March 2023

UlnuoH Equlty aharaa ol Aaaoa,aaa Cql|i[arha at c6t
(R&r N.,L 4.2.)

OSL t{i,{.t My&r! HielI*.F A/t Limibd
Dhrd Bh.C. Hletlu.y! Urdbd
h.ldhBr Holkot Hlehr.F Ai LE
N.rfipc Purn . Hohw.y. Ad LU
P.lhrepdi K.tr9ho.. Highmyr Pvt LE
R.P.[.wad8 Higtrr.F Umibd
DBL R.w! Siddtil Hioltu.l,3 t,vt UmiEd

1.21.51'1 ('t,718.57)

1,17,n2
62.3/t6

1,32,543
92,9/t1

1.01,071

1.99,205

33.517

E,37't.03
1,060.0a
(101.24)

E46.1E

3{i.Ea

179.17

1.268.53
Tot l 1,21,511 (1,718.67) 10,39,437 't1,662.E6

Quot d Unnr of lnvlT .l F.lr Vrlu6 through Ot,|er
Compnh.nrtv. lnconlc (FVTOCllr

UniB ofShrlm lnvlT (Rcf.r Norc 4.1 .nd a.2b) 2,75.72_40 32 535.46 3.24.01.142 36,937.30

32,535.48 36.937.30

Grand fot:l 30,815.8,1 44,600.'t6

Total Cunant
Ag!r.g.t! .mount of unquot d lnv.3tn.nt
Aggogrta rnount of quotad lnvaatnentt

29,098.14

(t,718.67)

32,535.1a

60,26t.0r

11,562.85
36,937.30

ln

il.1: Thc uniE ar6 .xdutivdy d.dgcd .geinst thc non conv€rlibl€ d.bcntures issucd by the Holding Colnpany as p.r thc Erms of lhe
inn$clion e3 !.t out undcr rllovenl dau36 of th. ocbcoturc irull Oeed.

1.2a

1.2b

lnvcslrncnt in cquity lhar.s of compeni.3 rs non-core inv€stm€nt int nded for sale post completion of constructon of proiccls

lnwstnant ln ouoH unit! of lnviT:
(tlon .orl irv.sh.it- i r..st h d6€.!. of s* ol .qdty in alsoc{at€s

3'l March 2024 31 March 2023
Pa,tcuhr!
At fi6 b.ginning oa tnG Far
Add: lnv..llrrcnt du.ing tl. F.r
L.!3: S.h oau E durine th6 Far (R.Lr Not 23.1)

1...: R.tum o, C.pild dudnt tr. y..r
Add: F.i. vCu.liitn I tl F.r.nd (Rftr Not 24)

3,24.01,112

118.28.702)

36 937.30

(5,3a0.51)
(r,060.08)

2.O3A.n

3.21.01_112 33 760.25

\121.2O)
3,30r.25

Out t nding at th. .nd ol th. y..r 2,75,72,11t 32,536.48 3,21,01,112 36,937.30
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ln Lakhs

5.'l The Holding Company has given interest tree loan to its related partjes based on the eremption given under
se{rion 186(11) of the Companies Ac1 20i except in one case where the Company has charged interest on loan
given to one of the party grouped under 'Other Related Parties.

The loans are given for expansaon and general purpose ofthe busaness

The loan given is repayable by the related padies'on demand'

Disclosure with resped to loan g.anted to promoters, Oirecto.s, KMPS and the Related parties (as defined under
companies Ad,2013) other severally orjoindy with any other person that are repayable on demand is given below:

5.2

5.4

As at 3'l March 2024
Type ot Bonower Aanount of loan or

advance ln the
nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances ln the
nature ot Loans

Promoter
Direclors
KMPs
Related parties 40.111.35 100 000/.

Total 40,111.35 ,00.00%

ln Lakhs

As at 3l March 2023 Rs. ln Lakhs
Amount ot loan ot

advance in the
nature of loan
outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of Loans

Promoter
Direclors
KMPs
Related parties 16.073.06 100.00%

Total 16,073.06 100.00%

Note :- 6 Cash And Cash Eouivalents

Rs, ln La
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Ma.ch 2023

Less

Cash in hand
Balances with Banks :

- Current Account
- Fixed Deposits

Fixed Deposits having maturity more than '12 months shown under Other
FinancialAssets (Reier Note 7)

44.25
415.2'l

3.16

80.61

180.79
463.46

398.01

264.56

Total 65.ir5 264.56

Particulars 3'l March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Loan to Ultimate holding Company
Loans to Associate Companies
Loans to Other Related parties

8,977.24
4,472.75

26,66'r.36

'12,632.76

3,440.30
TotalCurrent 40,111.35 16,073.06

MUMBAI
I

rr cH/

DBL INFRA ASSETS PRNATE LI ]TED
(Formerly High Fly Airllnes Privat Llmlted)

l{ot6s to consolidated financial rtatgmsntr tor tho yaar ended 31 }latch 2021

Not6 :- 5 Loana

Type of Bonower



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIV'.TE LIi'ITEO
(Formerly High Fly Alrlines Privats Llmlted)

Notes to consolidated financlal statementg for the y6a.6ndod 31 lt rch 2021

Note :- 7 Other FinancialAs3ots
ln Lakhs

NoteiEOtherAssets
. ln Lakhs

Particulars 31 natch 2024 31 March 2023
Non{ulfont
Unamortisgd Processing Charges
MAT Credit Entidement

18.02

0.67
110.90

0.67

Total Non-current 18.69
Curr6nt
Other Advances - Advance to Suppliers/Creditors
Tar Deducted at source and Advance Tax (Net ot Provisions for Tax)
Ealance with Govt. Authorities
Unamortised Processing Charges
Unbilled Revenue

0.70
78.15

92.88
4,555.68

0.17
62.98
E7.15

172.61

Total Current 1,727.41 322.91

Total 4,746.10 434.4E

sTe

l.r-

v-t
m

Partlculars 3l March 2024 3l March 2023

7.03 12.03
(5.00)

NonCuI'ent
Advance Recoverable

Less: Provision for DoubtfulAdvance (Reter Note 22)

Withheld Money
Bank Deposib with mo.e than 12 months maturity (Refer Nole 6)

7.03
9.69

398.01

7.03

Total 111.74 16.72

$. cH/

9

11'1.57



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVA1E LIXITED
lForme.ly Hloh Flv Al.lln6 Prlvlt Llmltedl

Noto! to coNolldlt€d finencl.l .tetemonta tor tho yea. ondad 3l f,rrch 2024

l{ot6 9: Eouiw Sh.i! Caoltrl

31 Uarch 2024 31 March 2023
Authorlaad rharo Capltal
50,00.000 Equity Shares ol Rs. 10 eactr
(P.Y. 5O,O0 CtOo Equity Shares ol Rs. 10 eaci)

500 00

500.00 500.00

b3u€d, 3ubscrlb€d rnd fully pald.up sharaa
20,00.000 Equity Shares ot Rs. 10 each fulty paid up
(P.Y.20,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs.10each)

200.00 200.00

Total 200.00 200.00

ln Lakh

a) Term./rights ettached to equlty 3hare3

b) Reconclllation ot the no. ot 3ha.e3 end .mounB outatandlng .t th6 b€glnnlng and at the end or lhe .eportlng yea.:

i. The Company has only one dass of shares refened to as equiv shares having a tace value of Rs.1 0 each. Equity holder of equity shares rg

er(j(ed to one vote per share.

ii. Of the above, 20,00,000 (P.Y. 20,00,000 ) eq'rity shares are held by the Hdding company.
iii. 100% shares of the Company has b€€n pledged in fa@ur of the Debenture trustee i.e. Axis Trustee Services Limited.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
NumberB Amount

{R!.ln lakhsl
Numbe.s Amount

(R..ln Lktrrl
Al the beginnang of the y€ar
lssued durlng the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

20.00.000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00

20,00,000 200.00 20,00.000 200.00

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Numbers % ot holding l{umbers % ot holdinq

Equity ah..es ot Rr. I 0 e.ch fully peld
Dilip Buildc.n Limiled' 20.00.000 100.00% 20 00.000 100.00%

'20 shares are held by individuals as nominees of the Company

d) D€t ll! of Promoter rha|tholdlng in tho Comp.ny:

Detalls of sharehold.rs holdi more than 5% shares ln the

Promoter Name

3t March 2024 3'l March 2023 % Cheng.
durlng the

YeatNo. of Sharcs No. of Shares % ot total share3
Dilip Buldcon Llmited 20,00,000 100.000% 20,00,000 100.0070
Total 20,00,000 't 00.00% 20,00,000 100.00%

i. Ret.ined ln Lakh

Rs. ln Lakhs
Pa.ticulars 31 ilarch 2024 3l March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,470.39
Other Comorehensive lncome dunnq the year

Reoeasuremeflt gain on revalualion of lnvestment 1.525.65 2_470_39
galance at the end ofthe year 3,996.(X 2,470.39

# Rettlned Earning3: Retained eamangs are the profitg or loss thal the Company has eamed / incuned tjll clate. less diviclends or other distribotions paid to

cHt

s

Particulars 31 narch 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year l.23,244.72) (14 420.04)
- Loss for the year {2,951.00) (4,427.19)
- On account of Sale of subsidiaaies 3.183.31 (4,397.50)
- Remeesuremenl gain on post employment benefit (net ol lax) 0.89
Balance at the end of the yeer {23,011.52} I.23,244.721

galance of Other Equlty at the 6nd of the year (i) + (li) 9 5.,18 20 774.33

MBAI

ETS

m

shareholders.
ll

Acc

Note 10: Other EauitY

li. Other Compaehen3lve lncome

500.00

Perticulars

-------- ------- t
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oa. ro .oc.lrLad nmnd.l .tfb|tirL lb, Itr y... ..it , !l Lrch 2ora

tlob ll: EdrfllE

l.l il6 c.oiird. O.a.ir-
l3* 7027 frqr c..rita O.a.,r6 ol R., a,ar,s7C.ch
(P.Y.l3!a 702' tlm difr tto..t rotR..9,61,574...h)

67 569 95 67 569 95

18. C!@d mtr tir. ol 
']qEmt 

bon*rt3
47.66,.15
16 a9? 50

57,569.95

Tot l l{oFudnt boforinc. 50,677./6

F,un R.t bd P.rrh!

(b) Cusn m.ndi.r ol dlor.r.ri borro.i!9. 16892 50

2 501.6

Tot l cumit bom*lns. 15,492.50 2 507.06

57,56r.95

it.l hllr ot tlm ot nP.!trDnl.nd -c!.t.. p.dld.<l ln n p..t o, cur.d non cw.rdu. .hb.fl!n... .. ! r..

i0 Ttu trrtrli or ,!&mpto. ol prrcpd v.r. ol d.6.nM!r r! .t t tor.

1 2&tLv-2,1 12 $ok
2 8.4t6 25 12.50%
3 3 446 25 12 soek

3 446 25 12 50%
5 2&NoF25 614 25 12 547.

a 146.25 12.Wh
414 25 12.54%

0 2&Au9-26 3 4r'6 2a

11!

A. Pd th. d.6l d&!. nlntdr.d h th. D.briftE Tru3t o..d,coipany n- th. opro.r ro vothr..ay rBd.€n 0F Ebt ituE. .nd !l.ir on th.
.rh., dril! t ql/ri.r f,n d D.cdnb.f 31 .2022 , th. Comp.ny h.d l!rh.d.d MO. .9!Eg.tin! to R!,2700-05 Lllir by Ed(ino rh. t c. vdr
oa r,Jco Ir!!n tu.10.@.(,o0..dr io R!.0.61 576.&h

DlltgqfJtl.r!9llEXrtl@i
i) A.dg. olr 100'. .qdiy ol 0r. l..a.
l) F!.dC. m 49j( .qlJ{y ol $. Sp.clbd Prol.d. b b. out.d by t l.!,r or by trotdhe Coopey Djtt) Buaddr Ltd.
ii) E dg. or hv..n t h uniL oi .llllm lftll h.ld b, b.tL or h.ld b, hdfu @nF.n, t lc 8lldoon Ud -'d .rd(ct/! pt d!€ h.. b.tl c$.rd ..

p.r ti. brh. ot tn. b$...uo .. !r dn odx 6Lrnr dr6. or ttr o.brn@ rct o6d.
iv) CqF..t eu.rb{ Pl.srl Uxbrlring tm DIp 6u|d6 Linr*[ H6i6v.r, Gqnni..d Obtg.ni@ .h.l E&@ b . po!G.i6 mmr Flsufir

b .dri.vr dn ot COo prq.d by p.q.d
v) A cnt!. !, s.y ol . d..d .l hr.ihdloi o'1 tn. (0 &6( l..n6 [.d6 Mrn b b. hinr-!.d by t'. t..ll.r (iD tL F!..rn .rd ttu6 irt ntf.d

br*.c.ourt! h {icn { th. R*av.bb. ol l}r 1..{lr.h.l b. q!.h.d idoditt.l tri@ .d. !N@.d. to b.Gqrvld by lllltr upon .& ot th.
sp.dlLd Prli.dr.t hlo 0r. prlvrb lm.rhlrn TMr fl.vtt) o. io aly ftn p..ty. id {i) comp.ny htr G.wp Lo-. 4.it d b, lh. sp.dn d
ftli.d.lM 0r l..w.

v) Ii. c.irP.,t, h.. m..h FoR wfi R.. 100 Hl. will loSl B-i lt*h i hor &ti.ct b [i' o. s.o.fiv tnt !.to.wtin b.dwi.. o.rld.d, ior
c..ntl5.. o( S.fr.dL 2 : Cddrr. in Lhd.drdlo. or Ahrrt d OrO .rcrbd 6 26rh t {.h 2(|2a.

lt- rht d i.Lrdd b, i.ld:
l) Fr{ F.c. va, t!d.mo{.it.h.a b. fi th.d& IIE 3e ndt'..i.. rh. O.dn d Ocr. oa llotnmt rd of,Gdrd..cn t{arqtr{ r.d.npto.

.hd b. 6.(h .t 5 .cconlrrc. ,tt th. R.tuiptd S.h.dr&. Hd,.t . .. pr !r r.brr cLs. dEiriirE!, in rh. O.b-tn lrult O.d,Cqnp.1y
h.t t'. oad.n to vd,!iil, n ,..ln tr O.b.nnxt. .nd b3.d o. 0r .1D, th. dtEoy rs nrbrrned rr.6.iir.. rrntithe !o R. 270O.O5 Lt !
drilC trl. lhadt F 2@-23.

i) Th. 4!..irr.. r! to b. r!4...!.d I lrllrtun ot 8.. 33,5a3.90 t&r. n tr. .nd or tr b.rr

11.2 F.t rlr Lh.drb

) Frxftht Ys 202!.2a

nrq! i. m 6r!. whch i. prnling ior ..!.hdbn ln.I!on to bonwtlll $lcn b y.l to b. E!i3r..!d ritr R.gbti. of Conp.na. D.r6d tE

13% Non Cdv.rtbb D.b.nrur.6 16492.50 33 7A5 00

lrll Fh.ft l.l Y..r 2!22-23

13* Nn Conarlt)h D.bdtu..3 16.892.50 50 677 45 67.56995
16,392,50 50,617,45 67,659.95

MUMBAI

\. cHl

Irf, Hol.lrle CdIPiy ha n i c6rt.d D.b.nir! R.(bltrCtim R.r\n tui{ tl. ajflsn F.r .rxt ,rrviou! y..r dx to hd.qu.c, ol Em! h

orr 3l.l AraBt 2O2t md 21th Ocloo.. 2O2l, tu Cqip.., h.d i.or.d 5,627 $d 1,2rb Non Cdrt dr. O.Ortuu G.p.divd, 6 pd.t
d...nl.rx b..n 1fl j&x Ft ol R.. 10 lthr cr &!.rnu[ l.. n .!qr{.t 6a*lddio ot tu. 70,270.6 brh!, T}I. 0.6. ulr ot 

'ECdpry n l.t d 6 8omb.y Slod EEI[rg..Th. Cmpry h.d u..d th. F.oc..d. h .c.ad.rlc! *itt th. oq.cB tl.t d in 0E Pt omnt

t ra,.rz5ol ,!,ra5roo
t '6nrrr5 I 67 569 95

T---.?"65fi4



DBL INFRAASSETS PRIVATE Llt'I]ED
{Formerlv Hioh Flv Airlinc! Prlv.te Llmlted)

l{otaa to co olldrt d fnrnclal atatdnafita ior th. v.a. andad 3l Lrch m24

Not 12: Oti.r Fln ncl.l llabllld..

3l March 2024 3'l March 2023
Curait
AccruGd ElQaaraa3

Cradiblr lor Exroi!6a
Sitin! Foo! Pay.He
Retantbn nur.y
Wtrr€ld Mon€y
St trb.y Dt/.!

2.O2

30.38

o.34
44_74

130.74
0.22

31.66

0.5a
1E,3E

34.69
3.41

Total 208.4a 9t.01

ln

oie 13: Trade Pavabl€

3l Me?ch 2024 31 March 2023
CUltlnt

(a) totrl drbbnding du63 ol ryicao ent6lpris€s and 3nrsll 6nt6rpris€s
(b) total oJEtanding du€s of clldibB oth6r thsn miqo ent€rprises and

3ma[ €ite.prbas
132.05

Total 132.05

l3.l: Th€ro .r. no ouatanding du.i payablc to vendoB r€ei3tered under MSME A€t, 2006 and heve supplied any goods or provilod any
s€n i:e! b thc coanpeny, hence, no int€r€lt i! applicedo.

A! .t llarch 31 2024 ln
trom due date ot

SR No.
1-2 yeaB 2-3 yea6 More than 3

Total

(D MSME
(iD Othe19 132_05 132.05
(iiD Dispuled dues - MSME
(iv) DispL{ed dues - Others

mll.

ETS

13.2 TirdePay.ble..g.lng:



t gfrEt /LsEls rdvarE LattED
lFri-tv Hldr Ev lrr- hvi. rhidr

l|d.t 6d.l.tftd f,lred.r.adnt,,tr d'.i-d li hr.tr,2a

l{ot l'! O.lt rr, Tu

l. Adqnr eolnl-d h ,rvttt or to.!

Cd€d in on. r.t clE!./ l6*.C)

Rdni{ b o.tthruon .id DErd o, imro...y d.fd!@.

24567

(513.3!)

(o 0a)

1742.01)
hcoD Lr .rp.E nport d tn nrr rtrmm a pren ra

(227,63) tra2.05t

Y-. n<Ld ll iLrch 20a:

P.ormn lor c&cnre elord lc ru ,!rpc. on p.ytMt b3i. 103 o12 0.96

Tot l d.md lI A$.tr IAI 1.03 o.tI

ot''.a L! u.!b
Dt .rE h {rrlc va, rn t x !... oa lhBlnit crt d a F.i 830.86

5r3.12

0.30

1,3/(3.94

o.30
robl o.l.md l.r U.bititi.r tBl 51!.42
Dea.@d t r {ai.et yu.brrrtr.! lN.rl la€l !29.71 o.12 (613,421 1,343.32

Y..r.nd.d !l il.rch 202!:

Nol! 15: Orh.rC!@d li.6 ftb!

330 2BX
3.30 2,ll

Noi.l6: P.ovl.ion.

Ptuirb. ,!. .,9..4 .aor.d io. r.r Arpo.. d p.t nt b.i.

Tor.l D.t md l.r A.t r! IAI t9.92 t3.35 l.ot

lr.t rrl T.r U.tIt .
ollrlllo h on inc v.t .nd hx b.e or l.v!.rn.nt c.dLd d F.ir

(830 86)

Tor.l o.Lfr{ T.r U.b m.t [A) (l3o.16l
o.i...n l. {4.$t yu.barld.! lN.! l^al tt9.92r l!.45 a2a_78

056
2.8 3.00
293 367

25.667.59
(3.491.2a)

15 111.50

22.116 X5 1511150

22.1t4.2t tl,ttt.t,

0.r9
4,4t9,86

o_60

0.1!

0.61

lxoqfr.r
lProtb.t caF.r..d elrau

I

pdu$ lor llnoEst.nd R.d.mrbd ot O.ldtuEi
ts. P.yhanl ol lnlaEt drtlg fi. Fs

SlnB
P@i!io6 b. CqiFB.i.d aD.qlo
P'olton ,o..t$..nt d ctuO.t

16,115.7t

MBAI

8992 88 85 108



DAL NFRAASSETS PRIVATE LIMIIEO
lForlnorlv Hloh FlvAlrlin.! P.ivrto Llmltodl

ilot r to con.olld.t d tln.ncl.l .trblrt.ntr ,or th. v..r .nd.d 3l Urrcn 2024

l{ot 17 : R.lrnE ftom Oomiro..

l'l .nh 2O2a 3l ll.rch 2023

conrad R6caFts
lnLrssl lncome on Balanca Complotixl Co6l
Inloresl lncomo oo Fhanc&lA$6ts

5.12E 20

5.126.20 5.594.76

31 il.rch 2024 3'l tl.rch 2023

lnlsrcsthcome
- lntgrosl lncom€ on deposil wilh banks
- lnl€rBsl on lncome Tar rctund
- lnleresl lncome on lnvll Unils
Dividsnd lncome on lnvlT Unils
R€vorsal ol prcvision for doubttrlcl6bl

173 98

'|,2fi.15
1.759_82

5.@
3,194.95 112.15

Nole 19 : Emolov.. bonGflts Ero.nse

Note 20 : Coltr olConsrrucrion

Note 2l : Financ€ cGr3

Note 22 :Othe. Eroenss3

3t it.rch 202lt 3l ilarch 202!

Srby Ereenros

Empby.r Cont$oli,n to ,idfra tund

39.65
0.45
0.82
1.12

55.62
0.9t
3./t3
r.58

12.21 61.Tf

3i M.rch 202/t 31 M.rch 201!
Subconlrador ciae€s
lndep€ndonl Engineerhg Fees
t.bour ess deduded dd l.r6s

4.967.69 4,032.15
106.64

7.02
28.33

4,967.69 4.171.1'

ln Lat

ll lt.rch 2o2il 31 ll.nh 2021

Eaot ChaO€3

Dtsco.rntftg ot lnt r!{r d rEd€rnpdon prlInirm o.t

Unrmorn!€d Pm.Bsitg Chrrloi

ht r!3l on IDS

0.02

10.556.09
172.A1

0.01

5.26

9.556_/t4

197.32
1,751.17

10,7?8.73 11,510.19

3'l f.r!h 202it 3l tLrEh 2023

5.00

3.57
2.00
2.30
1_12

53.39
15.69
0.05
0.05
5.00

45.58 E7.22

$. cH/

t-
u

T

7.'
m

1,172.U
9,10.93
/181.79

Note 18 :Othorlncom.

7'1.92

0.E5
20.17
19.51

Pryiront to Audofs (R€r6r t{oto 25)
i/LcaadEoo6 €reens€
To0r fld Traval Be.ns€s
Oirldor.nhg ie6s
Advartaaih6nt Ee€n6€5
Profcllaond aid Crl! lacy charles
L.gd F..r
ProftltbnC i.r
hb€rl m GsT .nd IDs
Pro\rido.r br Do.rbtl dcpo.d (R.t r t{oi. 7)
Mb. b-nc. l/lJtit olt

3-00
1.92
0.13
1.55
2.@

19.39
8.95
0.33
0.31



OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIS]TED
(Formorlv Hlch Fh Alrllnor Prlv.te Limlted)

Xol...a to conlolldated tlnancLl atatofir€nts for tha ltaronded 3l X.]ch 202a

l{ot 23: Excaptional ltenra
Rs. ln Laths

Particula.s For the year cndcd 31

n .ch 2021
For the yrar endod

3l ]rarch 2023
Proil on Sale of shares ofAssociate Companies
Proft on Sale of units of lnvlT

EAU.31
27.63

11,517.72

Total 8,511.94 11,5',17,72

ln L.kh3

23.1: Exceptional item:

Ihe Company "oBL lnfra Assets Pdvate Limited' ("D|APL") along with ils holding company "Dilip BuiHcon Limited" ('DBL) had
execuled a non-binding Te.m Sheet, with 'Shrem lnvl'l-' (an infaaslructurc anvestment kust, registered under lndian Trust Act 1882 with
Securities and Exchanoe Board of lndia) on January 21,2022,lot tanstering their investment in Equity Share Capital and Promote/s
Unsecured Loan in respect of ten subsidiarjes (Hyb.id Annui9 Model ('HAM") projects). Equity transfer to Shrem lnvlT shall be
completed in a progressive manner afrer lhe completion of he projects, subrect to recerpl of approvals from the respective poecl
lenders and NHAI. The consideraton for the transfer ofshares will be aeceived in form of LJnits ofthe lnvit.

Ouring the yea. ended 31 March 2023, 49% Equity Share Capital of OBL Bellary Byrapura Hightvays Privale Limited, DBL Gorhar
Khairatunda Highways Private Limited, DBL Eangalore Nida0atta Highrrays A/t Ltd ,DBL Byrapura Chalhkere Highways Pvt Ltd and
DBL Revra Sidhi Highways hd Ltd was t-ansftrred lo Shrem lnvtT against whidr aE,28,702 Unils at a price ol Rs. 101.31 per unit and
2,75,72,,{40 Units at a price of Rs. 10,1.70 per unit in aggregate value of Rs. 33,760.25 hkhs were received as consftreralion and the
Promote/s Uns€cured Loans was repaid by the respedive companies by way of bank lransfer. The Company has eamed profrt of Rs.
11,517.72 hkhs on a[ these fansaclions and disclosed as a part of'excoptional item'in the stalement of P()fil and Loss.

Durin0 the year ended 31 March 2024i9% Equity share capital of DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Private Limited ,49% Equity
share capital of Pathrapalli lGthghora Hilhways Private Limited and 21% Equity share capital of DBL Rewa Sidhi Highways Private
Limiled t ansiened to Shrem lnvlT against which Rs.16337.51 hkhs were received as consideration. 48,28,702 units of Shrem lnvlT
is transferred to two parties against which Rs.5,408.14 lakhs were received as consideration. And entire investment in Dhrol Bhadra
Highways Limited ,Dodabalhpur lloskote Hiohways Pvt Ltd and Repallewada Hiohways Limited translerred to Dilip buildcon limited
aganst which Rs.703,1.28 lakhs were aeceived as consideration.The Company has eamed profit of Rs.8,484.3'l lakhs on all lhese
transaclions and disclosed as a pan of'exceptional item' in the statement of Profrt and Loss.

Ourino the year ended March 31,2021, the Holding Company has transiened the complete stake held in Dhrol Bhadra Highways
Private Limiled, Dodaballapur Hoskote Hirhways Privale Ltd and Repallewada Hirhways Private Limited to ib holding Company Dilip
Buildcon Limited. The Holding Company has eamed Nil proft / Loss on these hansactions.

During the year ended 31 March 2021,1a,2E,702 units of Shrem lnvlI is transtuned lo two parties against which Rs.5,408.14 lakhs
were rcceived as @nsideration. The Company has eamed proft of Rs. 27.63 lakhs on this transaction and disclosed as a pad of
'exceptional item' in the stalement of Profl and Loss.

Note 24: Remeasurcment oain on revaluation of lnvestment

Fo. the ye.r cndcd 3l
It.,ch 2024

For the yea. ended
31 March 2023

Remeasuremenl qain on revaluation of lnvestnent in lnvlT (Refer Note 4.2) 2,038.77 3.301.25

2,038.77 3,301.25

Note 25: Pavmenb to AuditoB
R!. ln Lakhi

Particula.s For the yearended 3l
Maich 2024

For the yea. ended
31 March 2023

For Statutory Audit
For Limited Review

'!.50

1.50
2.25
1.50

Total 3.00 3.75

l{ote 26: Ea.nlno D€r Share {Basic and dilut.dl

TS

/t
u.
ll.

m

Particularc For the ye.r ended 31

natch 2021
For the year end6d

31 March 2023

(2.951.00)

20,00,000
11.127.',tE)

20,00.000

a) Loss aner Tax (Rs. ln Lakhs)
b) Weighted av€rage number oI equity shares used as denominator
c Basic and Diluted of nominal value of Rs 1 O/- each (147.s5) (221.36)

,o

Particulals

Tot l



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE U ITEO
(Formerly Hlgh Fly Airlines Private Llmited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements tor th6 year gnded 31 ilarch 2021

Note 27: Relatsd oartv transactions disclosur€ as roquirod under lnd AS 24:

Details of related
Name of related parties Nature of relationship
Dilip Buildcon Limited
Narenpur Punea Highways Ltd.
Dilip Suryavanshi
Pooja Maheshwari
Ashwini Verma
Satish Chandra Pandey
Mayank Jiniwal
Pragya Raghuwanshi
Pachwara Coal Mines Private Limited
Bangarupalem Gudipala Highways Limited
OBL lnfratech Private Limited
DBL Poondiyankuppam Highways Private Limited

Holding Company
Associate Company

Oireclor
lndepend6nt Director
lndependent Oirector
lndependent Director

Chief Financial Ofic€r
Company Secretary

Subsidiary of Holding Company
Subsidiary of Holding Company
Subsidiary of Holding Company
Subsidiary of Holding Company

Name of related parties 31{3-2024 or Till Date of Transler % Share Holding
Nature of Relationship Till Oate ot Transfer

DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt Limited Associate Company (Till 02 Aug 2023) 49.O0%
Dhrol thadra Highways Limited Associate Company (Till 11 Mar 2024) 25.08%
Oodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvl Ltd Associate Company (fill 11 Mat 2024) 49.OOo/o

Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Ad Ltd Associate Company (Till 30 Oct 2023) 49.00%
Repallewada Highways Limited Associate Company (Ttll 'l.1 Mat 2024\ 49.00%
DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways A/t Limited Associate Company (Till 31 Jul 2023) 21.OoYo
Narenpur Pumea Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company 49.00%

Name of related parties 3't-03-2023 3',t43-2023
Nature of relationship % Share Holdinq

DBL Nidagatta Mysore Highways Pvt Limited Associate Company 49.00%
Dhrol Bhadra Highways Limited Associate Company 30.12%
Dodaballapur Hoskote Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company 49.00%
Narenpur Purnea Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company 49.Oovo
Pathrapalli Kathghora Highways Pvt Ltd Associate Company 49.OOv"
Repallewada Highways Limited Associate Company 49.000/.
DBL Rewa Siddhi Highways Pvt Limited Associate Company 21.OOo/o

a

$. cH/

m
q
t
t!
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PiIVAIE LI'IEO
(Fmity Halt ny Art- Pltv.5 t mO

ll'5. L .d!.ad.t! farEhl .r.an*! td tr )i.. .n{.d at LEh ,2a

lloa 27: R.Lad ort rr.M.{.d dh.bnn .r rcrJid ud.r hd A3 2a:

O.EiL of nLi.d Frry k .{c.ron.

Fo..lr E.r.nd.d !1 H.rch 2023

(0
raEcd.fi aibr a. F.r
t ld-b4&rd
OBL Rd Sildi H(rr-r. Ai tiriad
O.d.!.tFrr rbiot lLahrrt Plt Lid
P.rhr.pa K.ltrlha. llen-,l Prn ld
DBL Nkhg.ft. rt.d Htn*r. Pvt ud
Dtud 6h.rt Hii*ry. A,r Ld
R.pra.ud. HidMr. Lifiil.!
oBL 6..$Lc ld.e.tr HCh*F Pn Udrd
OBL B.lhry Bytpun HhlMy. Pn lrn d

oBt BynOUh Clr.Lt EE Hilhuy. Pvt Lhit d
DAL Gorh.r Kh.idond. lliqh{y. Pv Utrit d

95!.26

r,629.40

2,6r6.6

a5l16

!,62t.lo
!1,149,09

2,416,,6
7,121.,t9

2,214.18

!.a7r,29
1,9t5.39

7,924.1t

3,479,29

I 965.39

blr@llllhr"sr-Eat
Dod.5.a.Er tto.tor. Hienh,. Pn Lrd

ll.6pu. P'm. Htn€y. Pn Ln
lrrl'or En.d. Hd,{y. Pvr Lic
P.tlr+{ &tnlhd tten-F Pn tB
R.p.i.rd. Hat My. UnlEd
OBL R* Si$i Hiiw. Pvl tld

122_la 122.19

120.97

95r.26
820.97

05t:6

D+ Buil&5n ltd
Dal hh.ct P.i[i. urtbd
DBL P@ndy.nrupp&r rthr.y. Plt Lid.

Ood.6.r.B/. rbtrol. Hhh{,t Pvt Ltd

N.mrur Pm.. Hioh{y. Pn ld
P.0!r+.I Kl$ehor llilhrr. Pv Ltd

le.n..na.l.. cuaip.l nigr-y. tra
R.r.Lfd. Hi$€r. 16

351675

14.110.72

2 031.56

3.516 75

2142.25

R.F nfl or l'{n C5.n

DBL 6..!don Xd.e.tl. Hah-r. Fn [i ritd
Oo.Lb.-Fr, rftnrF pvr rd
P.h.f.. x.|hlrFr H(rurt FV Lrd

Oat Xil.g.t lrym Hlah-yr Pv Ltd

Dh.d Elr.<t liiClMyt Lrd

D6L Rm SEdriEthsr. Aa Lrr*.d
OAL 6.Lry aFc0r HEhrr. An urid
OaL Bynpor Cld.kn r XhrMy. Pvr Lir$.d
OBI G..h.r &.dmd. HktMy. An li .d

1.612.00

a 530.00

.,0,.t.50

2,T67.11

t.6t2.eo
4,530.00

2,t31,L
3.577,01

3,425.,4 3

(s) It FrDnt ot Ldn rlr

i. u nn C6hcr i.6}i.

P.!rr+l rurhohd Htn-r. Pv Ud
N..npur Plm. Hit My. hn lld
R.p.Lr.d. H(,MF [td
OotLb.LprrHo.tot tlieh*yr P( Lld
DtrEl Bt.&t Hbhry. Ltd

B..g.top.Lm GlqnL Hiqh-yr id

5.00

503 52 50r.52

6.00

6.00

2132.25
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PiIVAIE LTIEO
(Fm'lyrlrn F lrtEP,'.. LrdJd)

iLa. t cddd.ad rrBLl .atd.n ld ih. r... drt d 3t hEh ,ota

ilob 2l: R.l.td qrn l, d.6oi .b.lo.{- .. m*!d !r.r.r hd At ,a:

Fo.lrx y..r.nd.d !1 .rch 2O2a For rh. y.!r..d.d 31 frEh 2023

3)
(D

8.Lll44-

DBL tl.hg.lt. rar.@ l|trMr. Pn Lff.d
IInl Eh*.llat t Ltna.d
Oodh.r.gor lb.lor. HdE . P\n Ld
XrDiplr Plff. tlit{y. Pn lrl
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DrrtDl &t.rt Hlah[y. LltLd
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P.drr.O.I lorhdtm Hrghsr! An ti
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a,2fr_17

14.212.45

r.5935e
3.274.,t7

16r2.40
2.161.11
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(iv) Tnd. R...i€br..
laengerup"r.. e,a,p.t xhn*y. ua 5.22



Th€ Comp.ny3 3enior m.nagc|ns{ ovea!663 tha nemg€m.rlt ol thGlr li3k3. Thc Compeny3 senbr menelelnsnl L iupporEd by a
tinanciel rBk committo€ ,!!l dvi!.! on fnancid aBk! and th6 appropiab financid dtk gowmancc framcs/ork for the Company. The
financial d3k commiticc Paovidaa lssuranc. to lhc Compeny'3 36nior manag€ment that h. Company3 fn6nci6l ritt aclivitca erc govcm6d
by .PPropd.E pdici(ls and fllc.dures .nd that fin ncid nsk rlr id6nt'fi.d, m6$uncd snd manegd in scconlsncs wit| th. Comp.ny!
pdici63 .rd risk obi.diwt. Al dcrivatiw sclivitb3 tor dsk ,nanig.m.nl purpo3.(r .nr canild out by spGci.lLt te.ms th.t h.v. thc
eppropridc akil3, e&cri6rEa and lupcrvLirt. lt b thc Company'3 pdrc-y trat no t".dino in dc.ivativas lor lpccdaltve puDola3 may b.

Th€ 8o.rd of DirecloB rlvicw3 end .9€e3 polici.! for managing cach of th63€ risk3, which aI€ lummarit€d b€lolr.

i) lr.rtot .Br

OBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE L ITED
{Formoriv Hioh Fk Airlin8! Priv.te Umitsd)

Not r to consolidatcd fin.ncl.l .letom.nts tor ths v..rcnded 3'l March 202/t

Note 2E: Financial ri!h m.naoomont oolicv a.d obiectives

Th. lndFi! cxduda th. iopect of mol/€m6nE in .'llrftst vadad.! oni ttlc canying veluc! ol g6trity, ofi6r po.t rstir.m€nt odigalioru.nd

Comp€ny's activities aeosad to int6r*t rate risk.

ii) Crodit ri3l

Th. k.y obilctt\,c ol th. Co.np!ny'3 c.Fit{ m.n.lsmnt B io .n3utr th€t it meint in! . 3t H. c.Fitrl stuclul! wih thc focll! on bt l .quity
to uphold in'rastor, crodibr, lhd dlsbm.r coof(hnce and to .n3!r! ntur! dcvdopficrt d it! blsiness. Tho Cofipany L foc!$d on
maint irin! . !to.E .quiv b.tc to cn.!r6 indcp.ndlnc., s.cllriv. .3 n'cl e3 llmnci.l t.rjbNity b. pobrntd iJiu! bonowing3, if tlquil.d
witlod impding ttc ds* Fofl6 of tl|c Comp.ny-

Th. 3$tilivity sndFB in thc lbllowing !.ction3 rtLE io th. po3iton .3 sl 31 tilardr 2024. Th6 lcnsiliw ol th. d.val( inco.n. d.b,icnl
ibm i6 th. cllccl oa th. .3!um.d chanlE in E3p.cliv! markci i3k3. Thc s€Bili\rity anely3B have bcen popar6d oa th6 ba3ir fl.t fic
amolnt ol n t dlu and thc r.to ol fixed to lloaling irEGst rab. of lh. dcbl er! con3t nl et 31 March 2024.

Cicdit rilt ofl Fad€ r€c.ivaHd ii limil€d as th. calbmcls of thc Company mainly conlirb of the Holding Company having a stong crcdit
worthin6s. The povkion malrix tak6s into account availaue cxtemal .nd inbmal credil riik factoG such as crodit ratings ftom c..dit raiing
agcncia3, financial condilion, e!6ing of accoun6 Ec.ivauc and thc Compeny's histoncal cxpcricnc€ for customcrs.

Th. {.he ol rld€ Gc.iv.bL. .t tl. r.po.ling d.b thli wcre nol imp.itrd tr rB haow!
0

31 March 2024 3l March 202!
1.003.49 r53.15

Crldil rBk trom bd.ncca with b.nk md fin*rciC inilhnions B m.o!.d by ths compsny in .ccordanca with €ompsnys pdicy. lnvcarrncnt!
ol tu.du! tunds ar! madc only with epprovcd coudarperliB and within cEdit lifirits alcignrd !o c€ch countarparty. Company monitoG rsling,
dtdit tPEads snd fimncid ttlnltl of il3 countar pertios. Comp.ny monitcrs r.ting3. crldal spread end finsncial 3ten!& of il3 count r
peni.t. 8$cd on ongoing a$63srncnt company adiusl its €4o.ur! b variou3 countapsrlica. Company's maximum erposure to cr6dit ri6k
for tha componcnls of belenc! lhGct i3 thc cadying amounl as disdoard in NoE 6.

Flo.ncl.l lnltrumsnE .nd c.rh depo.its

iii) Lhuldity ri3r

Liquility ntk E th! rBk th.t lhc Company may not b. .U6 b m6€t itr pr6!.nt and tutrr. c.3h now and cdlatordl oHig6tion3 vrihout iocuring
un!cc.pt!H. lolt€s. Complny's obi.ciiv. i3 to, at rll tmc maintein optimum lavds of Iqukjity to moet it3 cash 3nd collatedl roquircm.n$.
Comptny dolCy mor tol! ils lquidily posil,on Bnd d.ploys r robrst cash memqemeni syslcm. lt mainlains adcqualc sources of financing at
optimi!€d co3t

The tablc aummarilalhc maturity pmfl€ oa compaq/r finanqal liabililic3 baled on contrech,el undiscountcd gaymcnts

0
A..t 3l lrarch 2024 C.rrying.mount t3 yoara Beyond 3 Y6..r

Bonoliiner
Tra<h payaua
Oficr fmncC li.Hilils

67,569.95
132.05

206.46

16,692.50

132.05

206.,tE

33.7E5.00 16.692.45 67.569.95
132_05

200ta

0

tu at 3, M.rch 2023 '13 ye..r Beyond 3 Yo.B

BonowinC!
Loan3 lrom Rdated Perlias
Oltl.r f rwlciC li.blitirs

67,569.95
2,507.06

-z--';i-'91.01
2,507.06

91.0'l

16 692.50 50.677.45 57 569.95

2 507.06

91.01

Msttcl rLk i3 thc ri3k th.t th. fair vdu€ ol t trru ca3h llo'*3 oa a fnanciC insturEnl wii nudlate becaus. ol cnangc. in m.ltct pricc3-
Uafi.l dst cornpri!8 thr6. typ.s of ritk inl€r.lt r.t .i!i. c!r,!nc, dsk rnd ofl€r pnc. d3k lucfi as .qoity pric. tuk lnd cornmodiv ris*.
Fimndd iBtruments tficcbd by rmrket dsl indud€ lonowings. lredr .nd other payeH.r. 3.curily d6po3il. lr.d6 and other r.6ivsbLs,



DBL II{FRA ASSETS PRIVATE UIIiIIEO
lFomertu Hioh Flv Airlln63 Priy.t. Lhitedl

Notr3 to con3olld.t d finarci.l3t Lm.nl! for the yc.r.rd.d 3l rrch 2024

Xote 29: Fairvalu€ ot fin.nci.l arrots .nd liabiliti.s

S.t out bclow, lt . comP.rl.on by cl..t ofli. ct.ty'ng .mo{ntr .nd t l. y.lu. ofrh. Comp.nl/s nn.ncl.l lniuun.nt thrt .re
r'cognlt d ln th. fin.ncld.tn m.nL.

Sr.
3l il..ch 2024 31 ila.ch 202i1 3t March 2023 3l tl.rch 2023

(a)
FlnancLl ALat
CanLd al rt|ordaad coat

Lo*ts giwn

Oth.. fimndd s$.1
Cash and c.sh .qdvdcrn '

aaluaad at talr valua tirough Odra Complthanalya
hco r lFVOCrl

Fln.ncl.l LLbilld.3
CrrLd rl .lnord$d co.t
Eorao' ings

Ohcr financid lhtilfi€3

(1,718.67)
t10,111.35

1,003-49
111.71
65.45

32.535.4E

67,569.95
,t32.O5

206.44

(1,71E.67)

40.111-35

32.535.46

67.569.95

208.48

11,662.E5
16,073.06

153.15

16_72

264.56

36 037 30

70.0rr.01

91.01

rl 662 85
16 073 06

1672

36 937.30

70,on -01

91.01

ln

TtE Cornp.ny mantdB pdicirs and pmc.dul!! to vdu. llmndd s.tc€ or fimn id lisbihhs uing lh6 b.n snd most ,tlcvdrr drte
.vaa.U€. ln 8ddtofl. ih. Comp.ny inicmeny €!i6r. vCuAirn!. indudino ind€p.nd.rn pnc. vCidslion for cGrtdn in3trumcnls.
Funh.r, in olh.'f inst.ncls. Company rllam indapcndGd pridng v.ndoG lo assic an conotDrsring thc vdustion! of ertain

Th. lrr vdu. ol th. fn.rEiel as6t! and l&ilii!3 ..! indudcd et lh. anounl C stich th€ initrumcnt th.t wodd t trc.iv.d to rdl an
asscl o. paid to lranlfcr liablity in an odcdy tr.fiactbn batw.an makd p.'iicipants at lha rfica3urcmcnt det6.

tha foiorylng nrdloda ard araumpdoia raaa t tad to aatmata tha ,alr valtraal
' Thc Compay has td ditdoscd fic Lt vCta3 o{ da pa}tuca. lrada rrcaivad.3 snd caah dld csah aqrivCd ! bccau!6 thcir
carrying amorrits rc r(}.3onaIc approximaliorl oa fCr vdua.

Fdr vtluc of sacuity dGpoiB hav. ba.i esti,nalcd u3ine e discounlad c$h lb!, modd. Tha vdustion r€quin3 manaolmslt to mek6
certrin rssumdion! *out antGran ralls, mrturily pariod, clrdit d3k, foGcalad c.sh io*!.

Long-fain fucdfd! rd vr.i.dc-rela racayabLa/bo.yowings ar! cvaluatad b, th. co.nplny b.$d m par.ma(cn !ud! as int.r.rt
rd6., indiviluC .rldtuqll nc$ of th. al.lofll.' dld thc ri.t dad.rinica oa th. llng|c.d p.oicct. B.s.d o{l thi! .vJurtion.
dlorancls tra talan into e(rnl for th! Grpadad crfitl lo63a! oa lhata r!ari\,eb1c!. A3 ol rcpodine d.ta thc caryino rmourt! oa luch
r&dvalc1 I d dorenc.. ar! nol malcriJt ditcr€r hom ihar cJcdstad ldr yalu€a.

C.rrying vCu. oa loms from t*lks, olhlr non cundrt bono' ing3 rtd dh.r fnrxjd lCiliti.! i! .iim.l.d by ditcouding lututr ca$
lbw! uling rda! q/ttll|ty avijdc for dau oi im * t.rm!, crudt rilt *td rarnaidiE fiaturitat. Th. own non- paafoamanca li3k ar at
rcpoding &1. was ass.alrd to bc intigrifc. .

Fd7 vduo htaaarctry
Th. iollo.ring i. . Fovid.s lh. fiir vduG m..!urdn.rn HcrsEhy of Compa.V3 s!.13 ind laeliliti.! group.d irto L€vrl 1 to Lrvli 3 .!
dcsctiH in ligrifcun lccourning pdid63 - t{olc 1. Fu tial llblc &rcrib.! th. vCuston Ldrniqll.s u!.d, k6y inpd! to vCurton! lnd
qurtitaliva infomdioi atroul igni6cr{ unoblarvsHc inpula for fair vsluc mcs3uf.rnanE.

TS

<rt m

M MBAI

$. cH/

?

(bt

(r,

I Falr v.lue



DBL II{FRA ASSE]S PRIVATE LIIIITED
lFomerlv Hioh Flv Aidincs Private Limitedl

Iot63 to con.olld.t d fn.nci.l statomonb to, th. y..icndod 3l Ua.ch 2024

Qu.ntt dy. dilclo3ur6 of f.h v.tu. m...ur.m€nt hiar.rchy io..3s.t! .3 .t 3l ll.rch 2023 :

llot 2t: F.lrv.lu. otltn ncl.l.3.dr.nd lhbllld..
Qu.ndtattva dLcloru.r3 ot ,rl. valu. mxturllrrot lihr..chy ior aaarta B rt 3l X.rEh m24:

Sr
No.

F.lr valus mealursmont usinq
tachnhua urad

(a) Financial.i36t3 maasur€d at
0
(i0
(iii) Oh.r f nanc.id a$d

(1,718.67)
1t0.111.35

114.71

Darcounlcd c€sh

dscourt

Fln.ncl.l $3.tr m.r3uDd.t F.lr viu. rhrough Otl.i
Cornpr.h.BlY. lncome (FVOCI)

32.535.216 Vducd el MV a3 oo Eporling
aha

{cl Finenclal llebllity m..sured .t.morii3od cost
(D

(ii0

67 569.95 Discounl6d cash

Other rinancial liabililies 204.44

ln

ln
Sr
No.

F.ir v.lue m€asur.m.nt uilnq
t chnhu! ur.d

lnputs used
Lavol2 Lovel 3

lal Flnancl.l a.$ts mersu.sd at amortkod colt
(D

(i0
(iiD othG. fnancid eis6t

11,662.85
16.073.06

16.72

Discounlod cash

(b) FlnancLl aaaaE tn.asurld rl Falr valua through Odlcr
Co6poh.n.l'r. lncomc IFVOCI)

(i) 36.937.30 Vducd d NAV e. on ropoding
d.l.

lcl Fin.ncl.l ll.bllily m.asuod et.mo.tisod cost
(D

(iD

Borrowings 70.077 _01

Oher linancial liabilities 91 01

DudtE thc t!.r cfibd 31 Madr 2024 8nd 3l Mr.t 2023, lhcre *rr! no usd.r! b.iit n lcld 1 dld l6d 2 ljr vduc mc€Bur€ritsrts 6nd m trenirs ido
end out d Lv.l 3lCr vClt mcasurlrnrrn.

Ld.t I 
| 

LY.t, 
I

| 'o'[,f

ffi



DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerlv Hioh Flv Airlines Private Limit6dI

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note 30: Capital managemenl

The Company manages its capital structure and makes ad.iustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. Company monitors capilal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Rs. in lakhs

Note 31: Segment Reporting
Segments have been identified in accordance with lndian Accounting Slandards (lnd AS) 108 on Operating
Segments considering the risk or return profiles of the business. As required under lnd AS 108, the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (COOM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based on analysis
of various performance indicators. Accordingly, information has been presented for the Group's operating
segments and the Holding Company and its Associate has identified business segment as primary
segment. The reportable segment is Construction and Engineering Contracts.

Note 32: Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities
arising from financing activities as required by lnd AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:

Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 3l March 2024 3'l March 2023
Loans and bonowings
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liability
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity

Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio

67,569.95
'132.05

208.48
65.45

67,845.02
(19,015.48)
/18,829.54

138.94%

It.01
264.56

69,903.47
(20,774.331
,+9,129.13

142.290/0

Particulars Long Term Borrowings Short Term Borrowings
Balance as on 31 l,.a?ch 2022 95,639.00
Add : Cash inflow 14,'160.00
Less : Cash oumow 2,700.05 11,654.06
Add: Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - Cash outflow 25.369.00
Balance as on 3l March 2023 67,569.95 2,507.06
Add : Cash inflow 3,736.29
Less : Cash outflow 6243.35
Add : Non - Cash inflow
Less : Non - Cash outflow
Balance as on 3l ilarch 2024 67,569.95 0.00

11. cHl

I
q
U)

mtr-

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital , share
premium and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

70.o77.O'.|

1.12



OBL INFRA ASSEfS PRIVATE LIITI]EO
(Form.rlv Hloh FlvAlrlln.s Priv.t€ Llmrt.dl

Not . to co olldrt d fin.nclrl drt.m.nt tor ti. y....nd.d 3t ltrrch 2024

}+otr'3:t D!tg9t$!_d-BdE

za2,

Cun.nl rrtio linllm.s) 2.11 646 "67.34%

Due lo cunefll ponion ol
non c{nent bonowings
b.ing chssinsd as oJnent
liabihiy du€ lo irs matudty

b)
Ocu-6q'/lty nto (h
tinica)

Long-lc.m bo.rowil$ and
sho.l-lcrm borrowirgs

(3.s9) (3.41) 5.4%

t}J. lo l. aInG.{ ol
lhorl l..m borrowing3
dudng tlc )rr

c)
D€bt larvlco covoaage
laio (n limca)

Prorrt bclor. inl.r.3l and

Finance cosl log.th.r wnh

Principal roP3yrrErni ol long
lem bono*ings 3nd cunont
riaurili.s ol bng-r€fm
bono/ving! during thc period

d) Relum on eq!ry rai o 0.02 {0.06) -137_y%
Ou. lo hrroe i. totrl

lnvonlory lumover laiio
(in limes)

Reveoue fiom operations IUA

rumov.r ratio (in rim.s) Net trade r@ivrbbs 511 36.53 -86.01%

Dr/. to highcr
dJlnlodho b*nce {n
trldr mc.ivablc!
co(npald io p..vious

s)
Tr.dc payablGs tumorar
6lio (in lilli.!)

con d con3fudim,
drrtc6 h hviitdi!3 d}d

h)
Nat cepitel lumovcr 6tio
(in tin.t) Rev€nue from operalions

Worting c.pnd (worting
capnal rcLf! to ncl crrrcfit
a$al3 al'ivcd aflcr r6ducang
qrr€nt l€bilti.s ordrding
cJnert m.lurili.. ot loru
lern bonolxlno. lrom

o.21 0.39 46.420h

Du. io ir..casa an

Rtvonua flom operatixr3
and aortlng capild

D Rev€fl u! frun opcrrrions 1192vr 23 29% -35 95%

Olc lo dGcrla3a h paolii
cornpr6d to pr6vio0!

r)
Ralum on capltal Proft afler tar excLding

Avcrago c.pilel.mpby6d
(capil.l 6mploy.d r.t rs to
tole[ cquily, long-ifm
boraorlnE! sld lhort-larm
bonowings)

23-57v, 25 AA% -4.92%

Ouc to dccre$c in profil
comPsad to previor]s
y€.r end incrcasa in
3vGraga c€pilal arnploy€d

31 xrrch
zoza

R..ronr for ch.ng. ln
..tlo by mort than 25%

Revenuc lrom opcralaon!



DBL I?{FRA ASSETS PRIVATE LIi'ITED
(Form.rly High Fly Airlln€. P.ivlte Llmttod)

t{ot6 to conaolid.ted fin.ncl.l alrlarnent! for th. ye.r cnd€d 3l X&ch 2O2a

l{oir L: Additlonal dbclo3u.!3.i por Sch.dul.llt ofth. Comp.ntc. Aat 2Ol3

(,)

(ii)

The Holding Company and its essociate does nol tall under the citeria ol applicability of p.oviBiohs of CSR, es pe. the da6€s ot
S€c{on 1 35 ol the Companies Ad. 2Ol 3. mus, no di3ctGu.e is given.

The HoldirE Co.npany and it3 associate has nol eitcrEd in b any transa<rions during the y€ar with the Cornpanies stuck ofi under
sedion 2,18 ot Co.npanies Act, 201 3 o( sedion 560 ot Co,npanbs Aat 1 956.

A) Ihe Holding CornPany and iE associatie hErs nol advanced or loaned or inveated funds (either bo.ror€d fund6 or Bhae prerniurn or
any oiher sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or ent'ty(ies), induding io€ign entjties (lnlermediaies) wi!1 fie undeEtandirE
(wfElher rccordGd in ttriting or otherwis€) thal the lntermediaay shall -
(i) diec{y or indir€cXy lend or inv8t in other persons or enlities idenlifed in any manner \ahats@\€r by or on b€halt of ttE company
(Ufiimate Ben€fi ciades) or
(ii) provide any guarariee, s.ority or the like to or oo behaf oI ihe Uttimate Beicficjeriesi

B) Ttle Holdang Cornpany end its associaie has not r@iv€d any fund tyom any persor(s) or erility(ies), irdudirE loreign antitias
(Funding Pady) with tE urxrerstanding (vfuher lecodL.d in writing or ottErwisc) that the company shall -
(i) dirccdy or iMi.ecXy lend or inv€al in affler F,6{sons or cntities ideitrfied in any mamer whatso€ver by or on be}laf of the Funding parly
(U[imate Bene6ciaries) or
(ii) povide any guarantee, security or tho like m behaf ol the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

signature to noles lo accounts
For UKUND U CHITALE & CO.
Charter€d Accountants
Fim Regn. No. 106655W

(iiD During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Holding Company has granled loans to the related parties as defined under the
Companies Acl, 2013, withoul specifying any tems of the repa)fient.

(iv) There is no benami p.operty held by the HoldirE Company arrd ib a$ocjale and no proding! have beerr initiated or pendirE aEEinsl
the Holding Company and its 4ssociate for holding any bemmi propedy under the Benami Tlemactions (Prohibilion) Acl. 1948 (45 of
1 988) and rules mede thereunder.

(v) Ihe Hotding Cornpany and its a$rocieta has cornplied with ihe numbe. of layers p.Bdibed und6r dause (BA ot sadjon 2 ot the Ad
read with Co.npanbs (R6tiction oo number d La!€rs) Rule6, 2017.

(vi) The tlddirE ComPany and its associate has not traded o. invesH in Crypto curency or Mrtual CunBrEy during the fmncialyear

(vii) Th€re are no tr..llsction3 wiiafi hev6 not been recorded in the books of sccoonts and has been sunendey€d or disdosd a! incorne
duting the )€ar in the lax 4s.rsg.,nlent3 under tfE lnco.ne To( A(d 1961. Also, there a€ no prEviouCy unrecorded incoflE arld dat€d
ass€{s.

(viiD The Holding Cornpany sd its associate has not been sancliooed $lorking caFital limib al any point of time during the qrflefit year and
pEvioos year flom banks or finanoal jnltitutiofis on tho b$i! of 3eo.rrity of drent essets.

(ix) l,tili3.tion ot 8o.rof,.d funda and ah... prtrnium:

{da l5: Figur6 rdating to p.Evi s year h€w b€€o leqtoup.d / EaiarEed, wiereve. n€cessary. to cofitorm b drnent period prar.rt iion.

6$hlr-

For and on behalf of the Boad of Directors of
DBL INFRA ASSETS PRIVATE UIITEO
clN : U7a1 1 0MP2T2fi23673

Dlllp Suryav.n.hl
(Direclor)
DIN - 000399{4

t-

- 06939756

Jiniwal
(Chief Financial Officer)

MUMBAI

g. CH/

Place: Bhopal
Oate: li{ay 09. 2024

Place: Bhopal
Dale: M€y 09, 2024

(Company Secretiary)

4
"6.S, H. Chh.L

(Parher)
M.No. 111383


